
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
 

 
Pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, 

the meeting will be conducted both in person and via a virtual meeting portal. Members of 
the public may attend in person at the Community Center, located at 201 N. Railroad Street, 

Ridgway, Colorado 81432, or virtually using the meeting information below. 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84291283384?pwd=eXBTV3phUE5XQmErYUFHcnM5MkxPQT09  

Meeting ID: 842 9128 3384 
Passcode: 862595 

Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US  
        +1 253 215 8782 US 

 
5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Kevin Grambley, Polly Kroger, Beth Lakin, Terry Schuyler, JT Thomas, 

Mayor Pro Tem Russ Meyer and Mayor John Clark   
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are 
considered to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has 
received and considered reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar 
designations.  Copies of the reports are on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the 
public.  There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is requested, that item 
will be removed from the consent calendar and considered separately. 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 9, 2022. 
 
2.    Minutes of the Budget Workshop Meeting on November 17, 2022.  
 
3.    Register of Demands for December 2022. 
 
4.    Water leak adjustment for Account# 6330.2/Tuohy.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item 
not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
5.    Application for Restaurant Liquor License; Applicant: For the Love of Food LLC, Shareholders: 

Chris Lee & Taryn Lee; DBA: Bella Vino; Location: 220 S. Lena Street 
 
6.    Application: Rezoning; Location: Solar Ranches Filing No. 2C, Lot 110A; Address: TBD 

Sabeta Dr.; Zone: General Commercial (GC); Applicant: Michael Len Wilson and Susan 
Carriere Wilson, trustees of the Wilson Living Trust dated 12-5-2017; Owner: Wilson Living 
Trust dated 12-5-2017 

 
7.    Application: Final Plat; Location: Solar Ranches Filing No. 2C, Lot 110A and Lot 110B; 

Address: TBD Sabeta Dr. and 604 Sabeta Dr.; Zone: Residential (R); Applicant: Michael Len 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84291283384?pwd=eXBTV3phUE5XQmErYUFHcnM5MkxPQT09


Town Council Agenda 
December 14, 2022 
Page 2 

 
 

Wilson and Susan Carriere Wilson, trustees of the Wilson Living Trust dated 12-5-2017; 
Owner: Wilson Living Trust dated 12-5-2017 

 
8.    Adoption of the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget and setting of Property Tax Levies for 2023 through 

approval of resolutions - Town Clerk/Treasurer.  
 
POLICY MATTERS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
9.    Adoption of the 2023 Five-Year and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans - Town 

Clerk/Treasurer and Town Manager.  
 
10.  Adoption of the 2023 Strategic Plan - Town Manager. 
 
11.  Review and approval of Memorandum of Understanding between Ouray County and Town of 

Ridgway regarding 2023 Operational Funding Requests, Road and Bridge Apportionment from 
County to Town, and Future Goals - Town Manager. 

 
12.  Review and approval of the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and 

Restrictions for Ridgway U.S.A. Development - Town Attorney.  
 
13.  Review and action on Agreement for Legal Services with Bo James Nerlin, P.C. - Town 

Attorney. 
 
14.  Consideration of appointment to the Home Trust of Ouray County Board of Directors - Town 

Manager.  
 
WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS   Written reports may be provided for informational purposes 
prior to the meeting updating Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion 
and action. 
 
15.  Town Manager’s Report. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 
following committees, commissions and organizations: 
 
Committees & Commissions: 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Meyer and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilor Kroger 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor Grambley 
Ridgway Sustainability Advisory Board - Councilor Thomas; alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilor Lakin and Mayor Clark 
 
Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Meyer, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom McKenney; 

alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Thomas and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Clark 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Town Manager 



Town Council Agenda 
December 14, 2022 
Page 3 

 
 

Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor Meyer; alternate Councilor Thomas 
Water and Land Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley - Councilor Meyer; alternate - Town 

Manager 
Colorado Communities for Climate Action - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Manager 
Colorado Municipal League Policy Committee - Town Manager 
 
 
Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Lakin 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Schuyler 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, January 4, 2023 at 4:00 p.m., 
Town Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
NOVEMBER 9, 2022 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was held both in person and via a virtual meeting portal, Zoom Meeting, pursuant to 
the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  The Council was present in its entirety with 
Councilors Enochs, Grambley, Lakin, Schuyler, Thomas, Mayor Pro Tem Meyer and Mayor Clark 
in attendance.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 12, 2022. 
 
2.    Minutes of the Joint Workshop Meeting of October 26, 2022. 
 
3.    Minutes of the Budget Retreat and Special Meeting on October 29, 2022.  
 
4.    Register of Demands for November 2022. 
 
5.    Renewal of restaurant liquor license for Taco Del Gnar.  
 
6.    Water Leak Adjustment for Account #5170.3/Williams. 
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer, seconded by Councilor Lakin and unanimously carried 
by a roll call vote to approve the consent agenda. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS  
 
7.    Request to close a portion of Clinton Street for Noel Night event  
 

Tanya Ishikawa with the Ridgway Area Chamber of Commerce addressed the Council and 
requested the closure of Clinton Street, between Cora and Laura Streets, 4:00 to 8:00 p.m. 
on Friday December 2nd.   She noted the event will be similar to last year with businesses 
open late, and some businesses and non-profits selling from tables on sidewalks. 
 

ACTION: 
 
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer and seconded by Councilor Enochs to approve the Ridgway 
Area Chamber of Commerce application for use of public rights-of-ways for Noel Night and 
approve the closure of Clinton Street between Cora and Laura Streets on December 2nd between 
4:00 and 8:00 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
8.    Presentation of annual report from the Ridgway Community Garden  
 

Agnieszka Przeszlowska Ridgway Community Garden Board President, presented a written 
report dated 9-29-22 and addressed the Council in person to display a film of the garden 
taken on September 17th .  She explained during the year the garden had full membership 



Town Council Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 2 
 

and served 76 adults and 20 children; made donations of produce to the local food pantry; 
presented educational interactive activities to the Voyager Youth Program, along with 
participating in a children’s communal garden bed.  She explained in 2023 four garden beds 
will be constructed at an easier height for access by older members; more flower species 
which attract pollinators will be planted; and the shed extended to provide a storage area for 
large items like wheelbarrows.  

 
Ms. Przeszlowska  requested Town support in the spring to level and gravel the parking area, 
and grade the ground for installation of the new shed.  

  
The Mayor explained the Council will consider the request during budget discussions. 
 

POLICY MATTERS  
 
9.    Candidates and appointment of members to the Youth Advisory Council 
 

Staff Report dated 11-4-22 from the Town Manager presenting candidates for the 2022-2023 
Youth Advisory Council.  

 
Manager Neill reported two applications have been received to serve on the Youth Advisory 
Council during the 2022-2023 school year, from students River Randolph and Jonathan 
Rytlewski. He noted the number of applicants is not enough for a meeting quorum and asked 
how the Council wished to proceed. 

 
There was discussion and comments by the Council regarding ways to encourage 
participation during the next school year.  Consensus was to continue the program with the 
Town Manager and Mayor working with the two students. 

  
ACTION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Meyer moved to appoint River Randolph and Jonathan Rytlewski to the 2022-
2023 Youth Advisory Council.  Councilor Thomas seconded, and the motion unanimously carried 
on a roll call vote.  
 
10.  Appointment of member to the Ridgway FUSE Committee  
   

Councilmember Grambley reported the FUSE Committee is recommending the Council 
appoint a new member to the board, Donna Jaffee.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Grambley, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Meyer and unanimously carried by 
a roll call vote to appoint Donna Jafee as a Ridgway Fuse Committee member.  
 
11.  Amended Development Agreement with Ridgway Homes, LLC  
 
       Town Attorney Nerlin presented an amended Development Agreement with Ridgway Homes, 

LLC for Wetterhorn Townhomes.  He explained the document is an update to the agreement 
previously approved by Council, which was never executed due to requested changes by the 
developers.  Document changes include completion of items by the developers before 
December 8th and amendments to the affordable housing guidelines as they relate to 
administering the program.   

 



Town Council Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 3 
 

Town Engineer Joanne Fagan noted November 15th is the last day the Town allows 
construction in rights-of-ways, and the developer will be unable to meet the time frame to 
finish roads and sidewalks which meet Town standards.  
 
There were questions to staff, and discussion by the Council.  It was noted by the Town 
Manager that staff has gone to great lengths to accommodate the developer over the past 
year and half.  Staff suggested development and backfilling of the roads be discontinued until 
March 15th when construction in the rights-of-ways is allowed again.  The Council agreed and 
asked the Town Attorney to relay the information to the developers.  
 

ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor Lakin to approve the amendment to the Development Agreement with 
Ridgway Homes, LLC as presented in the agenda packet. Mayor Pro Tem Meyer seconded the 
motion.  On a roll call vote the motion carried unanimously.  

 
12.  Presentation of the Draft 2023 Fiscal Year Budget  
 

The Town Clerk/Treasurer presented a draft of the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget and Five and 
Ten Year Capital Improvement Plans.  She explained changes to the capital improvement 
plans requested by Council during the Budget Retreat on October 29 are included in the 
documents, and will be further discussed at the Budget Workshop scheduled for November 
16th.  
 

SPEAKING FROM THE AUDIENCE: 
 
Pat Willits inquired into capital improvement planning for improvements to Ridgway Ditch.  
He stated in relation to the findings in the recent water study, “I think it is the most important 
thing the Town could do” and “the only way to get more water” is to pipe Ridgway Ditch from 
the headgate to Lake Ottonawanda. 
 
Mr. Willits stated “the study says that 60% of the water that enters the headgate does not 
make it into Lake O”, “that is why is so important to capture most of that water in a line then 
we can substantiate the Town has water to 2050”. 
 
The Town Manager noted the recommendations from the study are contained in the five and 
ten year capital improvement plans.  
 
There was discussion by the Council and it was agreed to move the piping of Ridgway Ditch 
from the headgate to the lake, from the Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan to the Five Year 
plan.  Staff was directed to look into grant funding opportunities for the project. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS 
 
13.  Rights of Nature Annual Report 
 

Staff Report dated 11-4-22 from the Town Manager noting in November of 2021 the Council 
adopted a resolution supporting protection of the Uncompahgre River, its tributaries and 
watershed by recognizing the “rights of nature”. 
 
The Town Manager explained the staff report contains a report from the Uncompahgre 
Watershed Partnership entitled “The Health and State of the Uncompahgre River, its 
Tributaries and its Watershed” dated October 2022.   
 



Town Council Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 4 
 

Tanya Ishikawa with the Uncompahgre Watershed Partnership addressed the Council 
regarding the report. 

 
14.  Monthly Managers Report 
 

Manager Neill highlighted some items in the monthly staff report.   
 
Councilmember Thomas reported on a meeting of the Sustainability Advisory Board.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

The Town Attorney suggested the Council enter into a closed session pursuant to Colorado 
Revised Statutes 24-6-402(4)(b) for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 
questions regarding the possible purchase and/or condemnation of 539 Marion Overlook, 
Ridgway, CO; and Colorado Revised Statutes 24-6-402(4)(b) for the purpose of receiving 
legal advice on specific legal questions regarding the possible purchase and/or 
condemnation of TBD Laura Street, Ridgway, CO. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember Lakin moved to enter into closed session.  Mayor Pro Tem Meyer seconded, and 
the motion carried unanimously.  
 
The Council entered into closed session with the Town Attorney, Town Manager and Town Clerk 
at 7:30 p.m. for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions regarding the 
possible purchase and/or condemnation of 539 Marion Overlook. 
 
The Council entered into a closed session with the Town Attorney, Town Manager and Town 
Clerk at 7:50 p.m. for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions regarding 
the possible purchase and/or condemnation of TBD Laura Street. 
 
The Council reconvened into open session at 8.10 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  
  

MINUTES OF BUDGET WORKSHOP  
 

NOVEMBER 17, 2022 
 
 
 
 

The Town Council convened for a budget workshop meeting at 6:00 p.m. in the Ridgway 

Community Center at 201 N. Railroad Street. The meeting was held both in person and via Zoom 

Meeting, a virtual meeting portal, pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  

The Council was present in its entirety with Councilors Enoch, Grambley, Lakin, Schuyler, 
Thomas, Mayor Pro Tem Meyer and Mayor Clark in attendance.   
 
Town Clerk’s Notice of Budget Workshop Meeting dated October 10, 2022. 
 
The Council received a draft Fiscal Year Budget for 2023, Five and Ten Year Capital Improvement 
Plans for each of the three funds and 2023 draft Strategic Plan.  
 
Through a PowerPoint presentation the Town Manager presented an overview of the budget 
adoption process as it relates to State Statutes and projected ending fund balances.  He explained 
staff has a conservative budget approach and philosophy, to ensure long term fiscal stability and 
reserves to meet known and unknown obligations.  The projected ending fund balance for the 
general fund is currently 3.2 million, 1.4 for water fund, and 1.2 million in the sewer fund.  Over all 
the funds payroll is 29.7%; down from 37% in the previous year. The budget contains two new 
positions, moving a seasonal public works employee to full time status, and a planner position.  
 
The Town Clerk/Treasurer presented the draft 2023 Fiscal Year Budget and reviewed with 
Council changes made at the previous meeting to the capital improvement plans, and items from 
the Five Year Plan slated to be funded in 2023.  
 
There was discussion by the Council and a modification and addition made to the five year plan 
for funding in 2023. 
 
The Council reviewed individually the funding requests from organizations.  Prior to the discussion 
regarding the request from the Sherbino Theater, the Mayor stepped down due to a conflict of 
interest, and turned the gavel over to the Mayor Pro Tem.  Councilor Grambley also recused 
himself from the discussion.  After reaching consensus on the funding request, both the Mayor 
and Councilor returned to sit with the Council. 
 
There was discussion pertaining to ways to allocate requests in the future, and the interplay with 
economic development. 
 
The Town Clerk noted at a previous meeting, the Council asked that the funding request from the 
Ouray County Home Trust be allocated from the affordable housing line item, and confirmed the 
action with the Council.  She also noted at the last meeting the Ridgway Community Garden 
requested in-kind support from staff of equipment and gravel, and the Council agreed to the 
request. 
 
The Town Manager presented the proposed 2023 Strategic Plan, noting the document is 
organized by community values from the Master Plan.  He highlighted some of the items in the 
document, there were questions from Council and discussion between Council and staff. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

William Jack Scharf Alpine-Operating Account

appraisal - Laura St 519GOO · Contractual Services -500.00
appraisal - Marion Overlook 519GOO · Contractual Services -500.00

TOTAL -1,000.00

H&H Lining Inc Alpine-Operating Account

pond liner 931SOO · Maintenance & Repairs -11,577.00

TOTAL -11,577.00

Core & Main LP Alpine-Operating Account

contrib. to Tell. Foundation 535GOO · Affordable Housing -11,959.20
contrib. to Tell. Foundation 535GOO · Affordable Housing -154.87

TOTAL -12,114.07

Ouray County Road & Bridge Alpine-Operating Account

10/19/22-11/21/22 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -417.50
10/19/22-11/21/22 760POO · Gas & Oil -250.52
10/19/22-11/21/22 960WOO · Gas & Oil -362.61
10/19/22-11/21/22 960SOO · Gas & Oil -739.56
10/19/22-11/21/22 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -1,114.95

TOTAL -2,885.14

Five Star Print & Promo Alpine-Operating Account

utility bills 941WOO · Office Supplies -419.90
utility bills 941SOO · Office Supplies -419.90

TOTAL -839.80

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -13.00
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -13.00

TOTAL -26.00

Ferguson Waterworks Alpine-Operating Account

Ouray County tie-in (to be reimb) 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -220.18
Firehouse (to be reimb) 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -657.58

TOTAL -877.76

Colorado Water Conservation ... Alpine-Operating Account

998WOO · Debt Service-CWCB (2) -30,917.67

TOTAL -30,917.67

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

December 2022

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

GoBigBanners.com Alpine-Operating Account

Fuse banner 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -87.91

TOTAL -87.91

Copy Cats Alpine-Operating Account

TC nameplate 546GOO · Council/PC - Materials/Equip... -20.50

TOTAL -20.50

Xerox Financial Services Alpine-Operating Account

Xerox lease - Nov 2022 948SOO · Office Equipment - Leases -7.63
Xerox lease - Nov 2022 948WOO · Office Equipment - Leases -15.26
Xerox lease - Nov 2022 548GOO · Office Equipment - Leases -129.75

TOTAL -152.64

Federal Express Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -112.30

TOTAL -112.30

FleetPride Alpine-Operating Account

hood latch - dump 661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -16.66
hood latch - dump 961WOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -16.66
hood latch - dump 961SOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -16.66

TOTAL -49.98

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

741POO · Telephone -60.95
943SOO · Telephone -142.04
943WOO · Telephone -112.72
843GO3 · Telephone -203.15
543GOO · Telephone -106.25
643GO2 · Telephone -60.95
552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -10.00
952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -10.01
952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -50.02
830GO3 · Computer -160.02

TOTAL -916.11

Browns Hill Engineering & Con... Alpine-Operating Account

reconfig. VOIP & modum 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -1,747.50
reconfig. VOIP & modum 931SOO · Maintenance & Repairs -1,747.50

TOTAL -3,495.00

America's Auto Care & Tire Alpine-Operating Account

tires (4) - 2013 Explorer 861GO3 · Vehicle Maintanence & Repair -767.44

TOTAL -767.44

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

December 2022

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Mountain Market Alpine-Operating Account

553GOO · Meetings & Community Events -42.95

TOTAL -42.95

City of Grand Junction Alpine-Operating Account

918SOO · Testing & Permits - sewer -612.00

TOTAL -612.00

Amerigas Alpine-Operating Account

propane - wtr plant 942WOO · Utilities -2,996.15

TOTAL -2,996.15

Pureline Treatment Systems Alpine-Operating Account

Dec 2022 989WOO · Plant Expenses - water -1,650.00

TOTAL -1,650.00

USABlueBook Alpine-Operating Account

suction hose - hydrovac trailer 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -344.98
suction hose - hydrovac trailer 931SOO · Maintenance & Repairs -344.97

TOTAL -689.95

San Miguel Power Assoc, Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

10/19/22-11/21/22 542GOO · Utilities -78.69
10/19/22-11/21/22 783PO1 · Broadband Station -133.47
10/19/22-11/21/22 638GO2 · Street Lighting -385.44
10/19/22-11/21/22 642GO2 · Utilities -119.15
10/19/22-11/21/22 742POO · Utilities -400.51
10/19/22-11/21/22 742PO1 · Utilities - c cntr/t hall -78.68
10/19/22-11/21/22 842GO3 · Utilities -78.69
10/19/22-11/21/22 942SOO · Utilities -4,050.00
10/19/22-11/21/22 942WOO · Utilities -991.76

TOTAL -6,316.39

Uncompahgre Volunteer Legal ... Alpine-Operating Account

5010GO1 · Uncompahgre Volunteer Leg... -3,000.00

TOTAL -3,000.00

Ouray County Partners Program Alpine-Operating Account

5015GO1 · Ouray County Partners Progr... -1,000.00

TOTAL -1,000.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

December 2022

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Ouray County Soccer Club Alpine-Operating Account

5120GO1 · Ouray Co Soccer Club -3,000.00

TOTAL -3,000.00

Sherbino Theater Alpine-Operating Account

5135GO1 · Sherbino Theater -2,500.00

TOTAL -2,500.00

Weehawken Alpine-Operating Account

5137GO1 · Weehawken Creative Arts -4,000.00

TOTAL -4,000.00

Hartman Brothers Inc Alpine-Operating Account

661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.20
961SOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.20
961WOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -8.20

TOTAL -24.60

Honnen Equipment Company Alpine-Operating Account

cutting edge - grader 661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -497.15
cutting edge - grader 961WOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -165.71

TOTAL -662.86

Pro Velocity Alpine-Operating Account

Dec 2022 556GOO · IT Services -626.67
Dec 2022 615GO2 · IT Services -626.67
Dec 2022 729POO · IT -626.67
Dec 2022 820GO3 · IT Services -686.67
Dec 2022 917WOO · IT Services -601.16
Dec 2022 917SOO · IT Services -596.16
Dec 2022 530GOO · Computer -59.84
Dec 2022 630GO2 · Computer -59.83
Dec 2022 730POO · Computer -59.83
Dec 2022 830GO3 · Computer -59.83
Dec 2022 930WOO · Computer -59.84
Dec 2022 930SOO · Computer -59.83

TOTAL -4,123.00

Montrose Water Factory, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -11.07
732POO · Supplies & Materials -11.06
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -11.06
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -11.06

TOTAL -44.25

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

December 2022

Page 4



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

J. Clark Alpine-Operating Account

reimb Film Fest award 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -800.00

TOTAL -800.00

Nathan Cowles Alpine-Operating Account

Film Fest award 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -1,000.00

TOTAL -1,000.00

Drew Loewen Alpine-Operating Account

Film Fest award 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -150.00

TOTAL -150.00

David Dibble Alpine-Operating Account

Film Fest award 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -200.00

TOTAL -200.00

Colin Bates Alpine-Operating Account

Film Fest award 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -400.00

TOTAL -400.00

Rocky Mountain Aggregate & C... Alpine-Operating Account

635GO2 · Gravel & Sand -1,009.69

TOTAL -1,009.69

SGS Accutest Inc Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -95.00
990WOO · Testing - water -103.06

TOTAL -198.06

Community Planning Strategie... Alpine-Operating Account

Nov 2022 513GOO · Planning Consulting -12,371.75

TOTAL -12,371.75

McCandless Truck Center LLC Alpine-Operating Account

clamp - wtr truck 661GO2 · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -73.53

TOTAL -73.53

Bruin Waste Management Alpine-Operating Account

Nov 2022 516GOO · Refuse Collection Franchise -15,505.66

TOTAL -15,505.66

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

December 2022

Page 5







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
 



         Agenda Item ___________ 
        

              File No. _______________ 
 
 

                                                   STAFF REPORT 
 
 

Subject:  Application for Restaurant Liquor License  -  Bella Vino 
Initiated By:  Pam Kraft, MMC, Town Clerk 
Date:  November 11, 2022 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Town has received an application for a Restaurant Liquor License from For the Love of 
Food LLC, members Chris and Taryn Lee, for the premises at 220 S. Lena Street.  The trade 
name of the new establishment will be Bella Vino.  
 
State law requires a public hearing before the local jurisdiction for application of a new liquor 
license. A notice of hearing before the Town Council has been posted and published, and the 
premises posted, all in accordance with state statutes.  
 
All requirements of license application have been met, all fees paid, and all forms received. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is purchasing the business and property from the current owners.  The licensed 
premises will encompass from property line to property line to allow serving on the existing 
decks, along with a proposed deck.  
 
State liquor law allows applicants to file for a concurrent review with State Liquor Enforcement 
while the application is being processed at the local level.  This type of application allows the 
local jurisidiction to issue a temporary permit allowing the applicant to conduct business and sell 
alcohol, until approval is issued by the state licensing authority.  The applicant is seeking 
issuance of a temporary operating permit from the Town, and has remitted the appropriate fee.  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
The Town receives a fee for a new liquor license application, and annual renewals thereafter. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
None. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the application for a Hotel/Restaurant Liquor License from For the Love of Food, LLC, 
sole members Chris and Taryn Lee, dba Bella Vino.   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
***NOTE:  Documents pertaining to liquor license applications are confidential in nature, and are 
on file in the Clerk’s Office and open to inspection by the Council*** 



AGENDA ITEMS #6 & #7 



 

 

 
To:   Town of Ridgway Mayor and Town Council 
Cc:   Preston Neill, Ridgway Town Manager 
From:  TJ Dlubac, AICP, Community Planning Strategies, Contracted Town Planner 
Date:  December 9, 2022 
Subject:   Final Plat and Rezone Requests for 604 Sabeta Drive for the December 14th Town 

Council meeting. 

APPLICATION INFORMATION 
Requests: 1) Approval to rezone Lot 110A, Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar 

Ranches Filing No. 2C from “GC” General Commercial District to “R” 
Low Density Residential District. (Sec. 7-3-22(A)(1) of the RMC) 

2) Approval of a final plat for Wilson Solar Ranch Subdivision. (Sec. 7-4-
5(C) of the RMC) 

Legal: Lots 110A & 110B, Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar Ranches, Filing No. 2C 
Address: 604 Sabeta Drive, Ridgway CO 81432 
General Location: East of and adjacent to Sabeta Drive 
Parcel #: 430516321002 and 430516321001 
Zone District: GC General Commercial District & R Low Density Residential District 
Current Use: Single-family Residential & vacant 
Applicant: Michael & Susan Wilson 
Owner: Michael & Susan Wilson, Trustees of Wilson Living Trust 

PROJECT REVIEW 
BACKGROUND 
The subject properties are located on the east side of Sabeta Drive, 
just south of Tabernash Lane and are currently platted as Lots 
110A and 110B, of the Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar Ranches 
Filing No. 2C Subdivision. Lot 110B is the location of a single-family 
residence and is addressed as 604 Sabeta Drive. This lot is zoned 
R District. Lot 110A is currently undeveloped and zoned GC District. 
Both lots are -family development and are surrounded by single 
owned by the same people, the Wilson’s. A map showing the 
location of these properties is provided in Figure 1.  
The lots, along with Lot 110C located southwest of 110B, were originally part of one large lot (Lot 110) 
which was subdivided in 2001. Lot 110A was rezoned at that time to GC General Commercial District 
in anticipation of the construction of a Holistic Health Center; the center was never constructed. A note 
was placed on the plat to limit the development of Lot 110A. 
The current property owners discovered that some of the improvements intended for Lot 110B have 
been constructed on Lot 110A. They wish to rectify this situation with requests for an amended plat 
and variance, and further to rezone Lot 110A from GC to R. 

Figure 1. Zoning and property location 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

At their October 25th meeting, the Town of Ridgway Planning Commission approved a lot width variance 
for both lots. The underlying zone district, R Low Density Residential District, requires a minimum of 
50’ lot width. The proposed lot width for Lot 110A-1 is 46.44’ and 46’ for Lot 110B-2. Both requests 
were approved with the same condition requiring that the rezoning and plat amendment were approved 
by the Town Council. Therefore, if Town Council didn’t approve the rezoning or plat amendment, the 
variances wouldn’t be valid either. 

 
2019 MASTER PLAN & FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
This property and abutting properties on the north, south, and west are designated as Single-Family 
Neighborhood on the Future Land Use Plan. Property to the east is designated Parks & Natural Areas. 
The requests are in general conformance with the recommendations, goals, and policies of the 2019 
Master Plan. Below are some highlights: 
GOAL CHR-1: Support vibrant, diverse, safe, and well-connected 
neighborhoods. 
CHR-1.1: Neighborhood Character: Encourage the development of 
neighborhoods that enhance and reflect the character of Ridgway 
through quality design, cohesive materials, and integration of natural 
features. 
GOAL GRO-1: Manage growth and development in order to maintain 
Ridgway’s small town character, support a diverse community, and create 
employment opportunities. 
POLICY GRO-1.5: Design of New Development. Ensure new development 
and infill/redevelopment is compatible with the surrounding area or 
neighborhood, particularly in the Historic Town Core where maintaining the historic character of 
Ridgway is desired. 
POLICY GRO-1.7: Transitions. Provide clear guidance to developers to ensure smooth transitions and/or 
compatibility between distinct land uses (i.e., between industrial or commercial and residential, 
including areas with mixed uses) or development densities/intensities. 

REQUESTS 
The applicant is seeking two approvals to bring the current properties into conformance with the RMC, 
the 2019 Master Plan, and Future Land Use Plan: amended plat and rezoning. As noted previously, 
there are structural and other improvements on Lot 110B that encroach upon Lot 110A. These 
improvements are identified on Figure. And, since the holistic health care center was not constructed, 
the owners are seeking approval to rezone Lot 110A from GC District to R District. 
The amended plat readjusts the property line between Lots 110A and 110B to bring the structural 
improvements (shed) and driveway all onto Lot 110B. Lot 110A becomes 110A-1 and Lot 110B becomes 
110B-2. The amended plat also restricts direct lot access to Sabeta Drive from Lot 110A-1 and provides 
a shared access easement on Lot 110B-2 for both lots. Figure 4 depicts the proposed lot configuration. 
Lastly, when the property was replatted in 2001, Lot 110A was zoned GC General Commercial District 
in anticipation of the construction of a holistic health center. This center was never constructed and 
the property owner would like to rezone Lot 110A to R Low Density Residential District to be in 
conformance with the master plan and compatible with surrounding zoning and uses. 

Figure 2. Future Land Use Plan 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

The applicant has submitted a hearing application, fee, letter of request, site plan/improvement survey, 
final plat/amended plat, and HOA letter for the public hearing to the Town. The property and hearing 
have been noticed and posted by the Town in accordance with Section §7-3-23(D) of the RMC. 

 
 
 

 
 
  

Figure 3. Improvement Survey of Existing Conditions 

Figure 4. Proposed Amended Plat 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 
RMC §7-3-22 - AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
AND ZONING REGULATIONS.  
(A) Rezoning: 

(1) Amendments to the Official Zoning Map involving any change in the boundaries of an existing 
zoning district, or changing the designation of a district, shall be allowed only upon a 
determination following public hearing that the following criteria are met:  
(a) The amendment is not adverse to the public health, safety and welfare, and 
(b) Either: 

(i) The amendment is in substantial conformity with the Master Plan; or 
(ii) The existing zoning is erroneous; or 
(iii) Conditions in the area affected or adjacent areas have changed materially since the 

area was last zoned. 
(2) Rezoning may be requested or initiated by the Town, the Planning Commission, or the owner 

of any legal or equitable interest in the property or his representative. The area considered for 
rezoning may be enlarged by the Planning Commission on its own motion over the area 
requested in the application as part of its recommendation. Any person desiring an amendment 
to the Zoning Regulations shall submit an application on forms provided by the Town, 
accompanied by an application fee of $200.00. Town staff shall have 30 days from the date an 
application is submitted to review such submittal and to advise the applicant of any deficiencies. 
Once a submittal is deemed complete, it may be processed for further review. The burden shall 
be on the applicant to show that the criteria of this Subsection have been met. No fee or formal 
application is required for action initiated by the Town or Planning Commission. 

(E) All proposals to amend the Official Zoning Map or these Zoning Regulations may be referred to 
the Planning Commission for recommendation. 

(F) The Town Council shall review all proposals to amend the Official Zoning Map as the "Review 
Board" in substantial conformity with the review procedures set out in Subsection 7-3-23.: 

RMC §7-4-10 REPLATS AND AMENDED PLATS  
(B) Amended plats of subdivision plats previously approved by the Town, or parts of such plats, 

which do not make or require a material change in the extent, location, or type of public 
improvements and easements provided, and are consistent with the Design Standards of these 
Regulations may be submitted, approved and recorded in accordance with the provisions of this 
Subsection in lieu of other procedures provided for subdivision by these regulations, if all required 
improvements are in and available to serve each lot. 

RMC §7-4-5(C) FINAL PLAT: 
RMC §7-4-5(C)(8)(b): The Planning Commission shall determine the following are met in order to 
recommend approval, with or without conditions, of the replat to the Town Council: 
(i)  The Town has received a reproducible mylar properly executed by all parties except Town 

officials, the original subdivision improvements agreement properly executed by the Subdivider 
accompanied by required security, and copies of properly executed corporate documents and 
covenants; 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

(ii)  Compliance with all Planning Commission conditions of approval except those subject to a good 
faith dispute;  

(iii)  Payment of all costs due to date pursuant to 7-4-12(B), recording fees, development excise 
taxes, tap fees and other amounts due the Town. 

 

ANALYSIS 
LAND USES 
Lot 110A-1 is currently vacant and Lot 110b-1 is developed as a single-family residence. Both are in 
conformance with the current “R” and “GC” Districts as it relates to land use. The applicant wishes to 
rezone the “GC” lot to “R” to allow future residential development and to bring it into conformance with 
the 2019 Master Plan and Future Land Use Plan which shows the property as Single-family as well as 
to be more compatible with surrounding zoning and land uses. 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 
Dimensional Standards 
Section §7-3-15(A) sets forth the required dimensional standards which shall be met for various uses 
within each zone district. For the R Low Density Residential District, the following standards apply to 
single-family uses: 

Standard Requirement Proposed 
Lot 110A-1 Lot 110B-2 

Min. Lot Width 50’ 46.43’* 46’* 
Min. Lot Size 6,000sf 21,789.24sf 28,181.07sf 
Max. Lot Coverage 50% TBD <50% 
Min. Front Setback 15’ TBD >102’ 
Min. Rear Setback 8’ TBD 32.8’ 
Min. Side Setback 5’ TBD 15’ 
Max. Side on Corner Lot 7.5’ n/a n/a 

*Variances approved by the Planning Commission on October 25, 2022 
 
The current lot widths do not meet the minimum dimension and the amended plat will not correct the 
nonconformance since there isn’t additional room or land to adjust the lot width at the street. In order 
to bring the two lots into conformance, a lot width variance for each lot is being requested. To mitigate 
the impact of having two driveways located within close proximity to each other, staff requested that 
a note be added to the plat prohibiting direct access from Lot 110A-1 onto Sabeta Drive. (See note 9) 

ACCESS 
As currently platted, both lots have direct lot access to Sebata Drive. The applicant proposes to restrict 
direct lot access for Lot 110A-1 and provided a shared access easement on Lot 110B-2. Due to the 
narrow lot width at the street and the configuration of the street curve in this area, the access restriction 
addresses the negative impacts of multiple access points on a cul-de-sac.  

UTILITIES 
No proposed changes to existing utilities have been proposed or are required by this request. All public 
improvements are already in place and services are provided to Lot 110B-2. If new water and/or sewer 
taps are necessary for the future development of Lot 110A-1, that will be determined in conjunction 
with the building permit application. 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION / ACTION 
At their regular meeting on October 25, 2022, the Town of Ridgway Planning Commission considered 
the rezoning request to R Low Density Single-Family District, two variances reducing the lot widths, 
and a plat amendment adjusting the property line between the two lots. The following 
recommendations were made by the Planning Commission: 
Rezoning: 
Recommended the Town Council approve a rezoning of Lot 110A, Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar 
Ranches, Filing No. 2C, from GC General Commercial District to R Low Density Single-Family District 
with the following condition: 

1) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Wilson Subdivision amended plat. 
Variances: 
Lot 110A-1: Approved a 3.56-foot variance to allow a 46.44-foot lot width for Lot 110A-1, Wilson 
Solar Ranch Subdivision in the R Low Density Residential District finding that the criteria set forth in 
Section 7-3-21 of the RMC have been met and with the following condition: 

1) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Wilson Subdivision rezoning and amended plat. 

Lot 110B-2: Approved a 4-foot variance to allow a 46-foot lot width for Lot 110B-1, Wilson Solar 
Ranch Subdivision in the R Low Density Residential District finding that the criteria set forth in 
Section 7-3-21(A) of the RMC have been met and with the following condition: 

1) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Wilson Subdivision rezoning and amended plat. 

Amended Plat: 
Recommended the Town Council approve the Wilson Solar Ranch Subdivision with the following 
conditions: 

1) Update the Attorney Certificate to include exceptions included on the Title Commitment. 
2) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Wilson Subdivision rezoning request. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Following review of the application materials against the applicable RMC requirements, staff 
recommends approval of the rezoning and amended plat requests with conditions intended to tie each 
of the approvals together so no one request is approved unless both are approved. The recommended 
motions, with alternative motions, are provided in the next sections of the staff report. 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS – REZONE 
“I move to approve the request to rezone Lot 110A, Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar Ranches, Filing 
No. 2C from “GC” General Commercial District to “R” Low Density Single-Family District finding that 
the criteria set forth in Section 7-3-22(A)(1) of the RMC have been met and with the following 
condition: 
1) The Wilson Subdivision amended plat is approved by Town Council.” 
Alternative Motion: 



Town of Ridgway 
Wilson Subdivision Rezoning & Plat Amendment 
December 9, 2022 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

“I move to deny the request to rezone Lot 110A, Amended Plat of Lot 110, Solar Ranches, Filing No. 
2C from “GC” General Commercial District to “R” Low Density Single Family District to the Town of 
Ridgway Town Council finding that the criteria set forth in Section 7-3-22(A)(1) of the RMC have not 
been met.” 

1) The amendment is not in substantial conformity with the Master Plan; or 
2) The existing zoning is not erroneous; or 
3) Conditions in the area affected or adjacent areas have not changed materially since the area 

was last zoned.  

RECOMMENDED MOTIONS – AMENDED PLAT 
“I move approve the Wilson Solar Ranch Subdivision finding that the criteria set forth in Section 7-4-5 
and 7-4-10 of the RMC have been met and with the following conditions: 
1) Update the Attorney Certificate to include exceptions included on the Title Commitment. 
2) The Ridgway Town Council approves the Wilson Subdivision rezoning and variance requests to 

reduce the minimum lot width.” 
Alternative Motion: 
“I move to deny the Wilson Solar Ranch Subdivision finding that the criteria set forth in Section 
7-4-5 and 7-4-10 of the RMC have been met: 
1) The final plat is not substantially consistent with the preliminary plat as approved.  
2) The final plat does not contain all the required information listed in Section 7-4-5(C)(3) 
3) The final plat does not conform to the R Low Density Residential District uses and 

standards. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application and Support Materials 

 

















Mike and Sue Wilson 
604 Sabeta Drive 

Ridgway, CO 81432 
scarrierewilson@gmail.com 

303-709-8037 
September 15, 2022 

Town of Ridgway  

Planning Commission 

201 N. Railroad St. 

Ridgway, CO 81432 

Dear Planning Commission Members, 

We ask that you grant our request for a hearing based on the following issues and information. 

Background  

We own two lots in Solar Ranch on Sabeta Drive in south Ridgway, which we purchased in February, 

2022. (See Lots 110A and 110B on Image 1 below and evidence of our ownership in Enclosure 1.) The 

legal description of the lots is:   

LOTS 110A AND 110B, AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 110, SOLAR RANCHES FILING NO. 2C, TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 15, 2001 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 

174776, COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO. 

 

 

Image 1: Division of Lot 110 into three sublots 

Our lots (along with Lot 110C) were once part of one large lot, Lot 110 of Solar Ranches, Filing 2C. Lot 

110 was divided into three lots in 2001 with the filing of an Amended Plat with Ouray County, the most 

mailto:scarrierewilson@gmail.com


Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 2 
 
recent plat for this property from which Image 1 was taken. A full copy of that recorded plat is included 

as Enclosure 2 to this letter. 

Subsequently, the home we live in now was built on Lot 110B in 2002, while 110A remains undeveloped. 

A home was also built on Lot 110C. It is not owned by us and not directly affected by our requests.   

The division of Lot 110 into three lots in 2001 created the following situation: 

1. All three lots are only approximately 46 feet wide at the point of street access; and 

2. Lot 110A is zoned “GC” General Commercial, under Conditional Ordinance 01-04 (allowing 

for a Holistic Health Center to be built on Lot 110A). 

Additionally, we’ve discovered the need for some corrective plat work to bring our lots within greater 

alignment and conformity while also providing some clarity for future access of the two properties. 

Specifically, as seen in the improvement survey plat created by Orion Surveying, the previous owner of 

Lots 110A and 110B constructed a driveway, built a shed, and installed landscaping around our single 

family home. These projects spilled across the lot line onto 110A. The result is that our shed and part of 

the driveway access to our garage are on the adjacent undeveloped lot, and not wholly on the same lot 

as our home. (See Enclosure 3 or Image 2 below) 

 

Image 2: Our home on 110B showing shed & driveway spilling across the lot line of 110A. 



Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

Summary of Concerns Inherited with Our Lots Purchase  

Concern #1: The shed built by the previous owner is non-conforming to current regulations of the Town 

or our homeowner’s association, Solar Ranch HOA, Inc. filing 2BCD (“HOA”), as it rests on the 

undeveloped Lot 110A. 

Concern #2: The lot widths at the entrances for Lots 110A and 110B are non-conforming to Town 

regulations as neither have the requisite minimum 50’ width. 

Concern #3: Lot 110A is zoned “GC” General Commercial, under Conditional Ordinance 01-04, in the 

middle of a residential neighborhood.  

 

Proposed Solutions 

Proposed Solution re Concern #1: Move a portion of the lot line between Lots 110A and 110B (creating 

Lots 110A-1 and 110B-1 as depicted on the replat attached as Enclosure 4) so that the driveway and 

shed will be completely contained on Lot 110B-1 and thus conform with current Town and our HOA 

regulations. Please note that we will abandon the part of the existing gravel drive that would encroach 

on Lot 110A-1, if any. 

Proposed Solution re Concern #2: Grant a permanent access easement to Lot 110A-1 from 110B-1 to 

allow for access to Lot 110A-1 from the current driveway on 110B-1. We propose that no direct access 

to the street would be available for Lot 110A-1 so as not to create any additional direct street access, 

and that access to Lot 110A-1 would be gained only via the access easement. There is currently a fence 

erected along the entire width of Lot 110A between the lot and the street. We have no plans to remove 

the fence. 

Proposed Solution re Concern #3: Rezone Lot 110A as “R” Low Density Residential to allow only 

approved residential development, as supported by our neighbors and HOA. 

A snapshot of the proposed solutions can be seen on Image 3 below and more completely in the Final 

Plat we propose. (See Enclosure 4). 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 4 
 

 

 

Image 3 – New Lots 110A-1 and 110B-1. 

 

  



Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

Approvals Sought at the Requested Hearing of the Planning Commission 

As described in further detail below we have the following requests of the Planning Commission 

regarding each of the outlined concerns related the current state of our lots: 

• Specific to Concern #1 – Approve Plat Amendment 

• Specific to Concern #2 – Grant Width Variances for Both Lots  

• Specific to Concern #3 – Rezone Lot 110A-1 

Approval Sought re: Concern #1 – Approve Amendment of Plat 

We ask for approval of the plat amendment to create Lots 110A-1 and 110B-1, attached as Enclosure 4.  

We note that the proposed plat amendment meets all the criteria of the Town of Ridgway Municipal 

Code (the “Code”) section 7-4-10(B) and therefore is eligible to be approved by the Planning 

Commission. Specifically, section 7-4-10(B) of the Code states that: 

“Amended plats of subdivision plats previously approved by the Town, or parts of 

such plats, which do not make or require a material change in the extent, location, 

or type of public improvements and easements provided, and are consistent with 

the Design Standards of these Regulations may be submitted, approved and 

recorded in accordance with the provisions of this Subsection in lieu of other 

procedures provided for subdivision by these regulations, if all required 

improvements are in and available to serve each lot.” 

The proposed plat amendment is for a part of a subdivision plat previously approved by the Town and it 

does not make or require any material changes to the extent, location, or type of public improvements 

and easements provided.  

All required public improvements currently exist and need no changes. We are suggesting to provide a 

new private access easement (as further described below) simply to help alleviate an existing problem 

with the lot widths, but do not require such easement. No public easements are being requested or 

required due to the amended plat.  

As proposed, the lots resulting from the amended plat meet all Design Standards of these Regulations. 

The proposed easement grants access to a street connected to the public street system to Lot 110A-1. 

Additionally, as proposed, the lots resulting from the amended plat meet all dimensional requirements of 

zoning regulations to the extent that they currently do, i.e., they meet all, except the minimum width 

requirement that they do not meet now. We ask for approval of variances related to this width 

requirement below. 

Please see Image 4 below showing the dimensional requirements of the Town’s zoning regulations for “R” 

Low Density Residential and how the dimensions of proposed Lots 110A-1 and 110B-1 compare. 

 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 6 
 
 

District Min. Lot Max. Lot 

Coverage 

(%) 

Min. Setbacks (ft) 

Use Width 

(ft) (5) 

Size (sf) Front Rear (1) Side (1) Max. Side 

on Corner 

Lot 

R 

 

 

 

Lot 
110A-1 

 

Lot 
110B-1 

Single-

Family and 

Duplex 

50 6,000 50 15  8 5 7.5 

 46.43 21,789.24 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

  

46 

 
28,181.07 

 

< 50 

 

>102 

 

32.8 

 

15  

 

9.5 

 

Image 4 – Dimensional Requirements vs. Dimensions of  Lots 110A-1 and 110B-1. 

 

Approval Sought re: Concern #2 – Grant Width Variances 

1. We ask for a variance to the width requirement for Lot 110A-1 of 3 feet and 6.84 inches to allow 

a reduced width of 46.43 feet. 

2. We ask for a variance to the width requirement for Lot 110B-1 of four feet to allow a reduced lot 

width of 46 feet. 

We note that the requested variances are not related to “use” and meet all the criteria of the applicable 

section of the Code, Section 7-3-21(A). 

As per Section 7-3-21(A) of the Code, “Variances shall be granted only if all the following criteria are 

met: (1) There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict 

letter of the zoning ordinance, and (2) The spirit of the ordinance will be observed, the public health, 

safety and welfare secured and substantial justice done by granting the variance. 

In our situation, criteria (1) is met because there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the 

strict letter of the zoning ordinance lot width requirement. There are only 92.43 feet across the two 

existing lots and thus it is impossible to change the lot lines to meet the minimum width requirement of 

50 feet for each lot. 

Criteria (2) is met because the variances support the spirit of the ordinance by granting as wide of a lot 

as practically possible for both lots and retaining widths that are only a few feet short of the minimum 

requirement. In order to mitigate any negative ramifications that a smaller than minimum lot width may 

be creating, we are proposing that Lot 110B-1 grant the access easement to Lot 110A-1 depicted in the 

https://library.municode.com/co/ridgway/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH8LI


Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 7 
 
amended plat described above and included as Enclosure 4. This will effectively give Lot 110A-1 access 

to the full 92.43 feet width of the two lots and will not minimize the width of the other lot or its access 

at all. 

The public health, safety and welfare will remain secure in light of the requested variances and 

substantial justice will be done if the variances are granted because they are simply upholding the 

existing situation that we inherited from the previous owner of the properties. 

The uses of land within 100 feet of the exterior of the combined Lots 110A and 110B (and Lots 110A-1 

110B-1) are as follows: 

 To the North – “R” Low Density Residential (condominiums) 

 To the East – Ridgway Athletic Park  

To the South – HOA path and Town Border (ranch land abuts the Town limits) 

 To the West – “R” Low Density Residential  

 

Approval Sought re: Concern #3 – Rezone 

We ask for the rezoning of Lot 110A to one of “R” Low Density Residential. When Lot 110 was divided 

into three separate lots in 2001, the owners of Lot 110A wished to build a Holistic Health Center on such 

lot and were granted the right to do so under Conditional Ordinance 01-04. Under this conditional right, 

if the Holistic Health Center was not built, only a single family residence would be allowed to be built on 

Lot 110A. As the Holistic Health Center was never built, only a single family residence should be allowed 

to be built on the lot pursuant to Conditional Ordinance 01-04 and therefore we ask that the zoning be 

changed to reflect that fact. 

The Planning Commission may grant the requested rezoning under the Town Municipal Code 7-3-22(A) 

because all the criteria of that section of the Code will be met, i.e., the requested re-zoning: 

(a) “is not adverse to the public health, safety and welfare”; and 

(b) “is in substantial conformity with the Master Plan.”  

There is nothing adverse to the public health, safety and welfare of rezoning Lot 110A-1 to “R” Low 

Density Residential in-line with the intent of the Conditional Ordinance 01-04.  

The Town’s Master Plan shows our neighborhood, including both our lots, as part of a Single-Family 

Neighborhood, which by the definitions in the Master Plan, does not include commercial buildings. Re-

zoning Lot 110A-1 to be “R” Low Density Residential supports what is depicted in the Master Plan in 

substantial conformity with the Master Plan. 

An examination of the Town’s Master Plan Values shows that the rezoning request aligns with the many 

of the related Goals and Policies listed in the plan, especially those related to the Community Value 5, 

i.e., Well-Managed Growth.  

The first goal mentioned under the Community Value of Well-Managed Growth is listed as: 

“GOAL GRO-1: Manage growth and development in order to maintain Ridgway’s small town character, 

support a diverse community, and create employment opportunities.”  



Letter to Planning Commission 

September 15, 2022 
Page 8 
 
The requested rezoning is aligned with several of the specific policies listed under this goal.  

First, the “POLICY GRO-1.5: Design of New Development. Ensure new development and 

infill/redevelopment is compatible with the surrounding area or neighborhood. . . .” would be 

supported by the rezoning requested. The surrounding neighborhood is all zoned as “R” Low Density 

Residential. Granting our request to designate Lot 110A-1 as “R” Low Density Residential would ensure 

than any development on the lots is compatible with the surrounding area or neighborhood 

Additionally, the rezoning is aligned with “POLICY GRO-1.7: Transitions. Provide clear guidance to 

developers to ensure smooth transitions and/or compatibility between distinct land uses (i.e., 

between industrial or commercial and residential, including areas with mixed uses) or development 

densities/intensities.” Currently, Lot 110A’s zoning is governing by Conditional Ordinance 01-04, which 

allows for the construction of a Holistic Health Center or a Single-Family Residence, but gives no 

guidance or regulation about the development of such a center, or any guidance as to what would 

constitute a Holistic Health Center versus any other type of health center. Rezoning the lot to be “R” 

Low Density Residential would provide clear guidance to anyone who develops the land in the future 

and ensure “compatibility between distinct land uses” and “development densities” of the area. 

Another goal listed in the Master Plan is “GOAL GRO-2: Ensure public infrastructure, utilities, facilities, 

and services are sufficient to meet the needs of residents and businesses as the town grows.” The 

Master Plan includes a policy to support this goal of “POLICY GRO-2.3: Development Capacity. Monitor 

the Town’s capacity to support development based on existing infrastructure and facility capacity, 

population projections, and community desires.”  

Our rezoning request is in-line with this policy because, if granted, it will support less stress on the 

existing infrastructure and be in-line with community desires. If the lot is developed under the “R” Low 

Density Residential zoning designation rather than under a commercial zoning designation no additional 

public infrastructure, utilities, facilities, or services will be needed. Those currently in place are sufficient 

to meet the needs of residents under the requested zoning. Additionally, discussions with our neighbors 

and the HOA board confirmed our belief that our neighborhood community desires that our rezoning 

request be granted so that commercial development is not allowed on the lot. 

The Town Master Plan also lists a goal of “GOAL GRO-4: Develop a safe and efficient multi-modal 

transportation system, balancing the needs of all users.” As part of this goal, the Town adopted a policy 

of “POLICY GRO-4.2: Traffic Impacts of Development. Ensure that future development does not create 

traffic volumes or patterns that will create traffic hazards or interrupt traffic flow.”  

Our Solar Ranch neighborhood has unpaved streets and no sidewalks. We also have a large walking, 

running, and biking population. Some of this activity is on our neighborhood trails, but much of it takes 

place on the streets themselves. This is currently possible and safe because of the low volume of traffic 

in the neighborhood. If a Holistic Health Center were to be built on Lot 110-1, we would be concerned 

that the use of the center could lead to increased traffic volumes and would created traffic hazards in 

our neighborhood. Rezoning the lot to “R” Low Density Residential would ensure that future 

development on the lot does not create traffic volumes or patterns that will create traffic hazards. 

 

 



(updated as of September 2022 to add the Required Site Plan Items)



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 
 

Enclosure 1 

Evidence of Ownership of Lots 110A and 110B by the Applicant 

 

Included in Enclosure 1, please find the following documents: 

1) General Warranty Deed for Lots 110A and 110B recorded with Ouray County February 9, 2022, 
from Robert McKelvey and Karen McKelvey to Michael Len Wilson and Susan Carriere Wilson, 
trustees of the Wilson Living Trust dated December 5, 2017, and any amendments thereto 
(“Wilson Living Trust”);  

2) Certification of Trust for the Wilson Living Trust (with first page and title page of Trust 
Agreement included); 

3) Deed of Trust to Wells Fargo dated February 9, 2022 from the Wilson Living Trust; and 

4) Title Commitment on Lots 110A and 110B at the time of purchase by the Wilson Living Trust. 



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 

Enclosure 2 

 

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 110, SOLAR RANCHES FILING NO. 2C, TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 15, 2001 UNDER 

RECEPTION NO. 174776, COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 

 

Enclosure 3 

 

Improvement Survey Plat dated July 2021 as provided by Previous Owner of Lots 110A and 110B 

(updated as of September 2022 to add the Required Site Plan Items) 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 
 

 

Enclosure 4 

FINAL PLAT FOR  

WILSON SOLAR RANCH SUBDIVISION 

A REPLAT OF LOTS 110A AND LOT 110B, AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 110, OF SOLAR 

RANCHES, FILING NO. 2C, LOCATED WITHIN THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 16 TOWNSHIP 45 

NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TOWN OF RIDGWAY,  

OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 

 

 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 

 

Enclosure 5 

 

Approval Letter from HOA 

 



Letter to Planning Commission 

August 9, 2022 
Enclosures 
 

 

Enclosure 6 

 

Planning Commission Hearing Request 

 



Enclosure 1 
Evidence of Ownership of Lots 110A and 110B by the Applicant 

Included in Enclosure 1, please find the following documents: 

1) General Warranty Deed for Lots 110A and 110B recorded with Ouray County February 9, 2022, 
from Robert McKelvey and Karen McKelvey to Michael Len Wilson and Susan Carriere Wilson, 
trustees of the Wilson Living Trust dated December 5, 2017, and any amendments thereto 
(“Wilson Living Trust”);

2) Certification of Trust for the Wilson Living Trust (with first page and title page of Trust 
Agreement included);

3) Deed of Trust to Wells Fargo dated February 9, 2022 from the Wilson Living Trust; and

4) Title Commitment on Lots 110A and 110B at the time of purchase by the Wilson Living Trust.













































� �������	��
����������	��
�������������������������������� ���!�" ��##$!�#�%���&!���#�'�(�#$!�'�)*#%�'�*��+,��'$)��-��.�%���,���*%���%/�%��%��,,�!'*�0�%��%����..*,��.�%���,)�!1���'�!�,�!'�!�*��2�*,��%����!���!% �*#�#*%$�%�'/�%��!����3��"�������'��'#/��%��!�%����%���'��'4#5�2�*,��3�#%#.���#*��)���2��!#�*��%��%����2��!4#5�#%�%�'�*��+,��'$)��-��.�%���,���*%���%/�,��3� *�0�%���)��'�'�#,!*"�'�*��%�*#,���*%���%�2*%�*������!*�'��.�67����%�4#5��!*�!�%��%�������*%���%�8�%�/��9,��%��#�.�))�2#:������*#���'�!#����%�*#���'������!%��.�%���,���*%���%���'�*#�#$";�,%�%���))�%���%�!�#���'��!�3*#*��#�%��!��.���'��� �!*�!���'�!#����%#�%��!�%�<�=9,��%�%��%����9%��%��9�!�##) �#%�%�'/�*%���*%��!���'*.*�#��� ��.�%���%�!�#���'��!�3*#*��#�.�%���,���*%���%���'��� ��!*�!���'�!#����%/���!�'��#�*%��9%��'�%����..�,%*3��'�%���.�%���,���*%���%���'��� ��!*�!��'�!#����%/���!�'��#�*%�*�,!��#��%���&�)*, ����$�%�%��!��.<��!%*.*�'���!�$0��>��$�! �67/�6?66



����������	
��������� ��������������	
��������������������������������� ��������	
����������� � !������"#�$��#% " $&'�(&$!&)��*& ����+�*& ��#"#,-�).��������� /&���&��*�� +������0*�-�#"!&+1" &��'�� �+&.����������+�
�2�$� �����+�$�����3&+�4����'&�#&#�$��2������+�
�2�+�$�����3&+�4���$��2����51+&#�6��+&��3��1��+&+���$)��� ��� ��6��1&� �$&,�$�#&+�"� "��7+2���� 2����2��  *#�+�*& ��#���89�:���� ;�.<��=>� ;�=�� ;�=�� 5;�.<��=>�7 ;�=�� ����� �?��@��8� ;�=�� �?�*����������������������� �?����������������������1�)���1� )�5,&�&�$�61�#7 <=������� ;���=�>�1�)���1� )�5��#�A�*"#,& �=������� ;>�=���1�)���1� )�5+��"�$�+&!"� �=������� ;�>=>�+�3��$�#"+ "� ����5"#,-� ��=��<���� ;���=��+�3��$�#"+ "� ����*��#�5 >=������� ;�>�=�� �-���6�"#,-�) �=������� ;���=�>#�$$�+���(��&'& &)�#"+ " �=������� ;��=����$��#��"!&�-� &����+& �=������� ;��=��"#,-�)�6"&��� &� "���#"+ �=�<����� ;�>�=<� "���1� )�-� &����+&!��� �=<������B ;<�=<<"#,-�)�$"*�)�#"+ "� �=������� ;���=��&,"���$�+&!"�&��1 3�" ) �=�>����� ;��=�<+�3��$�#"+ "� ����+�$�"& �=������� ;���=�>�1�)���1� )�5&'+�61�#7 �=������� ;���=�� �-���6�"#,-�)��'��*��# �=��>���� ;��=>� �?���*���������� ��=������� ;�.<��=>�B��������$�C:
!���� �&+"#&� "�$�$� + ;�>�.��� ;�<.�����'����&+"#&� "�$�"'��!&'&� + ;�.�>� ;��� ���� ;�>�.�>� ;�<.���

DEE�FDG�EHIJ�KDEI�DLMNJFK�DOI�KNPQIRF�FM�RSDJTI�UNI�FM�IJUMOKILIJF�MV�RNOOIJF�FDGIK�PW�FSIEHIJSMEUIO�MO�FM�DUXIOFHKHJT�DJU�UHKFODHJF�YDOODJF�VIIKZ�RSDJTIK�LDW�MRRNO�DJU�FSI�FOIDKNOIO[KMVVHRI�YHEE�JIIU�FM�PI�RMJFDRFIU�\OHMO�FM�OILHFFDJRI�DVFIO�FSI�VMEEMYHJT�UDFIK]�\IOKMJDE�\OM\IOFWDJU�LMPHEI�SMLIK�̂�KI\FILPIO�_̀�OIDE�\OM\IOFW�̂�MRFMPIO�_Z�abc�defg�hbdf�ifjfklaemg�bkmngah�knha�oflbej�op�qbhr�mi�qbhrefih�qrfqstK\IRHDE�FDGHJT�UHKFOHRFK�DJU�FSI�PMNJUDOHIK�MV�KNRS�UHKFOHRFK�LDW�PI�MJ�VHEI�YHFS�FSI�PMDOU�MV�RMNJFWRMLLHKKHMJIOK̀�FSI�RMNJFW�REIOù�MO�FSI�RMNJFW�DKKIKKMOZFvwx�yz{|w}wy~|z���zx���|�w�y���z��~����{�w��{��z�z�|x�~xxzxxz�����z{�~�xz�~{~|z�~yy���|�����z{̀��z{x��~���{��z{|��|~�zx̀�|{~�x}z{�|~��{��wxyZ�|~��y���zy|z������zv~�}��}��|vz{�z�|w|wzx̀�x�zyw~���{���y~��w��{��z�z�|��wx|{wy|�~xxzxx�z�|x��{����w�z�v��zx̀����zxx�x�zyw}wy~����z�|w��z�ZH̀�|vz����z{xw��z�̀����vz{z���yz{|w}��|v~|�|vz�z�|w{z�~����|��}�|~�zx���z������|vz�~���z��zxy{w�z���~{yz�x��}�{z~���{��z{|��~���~����|x|~��w���x~�zx�}�{����~w��|~�zx�~x�xv�������|vz�{zy�{�x�w������}}wyz�}{����vwyv�|vz�x~�z��~��x|w����z�{z�zz�z���w|v�|vz�~����|{z��w{z��}�{�{z�z��|w���~{z�~x���|z��vz{zw�Z��H���w|�zxx��vz{z�}̀�H�v~�z�vz{z��|��xz|����v~���~���xz~�Z

qfiae�eqbaf�m��abcfh�jnf

Fv~������̀�Uzy�_�̀����_��]_�]���DL \~�z�_��}��



���������	
�����������������������������������������������
���
������������� !"#���$�!#%�& �"���!
'()*+,+'-*(�.,�*-/(0�12(

���	3������4������� # ���5�&5 ��6� ��7�� ��8� 



����������	
��������� ��������������	
��������������������������������� ��������	
���  �  ���!� "������#$�%��$&!#!%'(�)'%"'*�)�'�����+�,'!��$#"'#$-.�*/��������� 0'���'��,��!+������1,�.�$#"'+2#!'��(��!�+'/����������+�
�3�%�!�����+�%�����4'+�5����('�$'$�%��3����,�+�
�3�+�%�����4'+�5���%��3����62+'$�7��+'��4��2��+'+���%*���!���!��7��2'�!�%'-�%�$'+�#�!#��8+3����!3����3�� ����+�,'!��$���9:�;���� <�=�� <�/>��=�� <�=�� <�=�� <�=�� <�/>��=��!�����!�?��@��9� <�/>��=��!�?�,����������������� �����!�?����������������������2�*���2�!*�6-'�'�%�72�$8 �=������� <���=���2�*���2�!*�6��$�A�,#$-' �=������� <���=���2�*���2�!*�6+��#�%�+'"#� �=������� <��=��+�4��%�$#+!#�!����6#$-.� ��=������� <�/���=��+�4��%�$#+!#�!����,��$�6 >=������� <���=��!�.���7�#$-.�* �=������� <���=��$�%%�+���)��'('!'*�$#+!# �=������� <��=����%��$��#"'�$#+!#�! �=������� <�>=>�#$-.�*�7#'���!'�!#���$#+ �=������� <�>�=��!#���2�!*�.�!'����+'"��� �=�������B <���=��#$-.�*�%#,�*�$#+!#�! �=������� <���=��'-#���%�+'"#�'��2!4�#!* �=�>����� <��=��+�4��%�$#+!#�!����+�%�#' ��=������� <>��=���2�*���2�!*�6'(+�72�$8 �=������� <���=��!�?� �,���������� ��=>������ <�/>��=��B��������%�C;
'+�+#�-%'�7�(#%*'+#$'��'�%��$ <���/��� <��/���'+�+#�-%'�7�(#%*'+#$'��'�#(��"'('�!+ <�>�/��� <��/���!���� <�/���/��� <>�/���

DEE�FDG�EHIJ�KDEI�DLMNJFK�DOI�KNPQIRF�FM�RSDJTI�UNI�FM�IJUMOKILIJF�MV�RNOOIJF�FDGIK�PW�FSIEHIJSMEUIO�MO�FM�DUXIOFHKHJT�DJU�UHKFODHJF�YDOODJF�VIIKZ�RSDJTIK�LDW�MRRNO�DJU�FSI�FOIDKNOIO[KMVVHRI�YHEE�JIIU�FM�PI�RMJFDRFIU�\OHMO�FM�OILHFFDJRI�DVFIO�FSI�VMEEMYHJT�UDFIK]�\IOKMJDE�\OM\IOFWDJU�LMPHEI�SMLIK�̂�KI\FILPIO�_̀�OIDE�\OM\IOFW�̂�MRFMPIO�_Z�abc�defg�hbdf�ifjfklaemg�bkmngah�knha�oflbej�op�qbhr�mi�qbhrefih�qrfqstK\IRHDE�FDGHJT�UHKFOHRFK�DJU�FSI�PMNJUDOHIK�MV�KNRS�UHKFOHRFK�LDW�PI�MJ�VHEI�YHFS�FSI�PMDOU�MV�RMNJFWRMLLHKKHMJIOK̀�FSI�RMNJFW�REIOù�MO�FSI�RMNJFW�DKKIKKMOZFvwx�yz{|w}wy~|z���zx���|�w�y���z��~����{�w��{��z�z�|x�~xxzxxz�����z{�~�xz�~{~|z�~yy���|�����z{̀��z{x��~���{��z{|��|~�zx̀�|{~�x}z{�|~��{��wxyZ�|~��y���zy|z������zv~�}��}��|vz{�z�|w|wzx̀�x�zyw~���{���y~��w��{��z�z�|��wx|{wy|�~xxzxx�z�|x��{����w�z�v��zx̀����zxx�x�zyw}wy~����z�|w��z�ZH̀�|vz����z{xw��z�̀����vz{z���yz{|w}��|v~|�|vz�z�|w{z�~����|��}�|~�zx���z������|vz�~���z��zxy{w�z���~{yz�x��}�{z~���{��z{|��~���~����|x|~��w���x~�zx�}�{����~w��|~�zx�~x�xv�������|vz�{zy�{�x�w������}}wyz�}{����vwyv�|vz�x~�z��~��x|w����z�{z�zz�z���w|v�|vz�~����|{z��w{z��}�{�{z�z��|w���~{z�~x���|z��vz{zw�Z��H���w|�zxx��vz{z�}̀�H�v~�z�vz{z��|��xz|����v~���~���xz~�Z

qfiae�eqbaf�m��abcfh�jnf

Fv~������̀�Q~��_�̀�������]_�]���DL \~�z�_��}��



���������	
�����������������������������������������������
���
������������� !"#���$�!#%�& �"���!
'()*+,+'-*(�.,�*-/(0�12(

���	3��������	����� #  ��4��4&��5� ��6�� ��7� 



��������	
�������

��������������
�������������������������� ��!"#$"�%"&"&'"%�()�*#!!�#�&"&'"%�)+�),%�*!)$-./�("#&�01".-.-(-#(-./�#�0-%"�(%#.$+"%�)%�2%)3-4-./�0-%-./�-.$(%,*(-).$567897�:;<=97> ?@ABCCDDCEFG HIJ9>�CKLEDLECEEM7NO97JP�Q8879RR> GCS�TUVW�U��XYZW[�XY��\U][��?�AKŜE_�WUTW��?̀ �U���]?@X���?TWX�?X���?TWXaT�UTTYT�Ù ��b?X�\YXW��XÙ TbWX�ỲT�X@��Y?̀ Tb���	����c�U�������d
 �	����c�U���d���
 �	����c�_�d
���ef977g�hN<OigjRklm�enopqQ:prHstQuv�w6�mlxykM6�z6{�k|}~�|���kxm�ym���~tN7i�~m����my��l||x�~tN7i��I������������	�cd�d��wNjJI�J��g�9jR9>�w6�}|m�ywN<OIjP��g�9jR9>�w6xx�}�
z9Jf�M97iN�g�fklm�enopqQ:prHstQuv�w6�mlxykM6�z6{�k|}~�|���}k}�yl�|�~tN7i�~m||��yx}�xl�x�~tN7i��I����
����d��	�cd�d��wNjJI�J��g�9jR9>�w6x��}mkwN<OIjP��g�9jR9>�w6xx�}�

�I<g9�n9jRNjklm�enopqQ:prHstQuv�w6�mlxykM6�z6{�k|}~�|���}k}�yl�|�~tN7i�~m||��yx}�xl�x�~tN7i��I����
�����	�cd�d��wNjJI�J��g�9jR9>�w6x�|}||wN<OIjP��g�9jR9>�w6xx�}�b�����	
�U�������d
�Ij8�hgJ�9�6;7IP�wN;jJP�hgJ�9�h9I<klm�enopqQ:prHstQuv�w6�mlxykM6�z6{�k|}~�|���}k}�|��l�~tN7i�~m||��y|����k��~tN7i��I������
�����
�	�cd�d��V��
LV���
qrwnQo���o:�tr�e6:�Q:H�e�eQ:�wQppropotr�e6:v�hp�ehooe�6��hno�tr�e6:��r�r:s�hp�ehHQhoH�Howoqzop��v�k�l|v�Q:H�Q:u�Qqo:Hqo:hehnopoh6QJJ9jJgNj>�qrwnQo���o:�tr�e6:H9�g�9798��gI>�o�9�J7Njg��qIg� Uc
������T
		
�:rhoH�w6�:hpu�e:o��o�e�poQ�hu���wQJJ9jJgNj>�h6HH�ewnp6oHo�H9�g�9798��gI>�o�9�J7Njg��qIg�T
		
L?��
p6zoph�qw�o��ouv�Q�e6��:6t:�Qe�p6zoph�H�qw�o��ou�Q:H��Qpo:�qw�o��ouH9�g�9798��gI>��e�MNRJI��e97�g�9 �
��
�F�̀
������to��e��Qps6�zQ:��:�Q�QJJ9jJgNj>�to��e��Qps6�hrh�o�6pHop�9��R�I7�NJgJ�9N7897��9��R�I7�N��N<H9�g�9798��gI>�o�9�J7Njg��qIg�Uc
������V��
prHstQu�poQ��oehQho�w6pMQJJ9jJgNj>�:r:Qn�n�:hopH9�g�9798��gI>�o�9�J7Njg��qIg�



��������	
�������

���������������
�������	
��

�
�������������  !"#$$%%$&'( )*+���$,-&%-&$&&.�/0��+1�2����33� ($4�567��6�89:;�<�9:8�=6><�� �",4?&.*�+@�3� A:�B6�����C�=:�5 C�6C8�5!56C��699:�9��=:�5 C<��9!5���5� ���B��=:�5 C�:;:C���9!5��86��8�8���A7�9�#<�&$,%<�6C8�6C>�6A�C8A�C�5��B�9�� 9 7�9��A�D��;�><�6�5 �DC =C�65�9 7�9��8E�A�D��;�>�6C8�D69�CA�D��;�>F@3@+�G*H��I@+J�K3�L��3@+��*+�MMME	�NOEO���P/���@��Q+@/H3�+/�*H1�/P�/���/PP@Q�3R�������
�������	
�������O
��

��SH��K3�TU+�H����V/W��*X��./J@Q1�Y�2GI2��SH��K3�./J@Q1�Z[Y\]YZ[�̂_/��̀�3@��H+@*J�G*H�a bcde]fRZZg2GI2g�G/*H�./J@Q1�Z[Y\]YZ[�h�H�J���.��Qi*3��G/*H�̀*+� bfjkRZZTH�/�3���H+�2GI2�fR\YZ[ bZRZZTH�/�3���H+�\ZZYZ[ bZRZZTH�/�3���H+�VY\�̂l33����S@+i�V/��@+��H+a bZRZZI*U�V��+@P@Q*+� bZRZZ����	�m4<?$?E$$lP�G*H��I@+J��n�*�*H+���V/�0*H1�S@JJ����QJ/3@HX�+i@3�+�*H3*Q+@/Hd�+i��P��3�J@3+���*�/W��S@JJ����Q/JJ�Q+���*+QJ/3@HXR�o��p��������������
qC��
r�Ii���/Q���H+3�J@Hs���@H�+i@3�Q/��@+��H+�3i/�J�������W@�S���Q*��P�JJ1R�Ii�3���/Q���H+3d�3�Qi�*3�Q/W�H*H+3Q/H�@+@/H3�*H����3+�@Q+@/H3d��*1�*PP�Q+�+i��+@+J�d�/SH��3i@0�*H���3��/P�+i��0�/0��+1R�t/���*1�S@3i�+/��HX*X��J�X*J*33@3+*HQ��@H�/�����+/�P�JJ1��H���3+*H��*H�����*S*���/P�+i��@�0J@Q*+@/H3�/P�+i���PP�Q+�/P�+i�3���/Q���H+3�/H�1/��0�/0��+1R�o����������	
�8�O��
���r ����O������
O��
��$(-$u-&$$4����
�
O
��������E,"4"(% ����O������
O��
��$,-&,-&$$?����
�
O
��������E,%u"?u ����O������
O��
��$u-&4-&$$,����
�
O
��������E,%#%(%v	���A��w�xr ����O������
O��
��$#-,#-&$$,����
�
O
��������E,%4%%(



��������	
��������
��������
����
��	��
�������	����
���
����	�
������������
���
��
	���
����
��
���	���	��
	�
����
���������
���
����
�������
��
����
�	��������
��
	��
��	�
��
����
���
�	���
����
���
�������	���
 �����	��
�����
�������
����
	����������
����
��	��
�������	����

!"#$%&'(
)'*+,%-.
/%01 2344567789:(%;'($<
=>>('##1�?
@�AB��
C DEBF
 DCGH�IF
�J
KL?M�N0O**'P$QR'
S-$'1�LT�?T����
�	
UV��
W�X�60:%YQP<
$%
Z'
[##"'>
-.>
:(%;%#'>
[.#"('>1J\���]�
B̂	�����
��������
W�����
�
����
J\���]�
W�����
��L_��
̀���
 ������	���
����aW�������
D������VXD�b�B�
�Bc
HD�@Jc
�cC
@d@�c
��  DB B
HD�@JcF� d@�BB@
J�
�bB
HD�@Jc
�DEDcG
� d@�
C��BCCB�BXAB 
UF
��L_F
�cC
�cI
�XBcCXBc�@
�bB B�J eLFUUF������f����f
����
W�����
��L_��
A������
W�������
����
 �	�W�������
D������VHB��@
�� GJ
A�cgF
c���F
D�@
@d��B@@J @
�cCTJ �@@DGc@ eLFL_MF_U����h0ij'
'#$-$'
%(
Q.$'('#$
Q.
$j'
Y-.>
>'#P(QZ'>
%(
('*'(('>
$%
Q.
$jQ#
!%&&Q$&'.$
-.>
P%R'('>
j'('Q.
Q#1�
�BB
@DXW�B70iQ$Y'
$%
$j'
'#$-$'
%(
Q.$'('#$
P%R'('>
j'('Q.
Q#
-$
$j'
'**'P$QR'
>-$'
j'('%*
R'#$'>
Q.1 JAB �
X�gB�EBIF
��@J
gcJHc
�@
 JAB �
C�
X�gB�EBI
�cC
g� Bc
X�gB�EBI30ij'
,-.>
('*'(('>
$%
Q.
$jQ#
!%&&Q$&'.$
Q#
>'#P(QZ'>
-#
*%YY%k#1�J�@
LL��
�cC
LL�AF
�XBcCBC
W���
J�
�J�
LL�F
@J�� 
 �c�B@F
�D�DcG
cJ�
��F
�JHc
J� DCGH�IF
���J CDcG
�J
�bB
W���
�bB BJ�
 B�J CBC
X�I
LUF
���L
dcCB 
 B�BW�DJc
cJ�N47448F
�Jdc�I
J�
Jd �IF
@���B
J�
�J�J �CJ�

=,i=
!lmm[imO/ilY>
)';"ZYQP
/-$Q%.-Y
iQ$Y'
[.#"(-.P'
!%&;-.<nPj'>"Y'
= l(>'(
/"&Z'(1lo53224426+8



������������	
�������������
������������������������������������������� �����!�"���������#������
�����$�%&'())**)+,-�����.�����.����/��0��"���������������������$�������������������������������.�����������������/�����0��.�����������.�����������������.���������������������������/���/��������������������������������������/���/������1��������������������2�����������������������1��������������"�������������	3��������2 ��������0������������.���������������������������������������2 �����������������.�������������0���.������� ��������������������24��������������.������������������������������5�������������������������������0�0�������������������������������������������������6�����3������������5�������������������������� ������������278 9:;<=�<:>?�@A=�<B:>B:<%BACCD�E>C>:>EF+8 9:;<=�<:>?�@A=�<B:>B:<%BACCD�E>C>:>EF9:;<=�<:>?�@A=�<B:>B:<%BACCD�E>C>:>EFG8 9:;<=�<:>?�@A=�<B:>B:<%BACCD�E>C>:>EF9:;<=�<:>?�@A=�<B:>B:<%BACCD�E>C>:>EFH8 I>C>A=>�%J�E>>E�%J�:I&=:�EA:>E�B%K>?L>I�+GM�+)+7�JI%?�I%L>I:�?NO>CK>DM�AC=%�OB%@BA=�I%L>I:�E8�?NO>CK>D�ABE�OAI>B�?NO>CK>D�:%�:;>�P&LC<N�:I&=:>>�%J�%&IAD�N%&B:D�J%I:;>�&=>�%J�&8=8�LABO�BA:<%BAC�A==%N<A:<%B�:%�=>N&I>�:;>�=&?�%J�Q-**M)))8))�I>N%IE>EE>N>?L>I�)-M�+)+7M�&BE>I�I>N>P:<%B�B%8�RSTUVW8(8 E&CD�>X>N&:>E�ABE�ANOB%@C>EY>E�=:A:>?>B:�%J�A&:;%I<:D�=>::<BY�J%I:;�:;>�BA?>�%J:;>�@<C=%B�C<K<BY�:I&=:�EA:>E�E>N>?L>I�(M�+)7*�A=�A�:I&=:8�:;>�=:A:>?>B:�%J�A&:;%I<:D?&=:�=:A:>�&BE>I�@;<N;�CA@=�:;>�:I&=:�@A=�NI>A:>EM�:;>�?A<C<BY�AEEI>==�%J�:;>�:I&=:M:;>�BA?>�ABE�P%=<:<%B�%J�:;>�P>I=%B9=F�A&:;%I<Z>E�:%�>X>N&:>�<B=:I&?>B:=�N%BK>D<BYM>BN&?L>I<BYM�%I�%:;>I@<=>�AJJ>N:<BY�:<:C>�:%�I>AC�PI%P>I:D�%B�L>;ACJ�%J�:;>�:I&=:ABE�%:;>I@<=>�N%?PCD<BY�@<:;�:;>�PI%K<=<%B=�%J�=>N:<%B�G',G),7*+M�NI=8�B%:>[�:;>�=:A:>?>B:�%J�A&:;%I<:D�?&=:�L>�I>N%IE>E�@<:;�:;>�NC>IO�ABE�I>N%IE>I8B%:>[�:;>�:I&=:�AYI>>?>B:�J%I�:;>�@<C=%B�C<K<BY�:I&=:�EA:>E�E>N>?L>I�(M�+)7*E<=NC%=>=�?<N;A>C�C>B�@<C=%B�ABE�=&=AB�NAII<>I>�@<C=%B�9><:;>I�NAB�=<YBF�A=�:;>:I&=:>>=�A&:;%I<Z>E�:%�>X>N&:>�C>YAC�<B=:I&?>B:=�%B�L>;ACJ�%J�=A<E�>B:<:D8-8 @AIIAB:D�E>>E�JI%?�I%L>I:�?NO>CK>DM�AC=%�OB%@B�A=�I%L>I:�E8�?NO>CK>D�ABE�OAI>B?NO>CK>D�:%�?<N;A>C�C>B�@<C=%B�ABE�=&=AB�NAII<>I>�@<C=%BM�:I&=:>>=�%J�:;>�@<C=%BC<K<BY�:I&=:�EA:>E�E>N>?L>I�(M�+)7*M�ABE�ABD�A?>BE?>B:=�:;>I>:%�N%BK>D<BY�=&L\>N:PI%P>I:D8*8 E>>E�%J�:I&=:�JI%?�?<N;A>C�C>B�@<C=%B�ABE�=&=AB�NAII<>I>�@<C=%BM�:I&=:>>=�%J�:;>@<C=%B�C<K<BY�:I&=:�EA:>E�E>N>?L>I�(M�+)7*M�ABE�ABD�A?>BE?>B:=�:;>I>:%�:%�:;>�P&LC<N:I&=:>>�%J�%&IAD�N%&B:D�J%I�:;>�&=>�%J�@>CC=�JAIY%�LABOM�B8A8�:%�=>N&I>�:;>�=&?�%JQ7M7*GM*()8))8



�����������	
��
�����
���
�����������
���������	
��
���
������	
�����
��
��
�		����
��
����
�������
��
���
�������
��
�
	���	�������
����
���������
���
���������
�������
	���
���
�����	��
��	�����
����	
���
��
���
�����������
���������	
��
���������
���
�����	�
������	
��	��	��
��
���
����
���������
���
���������
��
�������
�	
���������	�
��
��
���
����
���������
�������	
���
��	���
��
���
�����������
����	������	
���������	
���
��������	
��
����������
����������
����
���
 
��
���
��������������������	
��
��
�������
��
����
�������
��
�����
��
�������
��
�
�����
����	�
����	
���
�		�		����	�
�������
!
��
���
�����������
���������	
��
��
�������
��
�����
����	
���
�		�		����	
���
���
����
"#"�
���
	��	������
����	������
����	
��$
��
���
�����������
���������	
���
������
������
����
�������������	
������
����
�
��
���
�����������
���������	
��
��
������
����
���������
�
	���	�������
���
����������
�����
�
������	
��
��
��������
��
	���
���
���
���������
��
��	����

%&'%
()**+'*,-')./
01234.56
-7859:7.
'58.1
+:;3<7:61
(9=27:>?6@1/3.1
AB
C7<8
+D01E35<1=1:8;F)</1<
-3=41<G
��H ##II#"�!%..
9J
8@1
J9..9K5:L
01E35<1=1:8;
=3;8
41
=18G



����������	�
�	���
����	�
���������������
���	��������	�����
�	��	�����������	�	�������	���
�������������
�	�
�

��	�����	���������	�
�	�	��	�
�
�	
�	�	��	�	�
���
���������
���	�������	������
�	��	����������	�	���������	
���	�	
����
�
����������
�������
��������
���������
����
�������
�	�	������
��
��
�	�	�����������������������	�	��������	�������������� �������	������	�����	

�	������������	�

������	����������	�
���������
�������	�	��	��������
���
	���
������������
�	�������	�
��������	��	������
����
	
������
������������
���������	�
������ � !��
�
�	�����
�����
��������
������������	�

������	����������	�
���������
�����"� ����
�������
�	��
��������
�������	���������	����������
�
�������	���
����
�	����	�
���	�
�	��	�������
��������
�������������	
����������
	
���������
�����	�
������������	����������	�
��������
�����#� ������
��������	�	������
�������
���
������������	
�����

	���
����

��	
�������
��������
��������������	����������	�
���������
�����$� %
�
�	�����
����
��������
������
�
�����������	�
���		
������������
�	
������	����
��������	�
�������
��������		�����������
&�
�	�	��	�
�
��
�	��
���	
��

�����	�����	��	�
���	
����	�
������
�����
����&��
�����
�����������
�	�
�
�	�	
�����	

�	�����	���
�	�

������

�����	���'����	�
�	�(� )�*����
�������
���
�	��	��	��
���	����������
���	������
������	�
�
������������	��������	���	��	��	�
��
��	��
�������
���
�	�����
������
	�������	�
���������
����+�)�*����

�������������������
����	��	�����
���	����	��
�������
���
�	�������	��
�������������

���������
	�
�����	���������	�
�
���������������
���������	�
���������
�����,� )�*�-���	
�	
���������������+�)�*�
�
��	�������
��
�	����������	
�	���������	����	���.����	�
�������
�	�

��+�)�*���	
����	������������	�	�
�	����	
���
�/��
0��!�	
��
��'��
��
���������������	���	����������
��
����
��
�����1��
�
�	����
������	�
����	����
������
���
�����	�
����������	
���	��������	����������
�23 456758�9:8�9;;<=58�>975<�<?@A76�BC<�D?:?:@E�9@<?;=F7=<9FE�D9:=B9;7=<?:@E�C<�C7A5<G=<GC656E�9:8�<?@A76�7C�8?7;A56�9:8�<565<4C?<6�=658�?:�;C::5;7?C:�>?7A�6=;A�>975<<?@A76E�9F6C�6=HI5;7�7C�7A5�<?@A7�CB�7A5�G<CG<?57C<�CB�9�45?:�C<�FC85�7C�5J7<9;7�9:8<5DC45�A?6�C<5�7A5<5B<CDE�6AC=F8�7A5�69D5�H5�BC=:8�7C�?:75<65;7�7A5�G<5D?656A5<5HK�@<9:758�?:�=:?758�679756�G975:7�<5;C<858�B5H<=9<K�LME�NOPQ�?:�HCCR�SM�97�G9@5$(3O3 <565<497?C:�CB�C:5TA9FB�CB�9FF�C?FE�@96�9:8�D?:5<9F�<?@A76E�<565<458�HK�<CH5<7F=:8@<5:�9:8�D9H5F�63�F=:8@<5:�?:�8558�<5;C<858�I9:=9<K�N2E�NOSL�?:�HCCR�NSL�97�G9@5 "�3NP3 5965D5:76E�;C:8?7?C:6E�;C45:9:76E�<567<?;7?C:6E�<565<497?C:6�9:8�:C756�C:�7A5�GF97CB�B?F?:@�:C3�L;�6CF9<�<9:;A56�<5;C<858�I9:=9<K�NUE�NOOM�=:85<�<5;5G7?C:�:C3��$$$��V9:8�7A5�9D5:858�GF97�CB�FC7�NNPE�6CF9<�<9:;56E�B?F?:@�:C3�L;E�7C>:�CB�<?8@>9KE<5;C<858�D9K�NWE�LPPN�=:85<�<5;5G7?C:�:C3��,#,,(3

�����'/XXY�X!Z�/����
�������Z�	��������	�
�Y������
�'������[��
���
�\����	�YY)!��
�	����*/�
�Z���
]�C=2WPPUUPLTS



��� ���������	�
��	������
�����
��
���
������

����������
��
��	�����
������
�����������
��
��	�����
��
�������������
��
���
����
����
����
������
���������
���������
�����������
������
������
�����
������
����������
�������
�������������
��������
��
������
��
�������
�
���
�����
��
��������
����
��
����������
������
��
���
������
���
���
��	����
��
�����������
��
���������
����������
���
�
��������
��
���������
��
��������	�
��	������
����������
��������������
��
����
������
��������
����
���
����
��
����
�� 
�
���
!!!"
��
�������
��������
��
��������
���
��������
�����
� �
���#
��
����
�� 
�
���
$%&"��
��
����������
��
����
����
����������
���������
��
������
���
�����������������
��
�'�
�((�
�
���������
���
)$&*&*
��
�
���������
���
)$&*&+"
��
����������
��������
����
� �
�((�
�����
���������
���
)$$,)$���� ������
����������
��
���	������
��
��������
��
�����	�����
���
��
������
������	��������
���
���
����
������
��
��������
��������
� �
���#
��
����
��(
����
$-+���� ������
����������
��
���	������
��
����������
���
��� .(��
��������
�������
�������������
�����
(/�
��� 
�
���������
���
)%&*0$�

1231
45667368935:;
<=>?@:AB
9CDAEFC:
3AD:=
7FG?HCFB=
4EI>CFJKBL=;?:=
MN
OCHD
77P8QB=>DAEFGR5H;=H
9?I@=HS
��/'((  (�.T



�����������	
��������������������
������������������������������������������������� !�� ��"���#$�% &����"���
������'(()*+,-)�.)/+)01)2�34�35564�78.�9:;3:;<:=�2)>?,2)@�+AB+�BCC�DE*?0)F+@�2)*),-)D�(E2�2)*E2D,FG�E2�(,C,FG�,F�+A)*C)2H�BFD�2)*E2D)2I@�E((,*)�@ABCC�*EF+B,F�B�+E/�0B2G,F�E(�B+�C)B@+�EF)�,F*A�BFD�B�C)(+4�2,GA+�BFD�1E++E0�0B2G,F�E(�B+�C)B@+EF)�ABC(�E(�BF�,F*AJ�KA)�*C)2H�BFD�2)*E2D)2�0BL�2)(?@)�+E�2)*E2D�E2�(,C)�BFL�DE*?0)F+�+AB+�DE)@�FE+�*EF(E204�)M*)/+�+AB+4+A)�2)>?,2)0)F+�(E2�+A)�+E/�0B2G,F�@ABCC�FE+�B//CL�+E�DE*?0)F+@�?@,FG�(E20@�EF�NA,*A�@/B*)�,@�/2E-,D)D�(E2�2)*E2D,FG�E2(,C,FG�,F(E20B+,EF�B+�+A)�+E/�0B2G,F�E(�+A)�DE*?0)F+J������7ECE2BDE�O,-,@,EF�E(�PF@?2BF*)�8)G?CB+,EF@�Q;3;R�2)>?,2)@�+AB+�S'-)2L�+,+C)�)F+,+L�@ABCC�1)�2)@/EF@,1C)�(E2�BCC�0B++)2@NA,*A�B//)B2�E(�2)*E2D�/2,E2�+E�+A)�+,0)�E(�2)*E2D,FG�NA)F)-)2�+A)�+,+C)�)F+,+L�*EFD?*+@�+A)�*CE@,FG�BFD�,@�2)@/EF@,1C)�(E22)*E2D,FG�E2�(,C,FG�E(�C)GBC�DE*?0)F+@�2)@?C+,FG�(2E0�+A)�+2BF@B*+,EF�NA,*A�NB@�*CE@)DSJ�T2E-,D)D�+AB+�UBFD�K,+C)V?B2BF+))�7E0/BFL�*EFD?*+@�+A)�*CE@,FG�E(�+A)�,F@?2)D�+2BF@B*+,EF�BFD�,@�2)@/EF@,1C)�(E2�2)*E2D,FG�+A)�C)GBCDE*?0)F+@�(2E0�+A)�+2BF@B*+,EF4�)M*)/+,EF�F?01)2�W�N,CC�FE+�B//)B2�EF�+A)�XNF)2I@�K,+C)�TEC,*L�BFD�+A)�U)FD)2@�TEC,*LNA)F�,@@?)DJ������Y((,20B+,-)�0)*ABF,*I@�C,)F�/2E+)*+,EF�(E2�+A)�XNF)2�0BL�1)�B-B,CB1C)�Z+L/,*BCCL�1L�D)C)+,EF�E(�'M*)/+,EF�FEJ�<�E(.*A)D?C)�[4�.)*+,EF�R�E(�+A)�7E00,+0)F+�(2E0�+A)�XNF)2I@�TEC,*L�+E�1)�,@@?)D\�?/EF�*E0/C,BF*)�N,+A�+A)�(ECCEN,FG*EFD,+,EF@]

Ê�*E-)2BG)�N,CC�1)�G,-)F�?FD)2�BFL�*,2*?0@+BF*)@�(E2�CB1E2�E2�0B+)2,BC�(E2�NA,*A�+A)�,F@?2)D�AB@�*EF+2B*+)D�(E2�E2BG2))D�+E�/BLJ

KA)�.?1_)*+�2)BC�/2E/)2+L�0BL�1)�CE*B+)D�,F�B�@/)*,BC�+BM,FG�D,@+2,*+JZY\Y�*)2+,(,*B+)�E(�+BM)@�D?)�C,@+,FG�)B*A�+BM,FG�_?2,@D,*+,EF�N,CC�1)�E1+B,F)D�(2E0�+A)�*E?F+L�+2)B@?2)2�E(�+A)�*E?F+L�,FNA,*A�+A)�2)BC�/2E/)2+L�,@�CE*B+)D�E2�+AB+�*E?F+L�+2)B@?2)2I@�B?+AE2,̀)D�BG)F+�?FC)@@�+A)�/2E/E@)D�,F@?2)D�/2E-,D)@N2,++)F�,F@+2?*+,EF@�+E�+A)�*EF+2B2LJ�Z(E2�BF�XNF)2I@�TEC,*L�E(�K,+C)�PF@?2BF*)�/)2+B,F,FG�+E�B�@BC)�E(�2)@,D)F+,BC�2)BC/2E/)2+L\JZ[\KA)�,F(E20B+,EF�2)GB2D,FG�@/)*,BC�D,@+2,*+@�BFD�+A)�1E?FDB2,)@�E(�@?*A�D,@+2,*+@�0BL�1)�E1+B,F)D�(2E0�+A)�[EB2D�E(7E?F+L�7E00,@@,EF)2@4�+A)�7E?F+L�7C)2H�BFD�8)*E2D)24�E2�+A)�7E?F+L�Y@@)@@E2JZ7\

KA)�CBFD�D)@*2,1)D�,F�.*A)D?C)�Y�E(�+A,@�*E00,+0)F+�0?@+�1)�B�@,FGC)�(B0,CL�2)@,D)F*)�NA,*A�,F*C?D)@�B*EFDE0,F,?0�E2�+ENFAE?@)�?F,+JZY\̂ E�CB1E2�E2�0B+)2,BC@�AB-)�1))F�(?2F,@A)D�1L�0)*ABF,*@�E2�0B+)2,BC;0)F�(E2�/?2/E@)@�E(�*EF@+2?*+,EF�EF�+A)�CBFDD)@*2,1)D�,F�.*A)D?C)�Y�E(�+A,@�7E00,+0)F+�N,+A,F�+A)�/B@+�=�0EF+A@JZ[\KA)�7E0/BFL�0?@+�2)*),-)�BF�B//2E/2,B+)�B((,DB-,+�,FD)0F,(L,FG�+A)�7E0/BFL�BGB,F@+�?F;(,C)D�0)*ABF,*I@�BFD0B+)2,BC;0)FI@�C,)F@JZ7\KA)�7E0/BFL�0?@+�2)*),-)�/BL0)F+�E(�+A)�B//2E/2,B+)�/2)0,?0JZO\P(�+A)2)�AB@�1))F�*EF@+2?*+,EF4�,0/2E-)0)F+@�E2�0B_E2�2)/B,2@�?FD)2+BH)F�EF�+A)�/2E/)2+L�+E�1)�/?2*AB@)D�N,+A,F@,M�0EF+A@�/2,E2�+E�+A)�OB+)�E(�7E00,+0)F+4�+A)�2)>?,2)0)F+@�+E�E1+B,F�*E-)2BG)�(E2�?F2)*E2D)D�C,)F@�N,CC�,F*C?D)]D,@*CE@?2)�E(�*)2+B,F�*EF@+2?*+,EF�,F(E20B+,EFa�(,FBF*,BC�,F(E20B+,EF�B@�+E�+A)�@)CC)24�+A)�1?,CD)2�BFD�E2�+A)*EF+2B*+E2a�/BL0)F+�E(�+A)�B//2E/2,B+)�/2)0,?0�(?CCL�)M)*?+)D�PFD)0F,+L�YG2))0)F+@�@B+,@(B*+E2L�+E�+A)�*E0/BFL4BFD4�BFL�BDD,+,EFBC�2)>?,2)0)F+@�B@�0BL�1)�F)*)@@B2L�B(+)2�BF�)MB0,FB+,EF�E(�+A)�B(E2)@B,D�,F(E20B+,EF�1L�+A)7E0/BFLJZ'\



��������	
����������������������������
���	��������� !��
��������""#��
����$��	%
�"�#������&&�&��
�'�
�#�
���������&���	�#��
�����
������
���	�'�(	�&����
�	(����
�����������'�#��)��*
��������	
�����������������+,-.,�.��/��
���#�$(�#���0��$���#��"	���'��(�#
�������&"#�����	�&�
#��'����(��
��	��(�	&������������
�	�������&"����(�	����"�	"�
���(�'�(	��'�����	���&"������'�(	��'������&"���*�����#��
�&�����#�'���&"	�
��&����(���
��'����#��(���
�	��������'�����#�'�&���
*�1�����
�	�������&"�����	�������(������
�	������&"����$���0��$���#��"	���'�
�(�#
�������&"#�����	�&�
#��'����(��
��	���(�	&���������"�#�����#'�	��	��#��&���(�	���"�	"�
���(�'�(	��'�����	���&"������'�(	��'����"�#�����#'�	��	��#��&���$���	���	'�����
�#�&����	��$�	'"����#��(	�&���
�	�����"	����'
�
��##����	�"�	�'��������#�	�'��2���
�����(�/�
�	�����$��������2�"�	&����(����#��	��1������
*��������	
��������#�	�'��2���
�����(�/�
�	���������#����
�+�������������
���	�����������(��������#���#����(����#�
���"	�������#��	�(�	����#��'�	��"�	���
�	��#�

����	�
�##�	��������������$�����
�	��
�����*��������	
�����������������,3.,�.,�.����#�	�'�����	��
�&���	�&��#�����	�4��	��#��
���'��'
���'����	'���&��
��
����	��#��&����'�����'�����&&��������������#���*�5���&�������
��������
��	�&������	�4�����(�	����'���&��*

!�����	���
�	���	'�'����'����������&���	�#��
�����
������
���	�'��#��
�'���	����	$�
���������'�(	�&���
�	(�����
�����'������	���
�
��
����#�#�0�#����'��������	'�"�	����#'
�
�&���	��##����	�
������#����
�����	&���	�#
���	������	&�#����	���������"	�"�	�6���',1.!���
����&���	�#��
���&������#�'�����	���������	���'��
�����"	�"�	��$��������
�	(�����$��	%
"�	&�

���*,).



��������������	�
������
�������	���������������������
������������������������
����	������������������������������������
����������������
�������������������������������
�������������� �����!"#$�%�%��#�&#'������('��#��"�#)�*� %����+��,'�"� ����-#�!� &�����.� ��)#"�*� %����+��/ �'"� (�-#"!#"���# �� %�0+%�1�!'2+�(�3���# �+����+��/ �'"� (��-#�!� &45��6� ��&#'��#�7 #6������6��"�(#. �8��� %�"��!�(��&#'"�!"�$�(&��9!�(����# ��� %�����"�:'�"��� ���#)�)�%�"�+�� %������!"�$�(&�+�6�4�/ )#"����# ���('"��&����# ��#)�#'"���.�����!"�#"�����4�5��"�(#. �8���������� ��� � .�&#'"��"'���� %�(# )�%� (��������2�%"#(7�#)�#'"�2'�� ���4�5����� ��� �� %�"�.'+�"+&�"�$��6�� ��" �+�� %��9��" �+���)�.'�"%���.�� ���' �'��#"�8�%�((�����#�&#'"� # ;!'2+�(�!�"�# �+�� )#"����# �<=>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# =?4/ �����(#'"���#)�#'"�2'�� ���@�6����&�(#++�(��>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# ��2#'��&#'�)"#�A�!!+�(���# ��#"�#���"�)#"���6��"�(��$��)"#��&#'@�� (+'%� .�(#��' �(���# ���� ����"#'.���BC@�#'"�6�2;2���%�"� ��(��# ��� �.��� ���&����D&#'"��"� ��(��# ��6���@�#"�)"#��������"$�(���2�� .�!�")#"��%�2&�'�@�#'"��))�+�����@�#"�#���"�D��(# �'��"�"�!#"�� .��.� (&@��)��'(��� )#"����# ����!"#$�%�%��#�'��� �(#  �(��# �6����&#'"��"� ��(��# D� %����!'2+�(�"�(#"%����� ��� �%�2&�.#$�" �� ��+�� ������������6��#2��� ������"�%�"�(�+&�)"#����#���� ������@�#"�)"#�#'"��))�+������� %� # ;�))�+�����40'"�!#+�(����"�.�"%� .�����!"#��(��# �#)�����(# )�%� ���+��&�� %���('"��&�#)�&#'"�>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# ��"�����)#++#6�A5��"���"�(���((�����#��++�>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# ��2#'��&#'��#���#�����!+#&����6�#� ��%��#�7 #6������� )#"����# �� #"%�"��#�!"#$�%��!"#%'(���� %���"$�(����#�&#'45����&����"��&#'"�>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# �6�����))�+����%�(# �"�(�#"��#"���"$�(��!"#$�%�"��6�#�!"#$�%����"$�(���� ����(#'"���#)�#'"�2'�� ���@�2'��# +&��#������9�� �� �(����"&�)#"�������!"#$�%�"���#�!�")#"������"���"$�(���� %��#!"#$�%����������"$�(����#�&#'������&�2��"�:'�"�%�2&�&#'"��"� ��(��# 45����� ��� �!�&��(�+@��+�(�"# �(�� %�!"#(�%'"�+���)�.'�"%�������(#�!+&�6����)�%�"�+���� %�"%���#�!"#��(��&#'">�"�# �+�/ )#"����# �)"#��' �'��#"�8�%��((����#"�� �"'��# 4E�!+#&����6�#�$�#+����#'"���"�(��!#+�(����� %�!"#(�%'"���"�.�"%� .�!"�$�(&��"���'2F�(���#�%��(�!+� �"&��(��# 45��"�.'+�"+&����������('"��&���� %�"%��� %�!"#(�%'"����#�!"#��(���.�� ���' �'��#"�8�%��((�����#�>�"�# �+/ )#"����# 45E�G0�30��G/�-*0�E�H3I�>E1�03H*�/3J01BH�/03�HK0L��I0L�5/�M�H3I03E�J01�H3I�>L1>0�E��MH�/��30����H�EG�HK0NE�01�>E1B/��EG�KI�*H54-# ����� ��6�����!!+�(�2+��!"�$�(&�+�6�@����"���"���#������'���# ��� �6��(��>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# ���&�2��%��(+#��%4�5���&�%��(+#���&#'"�>�"�# �+�/ )#"����# �6�� �&#'�%�"�(��#"�.�$��'��!�"�����# D�6�� �6���"��"�:'�"�%�2&�+�6��#�%#��#@�)#"�9��!+�@��)�6���"����"$�%����'2!#� �D�#"�6�� �6���'�!�(��)"�'%'+� ��#"�("��� �+��(��$�����4�5���+�#���&�%��(+#���&#'">�"�# �+�/ )#"����# �6�� �#���"6����!�"�����%�2&��!!+�(�2+��!"�$�(&�+�6���'(����@�)#"��9��!+�@�6�� �%��(+#�'"���� ��%�%��#�� )#"(��#'"�"�.�����"��� .�#'��#)�� &��."���� �@��"� ��(��# �#"�"�+���# ���!�6����&#'40'"�!#+�(&�"�.�"%� .�%��!'���"��#+'��# �������)#++#6�A�H &�(# �"#$�"�&�#"�(+�����"��� .�#'��#)�#"�"�+��� .��#�#'"�!"�$�(&!#+�(&@�#"�����2"��(�����"�#)@����++�2������+�%�2&��"2��"���# �� ��((#"%� (��6��������"'+���#)�����H��"�(� �H"2��"���# H��#(����# @�� %�F'%.�� ��'!# ������6�"%�"� %�"�%�2&������"2��"��#"<�?���&�2��� ��"�%�� �� &�(#'"����$� .�F'"��%�(��# ���"�#)4



�����������	�
����������
��������������������������������������������
����������������������� !�"�# $�% �#&'(()*��+�,�%������#!���,� !��&&#������,,'#��!#�������#����(#��!,'� !%#��(�%�#,-� ((�%( ��,�����#�#$�#,�,�'.+�� . �!,���+#�%��� !)��!/�(/�!.��+#�%�!�#!���&��+�,%������#!������+#���(�%)��',��0#�0 ,#$�,�(#()��!�%�!�� %�-�+�,�%������#!���,�!��� !� 0,�� %���&����(#1��#������&��+#�%�!$����!��&����(#1�(#. (����!��!1����!��!��&����(#1������+#��#��#,#!� ���!��&��+#�,� �',��&����(#-��+#����%#$'�#,�',#$�0)��+#�%��� !)����$#�#���!#��!,'� 0�(��)��&��+#����(#1��!%('$�!. !)�,# �%+� !$�#2 ��! ���!1� �#�������#� �)�����+#�%��� !)1�3#�#��#�&���#$�,�(#()�&����+#�0#!#&����&��+#�%��� !)1� !$%�# �#�!��#2�� %�!�� %�' (�(� 0�(��)���� !)��#�,�!1��!%('$�!.� ������,#$��!,'�#$-�+#�%��� !)4,��0(�. ���!�'!$#���+�,�%������#!���,�����,,'#� ���(�%)���� ������,#$��!,'�#$��$#!��&�#$��!�,%+#$'(#� ��! %%��$ !%#�3��+��+#��#��,� !$����/�,��!,��&��+�,�%������#!�-��+#�%��� !)�+ ,�!��(� 0�(��)�����0(�. ���!��!/�(/�!.��+#%�!�#!���&��+�,�%������#!����� !)���+#���#�,�!-�-��55�5�������667��8�9�:,;<=>?@�@A�@B>�!A@C?>D�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@��"�>I;CH>J>K@LD�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@���"#M?>N@CAKLD�GKE�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAKL1��FE��>N;<FC?�!G@CAKGF��C@F>��KL;HGK?>%AJNGKO1�G��CKK>LA@G�?AHNAHG@CAK�P@B>�Q%AJNGKORS1�?AJJC@L�@A�CLL;>�@B>��AFC?O�G??AHECKT�@A�@B>�@>HJL�GKE�NHAUCLCAKL�AV�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@-��BCL�%AJJC@J>K@�CL>VV>?@CU>�GL�AV�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�$G@>�LBAWK�CK�,?B>E;F>� �VAH�>G?B��AFC?O�E>L?HC<>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� 1�AKFO�WB>K�@B>�%AJNGKO�BGL�>K@>H>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� �<A@B�@B>LN>?CVC>E�EAFFGH�GJA;K@�GL�@B>��HANAL>E��AFC?O� JA;K@�GKE�@B>�KGJ>�AV�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E-��V�GFF�AV�@B>�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@��"�>I;CH>J>K@L�BGU>�KA@�<>>K�J>@WC@BCK�X�JAK@BL�GV@>H�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�$G@>1�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@�@>HJCKG@>L�GKE�@B>�%AJNGKO4L�FCG<CFC@O�GKE�A<FCTG@CAK�>KE-��55�5�������Y���6Z-�$#&�!����!,
[-��V�GFF�AV�@B>�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@��"�>I;CH>J>K@L�BGU>�KA@�<>>K�J>@�WC@BCK�@B>�@CJ>�N>HCAE�LN>?CVC>E�CK�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�@A��LL;>��AFC?O1�%AJJC@J>K@�@>HJCKG@>LGKE�@B>�%AJNGKO4L�FCG<CFC@O�GKE�A<FCTG@CAK�>KE-\-��B>�%AJNGKO4L�FCG<CFC@O�GKE�A<FCTG@CAK�CL�FCJC@>E�<O�GKE�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@�CL�KA@�UGFCE�WC@BA;@*
]-���58̂ �:_6��̀a�����̂5��Y�B>�%AJNGKO�JGO�GJ>KE�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@�G@�GKO�@CJ>-��V�@B>�%AJNGKO�GJ>KEL�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@�@A�GEE�G�E>V>?@1�FC>K1�>K?;J<HGK?>1�GEU>HL>�?FGCJ1�AHA@B>H�JG@@>H�H>?AHE>E�CK�@B>��;<FC?��>?AHEL�NHCAH�@A�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�$G@>1�GKO�FCG<CFC@O�AV�@B>�%AJNGKO�CL�FCJC@>E�<O�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAK�b-��B>%AJNGKO�LBGFF�KA@�<>�FCG<F>�VAH�GKO�A@B>H�GJ>KEJ>K@�@A�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@-b-�95�̂ ���6��	�9̂c9�:C-�?AJNFO�WC@B�@B>�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@��"�>I;CH>J>K@LDCC-�>FCJCKG@>1�WC@B�@B>�%AJNGKO4L�WHC@@>K�?AKL>K@1�GKO�,?B>E;F>�01��GH@���"#M?>N@CAKLD�AHCCC-�G?I;CH>�@B>��C@F>�AH�?H>G@>�@B>��AH@TGT>�?AU>H>E�<O�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@-

QdKAWF>ET>R�AH�QdKAWKR*� ?@;GF�AH�CJN;@>E�eKAWF>ET>1�<;@�KA@�?AKL@H;?@CU>�KA@C?>�CJNGH@>E�<O�@B>��;<FC?��>?AHEL-PGSQ(GKER*��B>�FGKE�E>L?HC<>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� �GKE�GVVCM>E�CJNHAU>J>K@L�@BG@�<O�FGW�?AKL@C@;@>�H>GF�NHAN>H@O-��B>�@>HJ�Q(GKER�EA>L�KA@�CK?F;E>�GKONHAN>H@O�<>OAKE�@B>�FCK>L�AV�@B>�GH>G�E>L?HC<>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� 1�KAH�GKO�HCTB@1�@C@F>1�CK@>H>L@1�>L@G@>1�AH�>GL>J>K@�CK�G<;@@CKT�L@H>>@L1�HAGEL1�GU>K;>L1GFF>OL1�FGK>L1�WGOL1�AH�WG@>HWGOL1�<;@�@BCL�EA>L�KA@�JAECVO�AH�FCJC@�@B>�>M@>K@�@BG@�G�HCTB@�AV�G??>LL�@A�GKE�VHAJ�@B>�(GKE�CL�@A�<>�CKL;H>E�<O�@B>��AFC?O-P<SQ�AH@TGT>R*� �JAH@TGT>1�E>>E�AV�@H;L@1�AH�A@B>H�L>?;HC@O�CKL@H;J>K@1�CK?F;ECKT�AK>�>UCE>K?>E�<O�>F>?@HAKC?�J>GKL�G;@BAHCf>E�<O�FGW-P?S��Q�AFC?OR*�#G?B�?AK@HG?@�AV�@C@F>�CKL;HGK?>1�CK�G�VAHJ�GEAN@>E�<O�@B>� J>HC?GK�(GKE��C@F>� LLA?CG@CAK1�CLL;>E�AH�@A�<>�CLL;>E�<O�@B>�%AJNGKON;HL;GK@�@A�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@-PES��Q�HANAL>E��KL;H>ER*�#G?B�N>HLAK�CE>K@CVC>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� �GL�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E�AV�>G?B��AFC?O�@A�<>�CLL;>E�N;HL;GK@�@A�@BCL�%AJJC@J>K@-P>SQ�HANAL>E��AFC?O� JA;K@R*�#G?B�EAFFGH�GJA;K@�LN>?CVC>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� �GL�@B>��HANAL>E��AFC?O� JA;K@�AV�>G?B��AFC?O�@A�<>�CLL;>E�N;HL;GK@�@A�@BCL%AJJC@J>K@-PVSQ�;<FC?��>?AHELR*��>?AHEL�>L@G<FCLB>E�;KE>H�L@G@>�L@G@;@>L�G@�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�$G@>�VAH�@B>�N;HNAL>�AV�CJNGH@CKT�?AKL@H;?@CU>�KA@C?>�AV�JG@@>HLH>FG@CKT�@A�H>GF�NHAN>H@O�@A�N;H?BGL>HL�VAH�UGF;>�GKE�WC@BA;@�dKAWF>ET>-PTSQ�C@F>R*��B>�>L@G@>�AH�CK@>H>L@�E>L?HC<>E�CK�,?B>E;F>� -PBS@B>�!A@C?>DPGS@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�@A��LL;>��AFC?ODP<S@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAKLDP?S,?B>E;F>� DPES,?B>E;F>�01��GH@��"�>I;CH>J>K@LD�GKEP>S,?B>E;F>�01��GH@���"#M?>N@CAKLD�GKEPVSG�?A;K@>HgLCTKG@;H>�<O�@B>�%AJNGKO�AH�C@L�CLL;CKT�GT>K@�@BG@�JGO�<>�CK�>F>?@HAKC?�VAHJ-PTS
�B>�%AJNGKO4L�FCG<CFC@O�;KE>H�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAK�]�CL�FCJC@>E�@A�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E4L�G?@;GF�>MN>KL>�CK?;HH>E�CK�@B>�CK@>HUGF�<>@W>>K�@B>%AJNGKO4L�E>FCU>HO�@A�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E�AV�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�GKE�@B>�E>FCU>HO�AV�@B>�GJ>KE>E�%AJJC@J>K@1�H>L;F@CKT�VHAJ�@B>��HANAL>E�KL;H>E4L�TAAE�VGC@B�H>FCGK?>�@A*PGS�B>�%AJNGKO�LBGFF�KA@�<>�FCG<F>�;KE>H�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAK�bPGS�CV�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E�H>I;>L@>E�@B>�GJ>KEJ>K@�AH�BGE�dKAWF>ET>�AV�@B>JG@@>H�GKE�ECE�KA@�KA@CVO�@B>�%AJNGKO�G<A;@�C@�CK�WHC@CKT-P<S�B>�%AJNGKO�WCFF�AKFO�BGU>�FCG<CFC@O�;KE>H�%AJJC@J>K@�%AKEC@CAK�]�CV�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E�WA;FE�KA@�BGU>�CK?;HH>E�@B>�>MN>KL>�BGE�@B>%AJJC@J>K@�CK?F;E>E�@B>�GEE>E�JG@@>H�WB>K�@B>�%AJJC@J>K@�WGL�VCHL@�E>FCU>H>E�@A�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E-P?S�B>�%AJNGKO4L�FCG<CFC@O�LBGFF�KA@�>M?>>E�@B>�F>LL>H�AV�@B>��HANAL>E��KL;H>E4L�G?@;GF�>MN>KL>�CK?;HH>E�CK�TAAE�VGC@B�GKE�E>L?HC<>E�CK�%AJJC@J>K@%AKEC@CAKL�bPGSPCS�@BHA;TB�bPGSPCCCS�AH�@B>��HANAL>E��AFC?O� JA;K@-PES�B>�%AJNGKO�LBGFF�KA@�<>�FCG<F>�VAH�@B>�?AK@>K@�AV�@B>��HGKLG?@CAK��E>K@CVC?G@CAK�$G@G1�CV�GKO-P>S



�����������	�
������
����	�������������
��������
�������
������������
����������������������	�������������������������������� ���� ���!"#$��%&������ �"�'%�(")� ���'�#� �*�$�)$"���"(��������� � '������)��+��+"##� #�� ����*�$"'�+��������������������� �����" � ��!"#$��%&������ �(")� ���$�)$"���"(�$)",�*����+'"�����")���  '�#�� ���),�+���-���.
/�
.����
���	����!"#$��%�#�%�$)",�*�0�� � ���)�1��� �"(���2)"$"��*�3���)�*0���$)"4(")#��$"'�+%��''�� )� ���� ���+",�)���� �� � ���!"#$��%�#�%�$)",�*���5�$)"4(")#�$"'�+%���� ��)�)�('�+ �� ���� � ���"(��� '��� � ��� �#�� �� � ���$)"4(")#��$"'�+%����*�'�,�)�*� "���2)"$"��*�3���)�*0��")����� ���+"##� #�� � "�����)��6���.���.���
�����2"'�+%�+"� ���������)7� )� �"��+'������5''��)7� )�7'��#�  �)��8���� ���2)"$"��*�2"'�+%�5#"�� ����9:0;;;0;;;�")�'�������''�7���)7� )� �*�� � ���"$ �"��"(�� ��)� ���!"#$��%�")� ���2)"$"��*�3���)�*���� ����<+'���,��)�#�*%�"(� ���$�) �����5�2)"$"��*�3���)�*�#�%�)�,��8���+"$%�"(� ����)7� )� �"��)�'���� �  $=>>888��' ��")�>�)7� )� �"��3?�@3�?ABB�@CADAEF0�G��*��� '��3���)��+��!")$")� �"������+����*�� ��+")$")� ����#����*����'� "�7���((�<�*�7%�� ��*�'%��� �")�H�*�"((�+�)��"�� ���*� ����"8����B+��*�'��5� "�7��,�'�*�8����+"�� �)�����*�7%���,�'�*� ����"((�+�)�")�" ��)��� �")�H�*������ ")%�3����*�7%=G��*��� '��I��)�� ���!"#$��%J;JJ�A�� �F�)� �5,�����B�� ���;;�K��,�)0�!"'")�*"�-;:;�J;J4J:L4L--;!)����M��D�� �0�B���")�N�+��2)���*�� �����$�������"�'%���$�) �"(���:;L��5G�5O�!"##� #�� �(")��� '��3���)��+�������*�7%�E'*�D�$�7'�+�?� �"��'��� '��3���)��+��!"#$��%�������!"##� #�� �����" ,�'�*�8� �"� � ���?" �+�P� ���!"##� #�� � "�3�����2"'�+%P� ���!"##� #�� �!"�*� �"��P�B+��*�'��5P�B+��*�'��M0�2�) �3QD�1��)�#�� �P���*�B+��*�'��M0�2�) �33QA<+�$ �"��P���*���+"�� �)4����� �)��7%� ���!"#$��%�")�� �������������� � �� �#�%�7������'�+ )"��+�(")#���!"$%)��� �:;;�4:;L��5#�)�+���G��*��� '��5��"+�� �"���5''�)��� ��)���),�*���������"(� ����F")#�R")���%�*�)�,� �,�� ��)�"(S����)�� )�+ �*� "�5G�5�'�+���������*�5G�5�#�#7�)������""*�� ��*�������"(� ���*� ��"(������5''�" ��)�������)�$)"��7� �*��D�$)�� �*���*�)�'�+�����()"#� ���5#�)�+���G��*��� '��5��"+�� �"��

3���"��,�� ����''� ���!"#$��%�7��"7'��� �*� "������� ���2"'�+%�)�(�))�*� "���� ����!"##� #�� ���'�����''�"(� ���B+��*�'��M0�2�) �3QD�1��)�#�� ���,��7����#� � "� ����� ��(�+ �"��"(� ���!"#$��%�R(S3����%��,�� 0� ���!"#$��%&��'��7�'� %����'�#� �*�7%� ��� �)#����*�$)",���"���"(� ���2"'�+%�R�SE�'%���2)"$"��*�3���)�*��*�� �(��*����B+��*�'��50���*��"�" ��)�$�)�"�0�#�%�#�T����+'��#���*�)� ����!"##� #�� �R�S5�%�+'��#�#�� �7��7���*����+"� )�+ ���*�#�� �7��)�� )�+ �*��"'�'%� "� ��� �)#����*�$)",���"���"(� ����!"##� #�� �R7SU� �'� ���2"'�+%���������*0� ����!"##� #�� 0����'�� �)�,���*0���� ����<+'���,����*��� �)����)��#�� �7� 8���� ���$�) ����8� ��)��$�+ � "� �����7V�+ #�  �)�"(� ����!"##� #�� ���*���$�)��*����''�$)�")�+"##� #�� ����" �� �"��0�)�$)���� � �"��0���*�$)"$"��'��"(���%�T��*0�8�� ��)�8)�  ���")�")�'0�<$)����")��#$'��*0�)�'� ���� "� �����7V�+ �#�  �)�"(� ����!"##� #�� �R+S����*�'� �"��")�#"*�(�+� �"��"(���%�B+��*�'��M0�2�) �33QA<+�$ �"��*"����" �+"�� � � �������)��#�� �")�"7'��� �"�� "�$)",�*��+",�)����7�%"�*� �� �)#����*�$)",���"���"(� ����!"##� #�� �")� ���2"'�+%�R*S5�%��#��*#�� �")���*")��#�� � "� ����!"##� #�� �#�� �7�����8)� ������*��� ��� �+� �*�7%���$�)�"���� �")�H�*�7%� ���!"#$��%�R�S@���� ���2"'�+%���������*0��''�'��7�'� %���*�"7'��� �"����*�)� ����!"##� #�� �8�''���*���*� ���!"#$��%&��"�'%�'��7�'� %�8�''�7����*�)� ���2"'�+%�R(S



Enclosure 2 
 

AMENDED PLAT OF LOT 110, SOLAR RANCHES FILING NO. 2C, TOWN OF 
RIDGWAY, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 15, 2001 UNDER 
RECEPTION NO. 174776, COUNTY OF OURAY, STATE OF COLORADO 

 



���������	



Enclosure 4 

FINAL PLAT FOR  

WILSON SOLAR RANCH SUBDIVISION 

A REPLAT OF LOTS 110A AND LOT 110B, AMENDED  PLAT OF LOT 110, OF SOLAR 

RANCHES, FILING NO. 2C, LOCATED WITHIN THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 16 TOWNSHIP 

45 NORTH, RANGE 8 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 





Enclosure 5 

Approval Letter from HOA 







Enclosure 6 

Planning Commission Hearing Request









 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



         Agenda Item ___________ 
        

              File No. _______________ 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

Subject: Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023 Budget and 2023 Property Tax Mill Levy 
Initiated By:  Pam Kraft, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
Date:  December 9, 2022 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Pursuant to the Town Charter notice of adoption of the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget was published 
and posted on October 13th and a public hearing scheduled for the December 14th Town Council 
meeting. 
  
The Council was presented with the draft budget at the regular meeting of October 12th; 
discussed the draft document and five and ten year capital improvement plans at the budget 
retreat on October 29th; held a public hearing and discussed the documents at the regular 
meeting of November 9th; reviewed all documents at a workshop meeting held on November 
17th; and at the December 14th regular meeting a public hearing will be held, and the Council will 
be asked to adopt the 2023 Budget and establish the 2023 Mill Levy. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The Council is being presented with three resolutions to appropriate expenditures; adopt the 
budget; and adopt the property tax mill levy for certification to Ouray County.    
 
The following actions must be taken:  
 
- Adopt Resolution No. 22-09 of the Town of Ridgway, Adopting a Budget for the Calendar Year 
Beginning on the First Day of January 2023, and Ending on the Last Day of December 2023. 
 
- Adopt Resolution No. 22-10 of the Town of Ridgway, Appropriating Sums of Money to the 
Various Funds in the Amount and for the Purpose as Set Forth Below for the 2023 Budget Year. 
 
- Adopt Resolution No. 22-11 of the Town of Ridgway, Adopting the Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2023 for Certification to the Ouray County Commissioners. 
 
A  number of other documents affiliated with adoption of the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget will be 
presented later in the agenda.  These are:  
 
- Adoption of the Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 
- Adoption of  the Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 
- Adoption of the 2023 Strategic Plan. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
The Town Clerk/Treasurer must certify the mill levy to the County Commissioners by December 
15th.   
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 



 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 
 
1.  Move to adopt Resolution No. 22-09 of the Town of Ridgway, Adopting a Budget for the 
Calendar Year Beginning on the First Day of January 2023, and Ending on the Last Day of 
December 2023. 
 
2.   Motion to adopt Resolution No. 22-10 of the Town of Ridgway, Appropriating Sums of 
Money to the Various Funds in the Amount and for the Purpose as Set Forth Below for the 2023 
Budget Year. 
 
3.  Motion to adopt Resolution No. 22-11 of the Town of Ridgway, Adopting the Property Tax 
Levy for the Year 2023 for Certification to the Ouray County Commissioners. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ATTACHMENT 1.  Resolution No. 22-09 and the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget 
ATTACHMENT 2.  Resolution No. 22-10  
ATTACHMENT 3.  Resolution No. 22-11 







































Resolution No. 22-10 

 
 

A RESOLUTION  OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, STATE OF COLORADO, 

APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE VARIOUS FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT 

 AND FOR THE PURPOSE AS SET FORTH BELOW FOR THE 2023 BUDGET YEAR 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Town 

Charter on December 14, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has made provision therein for revenues in an amount equal to or 

greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, appropriating the revenues provided in the budget to and for the purposes described 

below, establish a limitation on expenditures for the operations of the Town of Ridgway pursuant 

to the Charter. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  The following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenue of each fund for the 

purposes stated: 

 

 

GENERAL FUND 

 

            Current Operating Expenses $  4,188,886 

 Capital Projects                          $      70,000 

 Debt Service                           $     117,712       

 

 Total General Fund Expenditures                   $  4,376,598 

 

 

WATER FUND 

 

 Current Operating Expenses                         $  1,209,426 

 Capital Projects                          $               0 

 Debt Service                           $       53,418 

 

 Total Water Fund Expenditures                      $  1,262,844 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 22-10 

Page Two 

 

 

 

SEWER FUND  

 

            Current Operating Expenses                         $    447,456 

 Capital Projects                        $               0        

 Debt Service                         $      15,915 

 

 Total Sewer Fund Expenditures                   $     463,371 

 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

 Grant Receipts for Project Expenditures      $              0 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of  December, 2022 

 

 

 

_____________________________     Attest:    ________________________________ 

John I. Clark                   Pam Kraft, MMC  

Mayor               Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 

 



Resolution No. 22-11 

 

 

A RESOLUTION  OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, STATE OF COLORADO,  

ADOPTING THE PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023  

FOR CERTIFICATION TO THE OURAY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, has adopted the annual budget in 

accordance with its Charter on December 14, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, such budget provides for property tax revenues for general operating purposes of 

$346,695; and 

 

WHEREAS, as such budget provides for property tax revenues necessary for debt service 

payment for the 2016 streetscape bond/note of $0; and  

 

WHEREAS, the valuation for assessment for the Town of Ridgway as certified by the County 

Assessor is $40,075,720. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY , COLORADO: 

 

Section 1.  That for the purpose of meeting general operating expenses of the Town of Ridgway 

during the 2023 budget year, a property tax mill levy of 8.651 mills is hereby adopted for 

certification to the Ouray County Commissioners. 

 

Section 2.   That for the purpose of payment of the debt service on the streetscape bond/note a 

property tax levy of 0 mills is hereby adopted for certification to the Ouray County 

Commissioners. 

 

Section 3.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to immediately certify to the County 

Commissioners of Ouray County, Colorado, the adopted mill levies for the Town of Ridgway as 

hereinabove determined and set, to be levied by said Commissioners as taxes against real and 

personal property within the Town, in accordance with law. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of  December, 2022. 

 

 

 

______________________________  ATTEST:  _______________________________ 

John I. Clark                                 Pam Kraft, MMC 

Mayor                                    Town Clerk/Treasurer 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   December 9, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Adoption of the 2023 Five- and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ACTION BEFORE COUNCIL: 
Council is asked to review and adopt the 2023 Five- and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans.  
 
SUMMARY: 
Please find attached the 2023 Five- and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans. Both plans are organized by 
fund and outline a schedule of public expenditures. The plans provide for large, physical improvements that 
are permanent in nature that are needed for the functioning of the community, including parks, 
infrastructure, utilities, and municipal facilities improvements. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Once Council has finalized its review and provided any modifications, the appropriate motion to be 
considered is: “I move to adopt the 2023 Five- and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans.” 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
2023 Five- and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans 
 

 



 5 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2027 General Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Dennis Weaver Memorial Park - Vault Restroom Facility $60,000
Amelia Street Construction Project $4,000,000
Acquisition and Managed Use of South Railroad Street Right-of-Way
Master Plan Implementation & Subdivision Updates $30,000
Expand Middle Mile Fiber Network Through Rest of Town $73,000
Heritage Park - Split Rail Fence $20,000 CP2001
Heritage Park - Construction Doc's $50,000 CP2000
Town Hall Assessment & Design for Reconfiguring $40,000
Furnishings & Audio/Visual for Space to Create Meeting Room $85,000 778PO1
Purchase of an Affordable Housing Unit
Acquisition of Two Blocks of N. Laura Street for Right-of-Way
Traffic Plan and Mitigation on N. Laura Street
Micro Grid on Space to Create Building  (off set by DOLA grant of $10,000) $35,000 778PO1
Master Plan for Athletic Park $40,000 719POO
Replace Two Trucks in Parks Department $50,000
Front End Loader (set aside funds for purchase in 2024) $75,000 670GO2
Purchase of Property in River Park Subdivision $40,000 572GOO
Contractual Consulting Services to Identify Grant Opportunities $25,000 519GOO

Note: a yellow line delineates an item included in the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget



 5 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2027 Water Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Water Utility Augmentation (increase reliable water supply) $750,000
Water Conservation Plan / Basin Protection Implementation $25,000
Video Inspection of Transmission Lines $57,500
Extend Water Mains Downtown (as needed) $135,000
GAC Equipment  (offset by $100,000 & $261,152 in grant funds) $400,000 931WOO
Second River Crossing of Lines $150,000
Increase Storage East of the Uncompahgre River $750,000
Water Collection System - Piping Ridgway Ditch & Headgate $1,500,000
Water Meter at Water Treatment Plant $35,000 932WOO
Micro Hydro Construction $1,000,000
Replace Two Modules $150,000
Feasibility Study of Micro Hydro Construction & Piping Ridgway Ditch $40,000
Meter Replacement 5 Year Plan (125,000 due to non-receipt of meters in 2022) $125,000 988WOO
Repair Flow Measuring Devices at Ridgway Ditch and Lake O $50,000 931WOO
Replace Public Works Fleet Vehicle $25,000 972WOO

Note: a yellow line delineates an item included in the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget



 5 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2027 Sewer Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Preliminary Needs Assessment for Relocating Treatment Plant $35,200 914SOO
Design and Install Secondary Discharge Pipe $10,000
Emergency Generator $80,000
Fine Bubble Diffuser System or Replace Aeration $425,000
Replace Public Works Fleet Vehicle $25,000 972SOO
Reserves for Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements $100,000
Sludge Removal $100,000

Note: a yellow line delineates an item included in the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget



 10 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2033 General Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Athletic Park - 3rd Soccer Field and Drainage $150,000
Athletic Park - Groundwater Management $100,000
Athletic Park - Tot Lot $25,000
Athletic Park - Sand Volleyball Court $25,000
Athletic Park - Pickle Ball Courts $450,000
Heritage Park - Plan Implementation with Visitor's Center Improvements $1,000,000
Heritage Park - ADA Restroom $130,000
Gateway Signage $120,000
Improve Drainage at Park-n-Ride Lot at Fairgrounds $70,000
Green Street Park $2,000,000
Chip Seal or Hard Surface Streets Throughout Town
Stormwater Drainage Improvements 
Install Sidewalks Throughout Town
Public Works Shop Vehicle Exhaust Ventilation $40,000
Town Hall and Community Center Improvements (per Assessment Plan) $250,000
Dog Park
Uncompahgre RiverWay Trail - Regional Partnership to connect Montrose to Ouray
Rollans Park - Restoration Project, In-Stream Improvements $400,000
Public Parking Lot (North of Library)
Scanning and Electronic File Management Plan $120,000
Solar Tubes on Roof of Stage in Hartwell Park
Pedestrian Crossing Over/Under Pass on Highway 550
Anchor Site for Wi-Fi Connection to Water Plant



 10 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2033 Water Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Third Filter Train for Water Treatment $500,000
Water Storage Tank Painting   (2029) $300,000
Water Collection System - Piping Ridgway Ditch / Headgate $1,500,000
Presedimentation Ponds Improvements and Piping $250,000
Increase Capacity by the Lake Outfall  (400' of 12" Line) $45,000
Dallas Ditch Water into Cottonwood Creek
Develop Hydraulic Model of Distribution System $50,000
Replace John Deere Backhoe $95,000
Feasibility Study of Expansion of Water Treatment Plant
Expansion of Water Treatment Plant $1,000,000



 10 Year Capital Improvement Project 
2023-2033 Sewer Fund

Project Estimated Cost Budget Line Item

Lift Station Equipment Replacement (2024-2029) $50,000
Upgrade the Treatment System (when loading reaches 80% of approved design 
capacity - 0.194 MGD and 400 ppd of BOD) $100,000
Mechanical Wastewater Treatment Plant $7,500,000



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   December 9, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Adoption of the 2023 Strategic Plan 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ACTION BEFORE COUNCIL: 
Council is asked to review, make changes if necessary, and adopt the 2023 Strategic Plan.  
 
SUMMARY: 
Please find attached the 2023 Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan is an effective policy document and a primary 
tool in implementing the Master Plan, other adopted plans and special projects of the Council. Once adopted, 
the Strategic Plan informs the community of near and longer-term directive actions and investments planned 
by the Council, and it provides clear direction to Town staff for preparing the budget and developing work 
plans that detail the timing and approaches to complete the work. While it does not account for all Town 
Council direction, unforeseen needs or opportunities, other day-to-day or prioritized internal staff work, or 
other matters on Council agendas, it does set forth major undertakings through the planning horizon. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Once Council has finalized its review and provided any modifications, the appropriate motion to be 
considered is: “I move to adopt the 2023 Strategic Plan.” 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
2023 Strategic Plan 

 



 

 
Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan | 1 

ADOPTION – DECEMBER 14, 2022 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY  

2023 STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY VALUES & GOALS 
Achieving our vision will require us to strive to maintain certain aspects of Ridgway that the community values today, while 

recognizing that we will need to adapt in the face of a certain amount of growth and change over the next ten to twenty 

years. Our ability to adapt successfully will require a continual focus on—and balance between—five community values: 

healthy natural environment, sense of community and inclusivity, small town character and identity, vibrant and balanced 

economy, and well-managed growth.  

COMMUNITY VISION 
Ridgway is a vibrant, welcoming, and community-minded small 

town situated in a beautiful mountain valley. We are diverse in 

age, background, and economic means. We share a deep 

connection to the outdoors, the lifelong pursuit of learning, and 

our railroad, ranching, and creative cultures. We are committed to 

being economically and ecologically sustainable. 



 

 
2 | Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan 

COMMUNITY VALUES, GOALS & 2023 STRATEGY 

Community Value 1 

Healthy Natural Environment 
From the Uncompahgre River to the Sneffels and Cimarron mountain ranges, Ridgway’s incredible natural surroundings, and 

the recreational opportunities they provide, are some of the top reasons residents choose to live in our community. 

Protecting both the scenic values and ecological functions of natural areas in and surrounding Ridgway through responsible 

environmental practices is something the community values strongly. Ridgway must grow in a way that is attuned to its 

natural environment to protect these valuable resources. Ridgway residents must also be aware of the changes to our local 

environment that could arise as a result of climate change.  

Goals: 

ENV-1: Preserve, protect, and restore natural habitats, including for wildlife and ecosystems. 

ENV-2: Strengthen the Uncompahgre River corridor as a community asset and environmental resource. 

ENV-3: Proactively manage and protect Ridgway’s water resources. 

ENV-4: Advocate for the efficient use of resources and sustainable practices that work to eliminate harmful impacts to the 
health of the community or natural environment. 

ENV-5: Maintain a healthy and resilient community forest.  

 

 Healthy Natural Environment: 2023 Strategy Responsible Party 

1 
Advance goals of the Town's Source Water Protection Plan including working with Ouray County on 
setbacks to the Town's water supplies in the unincorporated areas of Ouray County. 

PW/Manager 

2 Review Adequate Water Supply Rules in RMC 7-6 and update Town Code. Manager/PW 

3 Ensure the cost of water is understood and user fees are in line with costs. Manager/Eng. 

4 
Make available educational materials on radon mitigation, and water and energy conservation, and 
periodically communicate this information via the Town website and other communication 
channels. 

Building 

5 

Participate on the Sneffels Energy Board and work with the Board and EcoAction Partners to 
implement the objectives and supporting actions detailed in the San Miguel & Ouray County 
Regional Climate Action Plan in order to help our community continue to reduce our greenhouse 
gas emissions from our 2010 GHG emissions baseline. 

Manager 

6 

Continue working with Ouray County Vegetation Management on implementation of the Town’s 
Integrated Weed Management Plan and to manage weeds in Ridgway more aggressively. Continue 
following the policy set forth in Resolution No. 22-01, Amending the Policy Relative to Noxious 
Weed Management. The policy now allows for the application of chemical-based herbicides when 
deemed necessary by Town staff and Ouray County Vegetation Management personnel, as long as 
the application falls in line with the Chemical Application and Protocol Recommendations found in 
the Integrated Weed Management Plan. 

Manager/PW 

7 

Support and promote the Sustainability Advisory Board as members work to, among many other 
things, advance and encourage environmentally sustainable practices and ideas within the Town. 
The Sustainability Advisory Board’s priorities and work plan items for 2023 are as follows: 

• Explore a mandate for all new construction (commercial and residential) to be all-electric ready and 
solar ready (ELECTRIC READY). 

• Explore the requirements outlined in HB22-1362, monitor progress of the energy code board, and on 
or after July 1, 2023 recommend adoption of an energy code that achieves equivalent or better energy 
performance than the 2021 international energy conservation code and the model electric and solar 
ready code developed by the energy code board (ENERGY CODE UPGRADE). 

• Enhance education on regional sustainability/climate action efforts by establishing a webpage to 
serve as a clearinghouse of regional programs and incentives that can benefit community members 
and help meet regional greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets (EDUCATION). 

Manager 



 

 
Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan | 3 

8 
Make available educational materials on the amended landscape regulations to encourage water 
conservation and require low water usage landscaping or xeriscaping.  

Planner/Building 

10 
Perform state-mandated requirements for backflow prevention and cross-connection control 
outreach, reporting and tracking. 

Manager/PW 

11 Research and develop regulations or a policy specific to grease traps. Manager/PW 

12 Research and develop regulations or a policy specific to graywater residential use. Manager 

13 
Install water meter at water tanks; test meters for accuracy; repair alarm dialer from the plant to 
on-call personnel. 

PW 

14 Repair and maintain wastewater lines; replace pond curtain; add aerator for lagoon. PW 

15 
Develop a Preliminary Needs Assessment that makes recommendations for improvements to the 
current wastewater treatment system and identifies future needs.   

Eng. 

16 Remove gravel from Uncompahgre River in Rollans Park and continually improve the area.  PW 

17 
Evaluate results of Uncompahgre River Corridor Ecological Assessment and Technical Report and 
explore implementation of the recommended restoration opportunities and river management 
actions. 

Manager/PW 

18 
To support operations and when needed, acquire roll-off bins for green waste and composting from 
local companies that manage organic waste. 

PW 

19 
Ensure the Town’s responsibilities, as described in Resolution No. 21-09 Rights of Nature, are met, 
and ensure good stewardship of the Uncompahgre River, its tributaries, and its watershed. 

Manager 

20 

Work with SMPA to further explore the idea of a community solar array, or even a agrophotovoltaic 
system being constructed somewhere on public property, namely the remaining area of Green 
Street Park. Identify feasible locations and assist SMPA, as needed, in developing a formal proposal 
for the public to weigh in on and for the Town Council to consider.  

Manager 

21 
Work with SMPA and Artspace to explore the idea of installing a solar/storage system, commonly 
referred to as a Microgrid, at Ridgway Space to Create. 

Manager 

22 Host annual Town Cleanup Day event and Adopt-A-Highway Cleanup events. Manager/PW 

 
Community Value 2 

Sense of Community & Inclusivity 
Another aspect of living in Ridgway that residents highly value is the community, its inclusivity, and its diversity. Ridgway ’s 

residents represent a range of age groups, income levels, cultures, lifestyles, and political persuasions, and describe each 

other as friendly, welcoming, and close-knit. Residents also value how the community comes together in times of crisis or 

need to help one another. This strong sense of community is also demonstrated in how engaged residents are with Town 

affairs. Trends like increasing housing costs and a lack of affordable childcare make it difficult for many people to live in 

Ridgway. Looking to the future, residents would like to see Ridgway remain a diverse and inclusive community, not one that 

is homogeneous and unwelcoming of “others.” Residents want to avoid the kinds of changes that have occurred in other 

small mountain towns, such as an influx of second homeowners.  

Goals: 

COM-1: Maintain Ridgway as a community that is accessible to a range of income levels, ages, and households. 

COM-2: Encourage a diversity of housing options that meet the needs of residents. 

COM-3: Encourage citizen participation and dialogue with elected and appointed officials and town administration in order 
to foster broad-based representation and input for local government decisions. 

COM-4: Strive to be a model for transparency, efficiency, and good governance. 

COM-5: Encourage a range of health, human, youth, senior, and other community services in Ridgway. 

COM-6: Support education and lifelong learning in our community. 

COM-7: Provide public safety and emergency response services to engage and protect the community. 



 

 
4 | Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan 

 

 Sense of Community and Inclusivity: 2023 Strategy Responsible Party 

1 
Continue the process of developing an interior design/furnishing plan for the Ridgway Space to 
Create community room and begin implementation. Develop a usage policy for the space, as 
well as an application process.   

Manager/Community 
Initiatives 

2 

Complete the updates to Chapter 7 “Planning and Zoning” of the Ridgway Municipal Code in an 
effort to, among other things, clarify the application review and approval processes and 
incorporate new application types to improve the development review process. Updates to the 
Town’s subdivision regulations and Planned Unit Development regulations will meet Action 
COM-1b and Action GRO-1c identified in the Town of Ridgway Master Plan.  

Manager/Planner 

3 
Work with developers through the Planned Unit Development process to secure deed restricted 
workforce housing. 

Planner/Manager 

4 

Continue efforts on workforce housing, including evaluating and recommending mechanisms or 
strategies for a dedicated revenue source for affordable housing; hold a Town Council workshop 
solely dedicated to evaluating and considering strategies and funding mechanisms; continue 
regular communication with regional partners. 

Manager 

5 Organize and facilitate one regional law enforcement training opportunity. Marshal 

6 
Complete training with the Ouray County Sheriff’s Office and City of Ouray Police Department to 
improve skills and foster good relations across the jurisdictional departments. 

Marshal 

7 
Complete the transition of the Ouray County Victim Services Program from the Town of Ridgway 
to Ouray County and continue to support, grow and promote the Program/victim advocacy and 
victim’s rights.  

Marshal 

8 
Develop a community outreach and education program, including outreach on leash laws and 
dog owner responsibilities, securing trash containers and being bear-aware, town-wide speed 
limits, snow removal, etc. 

Marshal/Community 
Initiatives/PW 

9 
Promote the Athletic Park Pavilion as a Town facility and community amenity that is available for 
rent. 

Manager/Clerk 

10 
Provide in-kind support to the Ridgway Community Garden by helping to improve the parking 
area with additional gravel and weed mitigation.  

PW 

11 
Work with Ouray County Plaindealer staff to begin implementation of monthly newspaper 
advertisements to showcase what’s going on at the Town of Ridgway.  

Manager 

 

Community Value 3 

Small Town Character & Identity 
Although they may differ on how to define “small town character,” residents feel strongly that it’s a key part of Ridgway’s 

identity. This small town character is evident in the size of the community, the slower and more laid back pace of life, the 

unpaved streets, the surrounding ranch land and associated activities, the ability of residents to easily walk from one end of 

town to the other, and the many activities and businesses that are geared toward locals. Although these characteristics are 

common among many small towns across Colorado, Ridgway stands out from other tourism-dependent communities as a 

town that relies on tourism to some degree—but retains its commitment to locals and still feels very much like a “real” 

community.  Beyond small town character, this feeling is derived from a blend of Ridgway’s historic past as a western railroad 

town, its ranching and agricultural community, its proximity to the mountains and outdoor recreation, and its Creatives and 

innovative entrepreneurs.  

Goals: 

CHR-1: Support vibrant, diverse, safe, and well-connected neighborhoods. 

CHR-2: Protect and preserve Ridgway’s historic assets. 

CHR-3: Promote Ridgway’s identity as a ranching and agricultural community and preserve the rural character of 

landscapes surrounding Ridgway. 



 

 
Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan | 5 

CHR-4: Promote Ridgway’s identity as a creative and innovative community where creative individuals and enterprises 

thrive. 

CHR-5: Promote a range of opportunities and spaces for community gatherings and interactions. 

CHR-6: Maintain and enhance Ridgway’s gateways, entry-corridors, and scenic vistas. 

CHR-7: Develop an interconnected system of parks, trails, open space, and recreational facilities that meets the needs of 

Ridgway’s residents and visitors. 

 

 Small Town Character and Identity: 2023 Strategy Responsible Party 

1 Expand community outreach and information sharing efforts. 
Manager/Community 

Initiatives 

2 

Further implementation of the Ridgway Visitor Center & Heritage Park Master Plan 
(Amended June 2022) via the phased Implementation Plan that staff developed and 
presented to Town Council on September 14, 2022. Continue exploring grant funding 
opportunities to bring the improvements to fruition. 

Community 
Initiatives/Manager 

3 Partner with GOCO on a Youth Corps project. PW 

4 

Lead Ridgway Fuse, A Colorado Creative Main Street Program in implementing priority 
Council initiatives and supporting the Ridgway Creative District and Ridgway Main Street 
programs. Continue efforts to Connect, Gather, Build, and Spotlight via the collectively 
agreed upon work plan.  

Community Initiatives 
 

5 

Generate promotional pieces that communicate the Ridgway Creative District’s and Main 
Street Program’s value to the community, objectives, and invite potential partnerships 
and collaboration. Continue efforts to bolster and enhance the Ridgway Fuse website and 
its functionality.  

Community Initiatives 

6 
Support and promote the Youth Advisory Council and provide its membership 
opportunities for input on Town projects, programs, and events. 

Manager 

7 
Make efforts to educate and inspire residents and visitors about Ridgway’s ranching 
heritage; provide information about ranching activities that periodically occur in and 
around Town, such as cattle drives. 

Community Initiatives 

8 
Create and maintain succession plans for all Town staff and standard operating 
procedures. 

All Departments 

9 
Identify a consultant to undertake a master planning process for the Athletic Park and to 
develop a master plan document for the Town to follow and implement.  

Manager 

 
 
Community Value 4 

Vibrant & Balanced Economy 
Ouray County’s economy is largely centered on service industries oriented towards tourism, particularly industries such as 

food services and accommodation. While Ridgway’s reliance on tourism is somewhat less than the County, it is still subject 

to seasonal fluctuations in business activity. These service jobs tend to pay low wages that make it even more difficult for 

those who work in Ridgway to live here as well. Residents expressed a strong desire to diversify the local economy and to 

create well-paying, full-time, year-round jobs. Through its participation in the Main Street and Creative District programs, the 

Town has been active in promoting community and economic development in recent years. While a number of businesses 

and Creatives have chosen to base their operations in Ridgway for quality of life reasons, many employers struggle to hire 

qualified employees, find space as they grow, market their creations, and face other challenges. Larger shifts in the national 

economy towards telecommuting mean that workers no longer need to physically commute to an office. With fast internet 

speed, residents will increasingly be able to pursue job opportunities and careers in industries not currently located in 

Ridgway. Alternatively, home-based entrepreneurs will be able to access customers or clients located around the globe.  

 



 

 
6 | Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan 

Goals: 

ECO-1: Create a vibrant, diverse, and sustainable year-round local economy that reflects Ridgway’s social fabric, values, 

and character. 

ECO-2: Support the retention and expansion of local businesses. 

ECO-3: Balance the need to preserve the quality of life for residents with business needs. 

 

 Vibrant and Balanced Economy: 2023 Strategy Responsible Party 

1 
Continue participation in local and regional broadband initiatives, including connecting local 
government and anchor institution buildings. 

Manager/Planner 

2 Plan, organize, and manage Summer Concert Series and Love Your Valley event.   Clerk 

3 Plan, organize, and manage Ridgway Independent Film Festival and other Ridgway Fuse events.  Community Initiatives 

4 
Continue the partnership with the regional Creative Districts and the Ridgway Area Chamber of 
Commerce to advance the Creative Corridors Initiative. 

Community Initiatives 

5 
Partner with Colorado Creative Industries to further develop and grow the Ridgway Creative 
District, including consideration of feedback and recommendations from Ridgway Fuse; provide 
training and educational opportunities for members of Ridgway Fuse. 

Community Initiatives 

6 
Identify and complete a priority Creative District project with the Colorado Creative Industries 
matching grant. 

Community Initiatives 

7 
Partner with the Department of Local Affairs on the Main Street Program and implement priority 
recommendations from the Main Street Downtown Assessment focused on economic 
restructuring, design, organization, and promotions. 

Community Initiatives 

8 
Oversee and manage downtown streetscape maintenance and landscaping; maintain and replace 
trees as needed; maintain landscaping at Heritage Park; maintain planter boxes and landscaping 
around Town Hall and Hartwell Park. 

PW 

 

Community Value 5 

Well-Managed Growth 
Based on projections in the Community Profile, Ridgway is expected to add between 150 and 700 new residents by 2050. In 

addition, growth in the surrounding region—which includes Ouray, Montrose, and San Miguel counties—will continue to 

have direct and indirect impacts on Ridgway’s housing, transportation system, environment, and quality of life. Growth 

limitations in the City of Ouray and Ouray County will further amplify growth pressures on the Town of Ridgway. Uncertainty 

regarding the extent of and potential impacts of future growth are of critical concern to the community. However, Ridgway 

has the ability through its policies and regulations, intergovernmental agreements, and other tools to help inform where and 

how growth will occur in the future, the types of growth the community would like to see, and guide the character and form 

of future development.  

Goals: 

GRO-1: Manage growth and development in order to maintain Ridgway’s small town character, support a diverse 
community, and create employment opportunities. 
 

GRO-2: Ensure public infrastructure, utilities, facilities, and services are sufficient to meet the needs of residents and 
businesses as the town grows. 
 

GRO-3: Proactively mitigate natural and human-made hazards. 
 

GRO-4: Develop a safe and efficient multi-modal transportation system, balancing needs of all users. 
 
 



 

 
Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan | 7 

 Well-Managed Growth: 2023 Strategy Responsible Party 

1 
Continue the process of updating the Town’s zoning and subdivision regulations to allow for 
administrative approvals as appropriate. 

Planner 

2 Update Town regulations to address shared utility taps and shared water meters. Planner/PW 

3 
Complete solicitation and selection processes for new engineering consultant to spearhead 
development/civil review.   

 

4 
Participate in regional transportation initiatives including the Gunnison Valley Transportation 
Planning Region (GVTPR) and the Ouray County Transit Advisory Council, as appropriate. 

Manager 

5 
Continue working with the City of Ouray, Ouray County, and All Points Transit to establish and 
begin the rollout of the Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project.  

Manager 

6 
Assist Ouray County and their selected contractors to update the Ouray County Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan and develop a Multi-Jurisdictional Evacuation Plan.  

Manager 

7 
Explore feasibility of a roundabout at Railroad St. and Hwy 62 and recommend inclusion on 
GVTPR 10 Year Plan. 

Manager 

8 
Finalize GIS database for water and sewer infrastructure, including catalog of all 
mechanical/fleet equipment. 

PW/Eng. 

9 
Develop and organize volunteer efforts, focused on procedural rules, expectations, purpose, 
etc. for Council appointed commissions, boards, committees and task forces. 

Manager/Community 
Initiatives 

10 
Implement measures to address deficiencies and ensure Wastewater Treatment Plant 
consistently meets permit limitations and other terms and conditions of its permits. 

Manager/PW/Eng. 

11 Expand efforts on official record and electronic file organization. Manager/Clerk 

12 Implement Asset Management Plan for all departments Clerk 

13 
Complete the updates to the Town’s standard specifications for infrastructure that have not yet 
been completed. 

Eng./PW 

14 
Address access to Ridgway Ditch and adjacent development, including building and septic 
setbacks, Ditch access, and land use opportunities with Ouray County to protect the Ditch. 

Eng./Manager/PW 

15 

Explore grant funding opportunities that would provide for major improvements to the Ridgway 
Ditch in a way that would allow the Town to receive additional water and mitigate system loss 
(i.e., piping portions of the Ridgway Ditch). Repair and install additional flow measuring devices 
along Ridgway Ditch and at Lake O.   

Manager 

16 

Investigate how to access potential funding opportunities for water-related projects (i.e., 
monitoring and improvements to the Town’s water supply system) under the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act or through state funding options such as Colorado Water Plan grants 
or Gunnison Basin Roundtable grants.  

Manager 

17 Replace hydrants and valves, as needed, on water distribution system. PW 

18 Continue the phased water meter replacement program. PW 

19 
Complete transition from chlorine dioxide treatment to Granular Activated Carbon filtration 
alternative at water treatment plant. 

PW/Eng./Manager 

20 Complete sewer line camera and root abatement work; remove contact chamber sludge. PW 

21 
Employ methods to better manage traffic flow and safe speeds; further explore additional 
advisory signage, temporary pedestrian signage, and street devices to mitigate speeding 
vehicles on westbound and eastbound Hwy 62 and other areas of town. 

Marshal/PW 

22 Review Traffic Flow Plan and update, as needed. Eng./Manager/PW 

23 
Partner with Browns Hill Engineering & Controls to utilize the VSaaS platform and a high-end, 
full-featured, cybersecurity-protected SCADA system for the water treatment plant.  

Manager/PW 

24 
Explore retaining a consultant to assist with exploring available grant opportunities that would 
advance projects and initiatives that have been identified as near-term and long-term priorities, 
and to assist with administering awarded grants.   

Manager/Clerk 



 

 
8 | Town of Ridgway 2023 Strategic Plan 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   December 9, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Review of Memorandum of Understanding between Ouray County and 

Town of Ridgway regarding 2023 Operational Funding Requests, Road and 
Bridge Apportionment from County to Town, and Future Goals 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
In the fall of 2021, the Town of Ridgway and Ouray County entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) regarding 2022 Operational funding requests, Road and Bridge 
apportionment from the County to the Town, and future goals. The executed MOU is appended to 
this memo as Attachment 1.  
 
As specified in the MOU, the parties agreed to review the MOU in the later months of 2022 for 
revision and reconsideration for the 2023 budget year. Appended to this memo as Attachment 2 is 
a draft MOU for the 2023 budget year.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Attachment 1 – 2022 MOU  
Attachment 2 – Draft 2023 MOU 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

OURAY COUNTY and TOWN OF RIDGWAY 

RE: 2023 Operational Funding Requests, 
Road and Bridge Apportionment from County to Town, and 
Future Goals  

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into this _____ day of ________, 
2022. 

, by and between the Town of Ridgway, State of Colorado; hereinafter referred to as “Town” and the 
County of Ouray, State of Colorado, hereinafter referred to as “County”. 

WHEREAS, the Town and the County agree that it is in the best interest of the constituency to work 
together on various efforts; and  

WHEREAS, the Town and the County are authorized by C.R.S. 29-1-203 to enter into agreements to 
provide or share and cooperate on functions, services and facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and the County recognize that the tasks and objectives of this Memorandum of 
Understanding are aspirational in nature rather than binding contractual commitments; and 

WHEREAS, the collaborative efforts listed in this MOU may not all be accomplished in 2023 and may 
be multi-year efforts for the Town and the County. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Town and County agree to share and cooperate on the following matters, in 
consideration of the mutual budget request listed below: 

1. OPERATIONAL FUNDING REQUESTS:

The Town is requesting funding from the County for the following: 

Ridgway Mosquito Control:    $8,000.00 (cash payment) 

The Town will provide the County a written report indicating the locations treated, dates, etc.  

The County is requesting funding from the Town for the following: 

Wireless Emergency Notification System (WENS)/Emergency Management Services and Emergency 
Public Telecommunications (Repeater/Antenna Mgt. and Repair):  $6,000 (cash payment) 

Participation in the development of a County-wide Evacuation Plan:  $8,300 (cash payment) 
[Total cost is approximately $25,000 split three ways (City/Town/ County)] 

2. ROAD AND BRIDGE APPORTIONMENT TO TOWN FROM COUNTY:

Road and Bridge Apportionment Payment: $30,057.56 

3. FUTURE GOALS:

Both parties agree to work together in good faith towards the following: 

The Town desires: 

• The ability to continue purchasing aggregate material from the County in future years if available.

• To work collaboratively with the County to pursue and implement the goals and action items
identified for Town and County collaboration in the Town’s 2019 Master Plan.

ATTACHMENT 2



 

The County desires: 

• Support from the Town for future improvements to Ouray County’s 37-acre property located 
adjacent to the Town of Ridgway. Such improvements include: water line upgrades to the existing 
water service line to improve water quality and water flow, the ability to connect to the Town’s 
sewer system in the future for future facility improvements and construction of a satellite County 
facility. 

• Continued limited use of the non-potable water for periodic watering of the grounds at the Ouray 
County Fairgrounds facility 

• Support and input from the Town concerning the County’s Master Planning process 
 
2023 Collaborative Efforts: 

• Support each entity’s grant efforts 

• Have Town/County meetings as needed 

• Collaborate on regional environmental sustainability efforts, including participation on the Sneffels 
Energy Board 

• Affordable Housing: Collaborate on workforce housing efforts and initiatives, including but not 
limited to establishing goals, partnerships, funding, and communications, and consider 
incorporating workforce housing into future public buildings and facilities 

• Affordable Housing: Collaborate with other jurisdictions in the region to inform state leadership 
(legislators and governor) of the significantly limited resources in the region and the need to 
develop state-level legislative solutions, such as removing existing restrictions on the use of real 
estate transfer tax (RETT) and/or removing rent control restrictions in state statute and funding a 
state trust fund 

• Work together on strategies and planning regarding water resources for all county stakeholders 

• Work together on regional and intra-county broadband efforts 

• Support the utilization of Emergency notification system as needed  

• Work collaboratively with Multi-Agency Coordination Group on emergency management 

• Develop and maintain a local emergency response and management plan, as well as a plan for 
the continuation of government operations during and following an emergency event. 

• Collaborate on Dispatch Services for the benefit of the entire County 

• Collaborate to advance the efforts of the Ouray County Victim Services Program. 

• Work together on regional transportation including Park-n-Ride(s) improvements, collaboration on 
planning, funding and development of the Uncompahgre RiverWay Trail from Ouray to Montrose, 
and implementation of the Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project.  

• Cooperate on vegetation and pest management  

• Explore opportunities for mental health support and outreach 

• Maintain IGA with the County to continue to protect surrounding rural lands 

• Work together on wildfire mitigation efforts 

• Work together to regulate uses or activities allowed within or adjacent to the Town’s Source Water 
Protection Area to reduce the risk of pollution or other contaminants entering the Town’s water 
supply and ensure the Town has access as needed, and including establishing development 
setbacks to the Ridgway Ditch  

• Collaborate on outreach and communications with property owners who have properties 
encumbered by the Ridgway Ditch and that are located within the Town’s Source Water Protection 
Area 

• Continue to combat/mitigate the effects of COVID-19 and future public health issues including 
collaboration on an updated Economic Resiliency Plan, if desired  

• Work collaboratively on severance tax/mining industry issue to encourage housing within Ouray 
County and its municipalities 

• Work collaboratively towards optimizing revenues from mining production  

• Work collaboratively to share Short Term Rental / Enforcement information 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 

Future Collaborative Efforts: 

• Work together on childcare needs within Ouray County 

• Work together on county-wide economic development and COVID-19 disaster recovery efforts as 
well as future, potential public health crises  

• Work with FEMA to maintain up-to-date maps of the 100-year floodplain and floodway along all 
waterways flowing through Ridgway 

• Multi-modal access through Ridgway USA to County Property  

• Work together on improving, hard-surfacing and financing Amelia Street from the north town 
boundary to the south/west town boundary at County Road 5 

• Consider collaboration on a Mosquito Control District  

• Prioritize the conservation and preservation of community valued natural resources such as 
environmentally sensitive areas, view and wildlife corridors, riparian areas and wetlands, river 
corridor, natural filtration and storm water drainage areas 

• Work with Land Trust organizations and other partners to identify opportunities for land 
preservation 

• Work together on potential county-wide recreational master planning process 
 

4. TERM: 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding provides for agreement to cooperate and collaborate, as provided 
herein, for calendar year 2023. The parties agree to review this Memorandum of Understanding in September 
of 2023 for revision and reconsideration for the 2024 budget year. Both the Town and the County understand 
and agree that budget requests may or may not be funded and are subject to availability of funds, which 
availability may be altered by unanticipated events at any time. The Town and the County each agree to work 
cooperatively on the items specified in good faith, but failure to successfully complete any project will not be 
grounds for litigation. There is no waiver of governmental immunity by either party.    
 
EXECUTED on this    day of   , 2022. 
 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY   BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RIDGWAY, COLORADO     OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 

 
 
              
John Clark, Mayor      Jake Niece, Vice-Chair 
 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Pam Kraft, Town Clerk     County Clerk and Recorder 
        By:  Deputy Clerk of the Board 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 



 

 

 P.O. Box 3310, 130 N. Park Avenue       Montrose, Colorado 81402               T: 970-249-7000               F: 970-249-8440 

 

DEVOR & PLUMHOFF, LLC                                                         Bo James Nerlin, Esq. 
Attorneys and Counselors at Law                        bo@coloradowestlaw.com 

 

         

 

 

 

 

 

To: Mr. Preston Neill, Town Manager, Town of Ridgway 

From:  Bo James Nerlin  

Re:  Ridgway USA – Development – Amended and Restated Declaration of Covanants 

Date:  December 9, 2022 

 

 Enclosed in the packet is a proposed draft of the Amended and Restated Declaration of 

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Ridgway U.S.A. Development (the “Amended 

Covenants”).  These Covenants are somewhat unique as they ask for approval from the Town of 

Ridgway in order for an amendement to be adopted.  As attorney for the Town, I have reviewed 

the Amended Covenants to confirm that they do not contain any provisions in violation of the 

Town’s Municipal Code.   

 

 The Town is not responsible or required to enforce restrictive covenants.  Having 

reviewed the Amended Covenants to confirm that they conform with the Town Code, I would 

recommend that the Council accept and approve the enclosed draft, with a recommendation that 

any future revisions do not require Town approval.   

mailto:bo@coloradowestlaw.com


Proposed Amended/Restated Declaration 9/13/22 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx 

 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF  
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR  

RIDGWAY U.S.A. DEVELOPMENT 
 

 
 THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, 
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR RIDGWAY U.S.A. DEVELOPMENT (the 
“Amended/Restated Declaration”) is made, effective as of this ____ day of _______________, 
2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and among (i) the owners (collectively, the “Owners” and each, 
individually, an “Owner”) of the 30 total lots (the “Lots”) constituting the Ridgway U.S.A. 
Development, a Colorado Common Interest Community formed and existing in the Town of 
Ridgway Colorado (the “Town”), all located in Ouray County, Colorado and more particularly, 
and more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Community”); as well as (ii) the and RIDGWAY U.S.A. ASSOCIATION, INC., 
a Colorado nonprofit corporation, the owners’ association created for purposes of administering 
the Owners’ rights in and to the Community (the “Association”) and governed by, the Colorado 
Common Interest Ownership Act, Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”) Sections 38-33.3-101 et 
seq., as amended from time-to-time (“CCIOA”) and Nonprofit Act (defined below).  The Owners 
and Association hereinafter shall be referenced individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties”. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. This Amended/Restated Declaration is made for and in connection with the 
Community, which has been developed as a planned unit business/professional/commercial 
development and includes (i) the Ridgway Land Company Subdivision Plat recorded in the official 
records of the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder (the “Official Records”) on October 9, 1990 at 
Reception No. 147701 (the “Initial Plat”); (ii) the Replat of the Eastside Subdivision recorded in 
the Official Records on October 9, 1990 at Reception No. 147703 (the “Eastside Replat”); and 
(iii) the Northridge Subdivision, a Replat of Lot 2, Ridgway Land Company Subdivision creating 
the “Northridge Subdivision” recorded in in the Official Records on May 25, 2006 at Reception 
No. 191625 (the “Northridge Replat”).  The Initial Plat, the Eastside Replat and the Northridge 
Replat together constitute the “Community Plats”.  This Amended/Restated Declaration also is 
subject to those certain covenants, conditions, and restrictions set forth in the original Declaration 
of Covenants Conditions and Restrictions recorded in the Official Records on July 24, 1990 at 
Reception No. 147105 (the “Original Declaration”).    
 
 B. The Original Declaration and Community Plats bind and both benefit and burden 
the Community, as well as all Owners, purchasers and lenders of all Lots and their respective 
successors, heirs, and assigns. 
 
 C. This Amended/Restated Declaration is entered into to (i) ensure proper 
development and use of the Community; (ii) protect the investment of the Owner(s) of each Lot 
against such improper development and use of surrounding Lots as will depreciate the value of 
any Owner’s Lot; (iii) prevent the erection of structures built of improper design or materials; (iv) 



2 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

encourage the erection of attractive improvements at appropriate locations, to prevent haphazard 
and inharmonious improvements; (v) secure and maintain proper setbacks from streets and 
adequate free spaces between structures; and (vi) in general, provide adequately for a high type 
quality of improvements within the Community and on the Lots, all in accordance with a general 
master plan and Town approvals. 
 
 D. Mutuality of Benefits and Obligations.  The terms, conditions, covenants 
restrictions, uses, reservations, limitations and/or obligations set forth in this Amended/Restated 
Declaration mutually and reciprocally benefit each and every Lot.  They further are intended to 
create mutual, reciprocal equitable servitudes upon each Lot and the Community in favor of each 
and all Owners and, thereby, to create a contractual privity and estate by and among the Owners  
operating as covenants running with the land perpetually benefiting and burdening of each and all 
of the Owners, the Lots and/or the Association Real Property. 
 
 E. Use of Lots and Improvements.  As of the Effective Date, the Lots are all zoned as 
“General Commercial” properties within the Town and, as a result, no uses or activities shall be 
allowed on any Lot, except as permitted under applicable Town zoning codes and/or ordinances.  
Specifically, no business or activity shall be permitted upon any Lot which purveys, portrays, 
displays or permits nudity, simulated or live sexual acts in any area of the Lot or improvements 
thereon into which the general public is invited or admitted, except that a family movie theater 
may show any movie that is rated by the rating agency for the general movie industry in the United 
States of America.  No movie theaters shall be permitted that show films portraying nudity or sex 
acts as the primary theme, as determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board.  This 
covenant is not intended to prohibit any lawful activity between persons within the confines of a 
hotel or motel room rented for temporary lodging for one or more nights; provided, however, that 
no hotel or motel on a Lot shall rent rooms for any period of less than one night. 

 
ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 
 

The following words, when used in this Amended/Restated Declaration (unless the context 
shall prohibit), shall have the following meanings: 
 

1.1 “Annual Expenses” annual common expense assessments duly levied by the 
Board. 

 
1.2 “Approved Landscaping Plan” shall mean the landscape plan to be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Town, prior to development of any Lot, and according to which all 
Lots are to be landscaped or left undeveloped. 

 
1.3 “Articles” shall mean the Articles of Incorporation for the Association, as filed with 

the Colorado Secretary of State and amended from time-to-time. 
 
1.4 “Assessments” shall mean all Annual Assessments, Special Assessments and all 

charges, fees, penalties, interest, fines and/or costs of any kind duly levied by the Association 
against Lots and/or from time-to-time pursuant to the Governing Documents and applicable law. 



3 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
1.5 “Association” shall mean and refer to the “Ridgway U.S.A. Association, Inc., a 

Colorado Non-Profit Corporation,” as this is created and operated pursuant to this 
Amended/Restated Declaration, and pursuant to its Articles and Bylaws, both as amended and in 
effect from time-to-time. 

 
1.6 “Association Personal Property” shall mean all personal property, including 

headgates, diversion structures, flumes, pumps, pump houses, pipes, casings, equipment and 
fixtures associated with the Association Water Rights that the Association owns for the common 
use and enjoyment of the Owners, as members of the Association, or any portion thereof, as 
generally identified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto. 

 
1.7 “Association Real Property” shall mean all real property, including (i) all 

Association Water Rights, or any portion thereof, within or in the vicinity of the Community in 
which the Association owns fee title or other real property rights; (ii) all Common Easement 
Rights; and (iii) all other easement or related ownership or usage interest for the common use, 
development and enjoyment of the Owners, as Members of the Association, all as generally 
identified on Exhibit “C” attached hereto. 

 
1.8 “Association Representatives” shall mean all duly authorized and/or duly 

appointed representatives, agents and employees of the Association, including any Directors 
and/or Officers. 

 
1.9 “Association Water Rights” shall mean all water, water rights, ditches, ditch 

rights, reservoir and storage rights, wells and well rights, springs and spring rights, and 
augmentation plans, if any, owned by the Association located on or appurtenant to the Community, 
whether or not listed on Exhibit “C” attached hereto. 

 
1.10 “Authorized Party” shall mean all Owners, together with their successors, 

assigns, tenants, customers, licensees, invitees and tenants with rights of use or ownership of any 
Lots. 

 
1.11 “Board” shall mean and refer to the Board of Directors of the Association, as well 

as its constituent Directors, all in accordance with the Articles and Bylaws, duly adopted from 
time-to-time. 

 
1.12 “Books and Records”  shall mean current copies of the Governing Documents and 

the books, minutes, notices and other records and/or financial statements, reports or documents for 
the Association. 

 
 1.13 “Bylaws” shall mean the By-Laws of the Association, as duly adopted by the 
Association and amended from time-to-time. 
 
 1.14 “Common Easement Rights” shall mean any non-exclusive perpetual easement 
and/or other rights in and to the Association Real Property, and that shall be deemed appurtenant 
and shall pass with title to every Lot. 



4 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
1.15 “Common Elements” shall mean and refer to (i) Association Personal Property; 

and (ii) Association Real Property.   
 
1.16 “Common Maintenance Easement” is defined in Section 2.2 below. 
 
1.17 “Continuing Lien” is defined in Section 4.5 (e) below. 
 
1.18 “Designated Lot Member” shall apply only if title to any Lot is held or vested in 

(i) an entity; or (ii) more than one person or entity, in which case such person or entity that person 
who is designated to the Board, in a certified writing as the person empowered to exercise the 
Lot’s voting rights.  Failure by any Lot in this situation to so identify a Designated Lot Member 
shall result in the Lot forfeiting its vote on all matters coming before the Owners during the 
duration of such failed identification. 

 
1.19 “Directors” shall mean the Association’s directors duly elected by the Members, 

or otherwise duly appointed by the Board, to serve as members of the Board. 
 

 1.20 “Governing Documents” shall mean this Amended/Restated Declaration, the 
Community Plats, the Articles, the Bylaws and any Rules and Regulations (if any), all as in effect 
and/or as amended from time-to-time and pursuant to CCIOA. 
 
 1.21 “Members” shall mean Owners in the Association, all of whom also must be 
Owners. 
 
 1.22 “Nonprofit Act” shall mean the Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act. 
 
 1.23 “Officers” shall mean Association’s officers duly appointed by the Board. 
 
 1.24 “Permitted Parking Spaces” is defined in Section 3.3 below. 
 
 1.25 “Proposal for Correction” is defined in Section 5.4 below. 
 
 1.26 “Rules and Regulations” shall mean the Rules and Regulations of the Association, 
as adopted by the Association and amended from time-to-time. 
 
 1.27 “Special Assessments” shall mean special common expense assessment duly levied 
by the Board. 
 
 1.28 “Town Approved Drainage Plan” is defined in Section 3.5 below. 
 
 1.29 “Utility Easements” shall mean installation, maintenance, repair, service, and 
replacement of all utilities serving the Community including, but not limited to, sewer, water, 
power, gas, cable TV, broadband, telephone, and utility pipes, lines, mains, conduits, waters, poles, 
transformers, meters, and any and all other equipment or machinery necessary or incidental to the 
proper functioning of any such utilities, which easement rights also shall be for the benefit of  any 



5 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

governmental agency or utility company or other entity that requires access for the purpose of 
furnishing one or more of the foregoing services 
 

ARTICLE 2 
PROPERTY RIGHTS AND EASEMENTS 

 
 2.1 Subject to the limitations hereinafter provided, all Authorized Parties and their 
employees, customers, and invitees shall have Common Easement Rights, which hereby are 
granted for ingress and egress by vehicular and pedestrian traffic, as well as vehicle parking, in, 
upon, through, over, and across the Common Elements.  The Common Easement Rights shall 
cover and apply to all Association Real Property including, without limitation:  (i) driveways and 
access ways; (ii) sidewalks and walkways; (iii) exits and entrances; and (iv) such other portions of 
the Common Elements as from time-to-time may be developed, altered, or modified.  The 
Association may promulgate Rules and Regulations for the use and enjoyment of the Common 
Elements and suspend the voting rights of any Owner for any period during which an Assessment 
remains unpaid or for any period during which any infraction of the Rules and Regulations 
continues.  No suspension of Common Easement Rights by any Owner at any time that Owner’s 
non-payment of Assessments shall constitute a waiver or discharge of the Owner’s obligations to 
pay Assessments. 
   
 2.2 The Association and any appropriate utility shall have the following perpetual, non-
exclusive easements with respect to the Property (collectively, the “Common Maintenance 
Easements”). 
 
  (a) For the maintenance of any Common Elements that presently or hereafter may 
encroach upon a Lot. 
 
  (b) The right of access to each Lot to (i) inspect same for the purpose of verifying 
conformance with the Governing Documents; (ii) remedy any violations set forth in the Governing 
Documents; and (iii) perform any operations required in connection with the maintenance, repairs, 
or replacements of or to the Common Elements, including Association Real Property and 
Association Personal Property; provided that requests for entry are made in advance and that any 
such entry is undertaken at a time reasonably convenient to any impacted Owner(s).  In case of an 
emergency, such right of entry shall be immediate whether any Owner is present at the time or not. 
 
  (c) Blanket access in, upon, over, under, across, and through the Common Elements 
for surface water runoff and drainage, grading, and/or any improvements located within the 
Community. 
 
  (d) Blanket access in, upon, over, across and through the Common Elements for the 
purpose of the Utility Easements. 
 
 2.3 With respect to any Utility Easements, the Association shall have the right, but not 
the obligation, to take any and all actions against the grantees of such easements needed to ensure 
that the storm drains, utility lines, transformers, fiber optics, broadband and/or meters subject to 
the Utility Easements shall be maintained in a safe condition.  No grantee of a Utility Easement 



6 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

shall in any way interfere, obstruct, or delay, the use, construction, reconstruction, operation, 
maintenance, or repair of any storm drains, utility lines, transformers, and meters relating to either:  
(i) any business of any Owners, or public access to and from any Lots or improvements thereon; 
(ii) the receiving of merchandise by any Owners; or (iii) any general or other traffic circulation 
within the Community. 
 

2.4 Subject to roadways, driveways, and existing easements of record, the Association 
Real Property shall be used only for Association-related parking uses, park landscaping, entry 
features, directional graphic signage, irrigation, drainage, landscape medians, security, safety, 
bicycle/pedestrian paths, roads, driveway, project lighting, water retention, distribution and 
collection facilities, recreational purposes, as well any other use, as shall be determined by the 
Board from time-to-time. 
  
 2.5 No permanent walls, fences or barriers of any kind shall be constructed or 
maintained on or in connection with any Association Real Property, or any portions thereof, which 
shall prevent or impair the use or exercise of any of the easements granted herein; the foregoing 
notwithstanding, this shall not prevent the installation of curbs and landscaping, or any reasonable 
traffic controls that should be approved by the Town, may be implemented so long as access 
driveways to the parking areas located on Lots are not closed or blocked.  Customers and invitees 
shall not be permitted to park on the Common Elements, except while shopping or transacting 
business within the Community.  No employees of any Lot Owners or businesses withing the 
Community, or any other persons, shall be permitted to park on the Common Elements, at any 
time or for any purposes. 
 

ARTICLE 3 
REGULATION OF IMPROVEMENTS ON LOTS 

 
 3.1 Improvements, Generally.  No improvements shall be constructed, erected, placed, 
altered, maintained, or permitted on any Lot except as strict conformance with all Town 
requirements, building codes and/or other applicable rules, regulations and laws.  
 
 3.2 Setbacks.  Except as approved in writing by the Town (but only if required under 
pertinent Town regulations) and with the mutual written consent of all adjoining Lot Owners, no 
building or structure shall at any time be erected on any Lot within (i) 20-feet from the Lot 
boundary line with any adjoining street rights-of-way; (ii) 12 feet from the side boundary line of 
any Lot; or (iii) eight feet from the rear boundary line of any Lot.  
 
 3.3 Off-Street Parking.  No parking shall be permitted on any street or at any place 
other than the paved or hard surface parking (i.e., asphalt, concrete, or equal) spaces, except as 
described below (the “Permitted Parking Spaces”).  Adequate off-street Permitted Parking 
Spaces shall be provided by each Owner and Authorized Parties, specifically including employees, 
customers and visitors.  The location, number and size of Permitted Parking Spaces shall be subject 
to approval by the Town.  The minimum standards for Permitted Parking Spaces shall consist of 
the following:   
 
  (a) One parking space for each 250 square feet of Floor Area used for offices. 



7 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
  (b) One parking space for each 1,000 square feet of Floor Area used for warehouse 
purposes. 
 
  (c) One parking space for each 600 square feet of Floor Area used for 
manufacturing or light industrial purposes. 
 
  (d) One parking space for each 250 square feet of Floor Area used for any other 
permitted purposes. 
 
 All off-street parking and access drives and loading areas shall be paved and properly 
graded to assure proper drainage. 
 
 3.4 Utility Connections.  All utility connections, including all electrical and telephone 
connections and installation of wires to buildings, shall be installed underground from the nearest 
available power source, except non-primary power transmission lines may be installed overhead 
with the prior written consent of the Town. 
 
 3.5 On-Site Drainage.  The Lot Owners and Association hereby acknowledge, confirm 
and accept that an initial drainage plan for the Community was reviewed, adopted and approved 
by the Town in connection with the Initial Plat (the “Town Approval Drainage Plan”) remains 
in full force and effect and governs all matters regarding drainage within the Community.  Each 
Owner shall be required to provide adequate drainage facilities for the Owner’s Lot, specifically 
including control of storm water runoff resulting from precipitation, in compliance with the Town 
Approved Drainage Plan.  No Owner shall directly or indirectly interfere with or alter the drainage, 
run off patterns or any water systems within the Community, except as allowed by the Town 
Approval Drainage Plan and or otherwise authorized and approved by the Town. 
 

3.6 General Prohibitions and Requirements.  The following general prohibitions and 
requirements shall prevail as to all construction and/or related activities conducted upon any Lot: 
 

(a) Except with respect to temporary portable toilets required during periods of 
construction, no outside toilets shall be permitted upon any Lot or Common Elements.  During 
such periods of construction, any required temporary portable toilets shall be placed out of general 
public view, to the greatest extent possible. 

 
(b) Except for temporary construction use, no mobile home, prefabricated or 

modular structure, trailer or other mobile or temporary structure of any kind shall be permitted 
upon any Lot or the Common Elements.  In the case of allowed temporary construction structures 
or vehicles, these must be removed within 10 working days after completion of construction, in 
any event. This prohibition shall not apply to trucks, tractors, trailers, recreational vehicles, and 
the like belonging to patrons or customers of businesses conducted upon a Lot when (i) such 
vehicles are brought upon the Lot by such patron or customer for legitimate business purposes and 
(ii) such usage does not unreasonably impact or interfere with the use and/or enjoyment of any 
Lots and/or Common Elements.  Nevertheless, no such temporary structure or vehicle shall be 
occupied as a dwelling or residence at any time while located upon any Lot. 



8 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
(c) No Lot shall be further subdivided, split, severed or combined with new 

properties or other Lots in any manner that could increase the financial, assessment or other 
burdens on other Lots, unless approved in writing by no less than 67% of the Owners. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
COVENANT FOR COMMON EXPENSE ASSESSMENTS; ALLOCATION 

 
 4.1 Assessments.  The Board shall approve and adopt Annual Assessments in an 
amount at least sufficient to maintain and operate the Common Elements as contemplated by the 
Governing Documents. All Assessments duly levied against any Lot and/or Owner, shall be paid 
to the Association on or before the due date established by the Board.  Written notice of all 
Assessments and the date of payment shall be sent to each Owner against whom the Assessment 
is levied.  
 

(a) Water Users (as defined in the Association’s Water Rules and Regulations) 
shall pay an additional annual water assessment for each lot served by the Association’s water 
system, which shall be assessed with, and in addition to, the Owner’s Annual Assessment. 
 
 4.2 Covenant.  Every Owner shall be deemed to covenant and agree timely to pay to 
the Association all Assessments, which obligation commences upon the Owner’s acceptance of a 
deed or other conveyance for a Lot, whether or not it shall be so expressed in any such deed or 
other conveyance. 
 
 4.3 Allocation.  Common expenses shall be allocated among the Owners pursuant to 
the Assessment Percentages set forth on Exhibit “E” attached hereto.   
 
 4.4 Assessments as Continuing Liens.  No Owner may waive or otherwise avoid 
liability for common expenses by non-use of the Common Elements.  All Assessments shall 
constitute Continuing Liens (as defined below) upon the Lot against which they are made and also 
shall constitute personal obligations of Owners of such Lots (both at the time when the 
Assessments fell due, as well as all subsequent record Owners) together with any interest, late 
charges, or cost of collection associated therewith (including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees).   
 
 4.5 Effect of Nonpayment.  Any Assessments that are not paid as of the specified due 
date shall be delinquent.  If any Assessments become delinquent, the Association (acting through 
the Board, in its sole discretion), may pursue any and all remedies and means available to it, 
including, without limitation:  
 
  (a) Following delinquency of seven calendar days, assessment of a late charge for 
each delinquency in such amount as the Board deems appropriate, with each such late charge 
included in the total delinquent Assessments and the Continuing Lien (defined below). 
 

(b) Following delinquency of seven calendar days, to begin accruing as of the date 
of delinquency, assessment of an interest charge of 18% per annum, compounded monthly, on the 



9 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

total delinquent Assessments, with such interest itself also included in the total delinquent 
Assessments and Continuing Lien. 

 
(c) Following delinquency of 30 days, suspension of the voting rights of the Owner 

for the period during which the delinquent Assessments remain unpaid. 
 

(d) Bringing an action at law or equity against any Owner personally for failure to 
pay the delinquent Assessments. 
 

(e) Foreclosure of the continuing lien on each Lot (the “Continuing Lien”) created 
by the Association’s levy of any Assessments chargeable to any Lot and perfected with the 
recording of this Amended/Restated Declaration in the Official Records.  In the event that the 
Association elects to foreclose a Continuing Lien, the Owner shall be liable for the amount of all 
unpaid Assessments, the cost and expenses of such proceedings, the cost and expenses for filing 
the notice of the claim, and all attorney's fees and/or other costs incurred in connection with the 
enforcement and/or foreclosure of the Continuing Lien.  The Association shall have the power to 
bid on a Lot at foreclosure sale and to acquire and hold, lease, mortgage and convey the same. 
 
 4.6 Personal Obligation.  All Assessments against a Lot shall be the obligation of the 
Owner who owned the Lot at the time the Assessments became due and the personal obligation 
liability shall not pass personally to successors in title unless they expressly assume the obligation 
in writing (all without compromising any statutory or other lien rights with respect to the Lot 
itself).  No Owner may exempt himself, herself or itself from liability for the Assessments by 
abandonment of the Owner’s Lot.  The Association shall be entitled to recover a money judgment 
for unpaid Assessments, the cost and expenses of such proceedings, and all attorneys’ fees and/or 
other costs in connection therewith without foreclosing or waiving the Association’s Continuing 
Lien.    
 
 4.7 Compliance with the Act.  The provisions of this Article 4 shall be construed and 
implemented in accordance with the requirements of CCIOA in effect from time-to-time and 
specifically those contained in C.R.S. Sections 38-33.3-123, 209.5, 303, 315 and 317, as amended 
from time-to-time.   
 

ARTICLE 5 
PURPOSE OF COMMON EXPENSES; 

RESPONSIBILITY OF OWNERS 
 
 5.1 Annual Expenses.  Annual Assessments shall be used for providing services to Lots 
and the Owners, as Members, and for promoting the health, safety, and welfare of the Members. 
Such uses shall include, without limitation, the following:  (i) maintenance, repair, and replacement 
of the Common Elements, including costs associated with the Association Water Rights; (ii) all 
taxes and insurance premiums; (iii) all costs and expenses incidental to the operation and 
administration of the Association; and (iv) such other items as the Board may from time-to-time 
deem appropriate, in its sole reasonable discretion.   
 



10 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 5.2 Special Assessments.  Any Special Assessments shall be used for the purpose of 
defraying in whole or in part the cost of any construction, reconstruction, repair, or replacement of 
any Common Elements and/or related Community capital improvements, including fixtures and 
personal property related thereto.  The Board shall levy such Special Assessments as the Board 
shall deem appropriate, and at such time and in such amounts as the Board shall deem appropriate 
and/or needed, both determined in its sole and absolute discretion. 
 
 5.3 Owner’s Responsibility.  Each Owner shall promptly furnish, perform, and be 
responsible for, at the Owner’s own expense, all the maintenance, repairs, and replacements within 
the Owner’s own Lot; provided, however:  (i) such maintenance, repairs, and replacements as may 
be required for the functioning of the Common Elements within the Lot shall be furnished by the 
Association; and (ii) the Association, its agents, and employees may effect emergency and other 
necessary repairs the Owner has failed to perform (provided, however, that any and all expenses, 
so incurred by the Association shall be the responsibility of the Owner affected thereby). 
 
 5.4 Maintenance by Association.  The Association shall be responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of the Common Elements, the costs for which maintenance and repair 
(unless necessitated by damage caused by the negligence, misuse or tortious act of an Owner or 
Owner’s agent) shall be deemed Association common expenses assessable as Assessments. 
 
 5.5 Easement for Maintenance.  The Association shall have the irrevocable right, to be 
exercised by or on behalf of the Board, to access each Lot from time-to-time during reasonable 
hours as may be necessary and/or appropriate for the maintenance, repair or replacement of any 
Common Elements.  In the event insurance proceeds under this article are payable to an Owner for 
any Common Elements, the Association shall complete any such repair or replacement at the 
Owner's cost, with rights thereafter to fully recover such costs from the Owner. 
 
 5.6 Damage to Common Elements.  If, due to the neglect, negligent act, or omission of, 
or misuse by an Owner or guest, tenant, invitee, or visitor (whether an Authorized Party or not) 
damage shall be caused to the Common Elements or to any Lot owned by others, or maintenance, 
repairs, or replacements shall be required that would otherwise be a common expense, then the 
Owner directly or indirectly shall pay for such damage and be liable for any damages, liability, 
costs, and expense, including attorneys’ fees, caused by or arising out of such circumstances; and 
such maintenance, repairs, and replacements to the Common Elements or a Lot shall be deemed 
Assessments and subject to all Governing Documents. 
  

ARTICLE 6 
ASSOCIATION ADMINISTRATION 

 
 The administration of the Common Elements shall be undertaken by the Association in 
accordance with the provisions of the Governing Documents in effect from time-to-time. 
 

6.1 Membership.  Every person or entity who has or acquires legal or equitable title in 
or, to any Lot automatically shall become an Owner and, therewith, a Member.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, such membership shall not vest in any persons or entities that hold only security 



11 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

interests in a Lot, or portion thereof, whether through mortgages, deeds of trust or any other forms 
of security instruments. 
 
 6.2 Purpose.  The general purpose of the Association is to preserve and maintain the 
value of the Lots and the Common Elements Property and, therewith, to pursue the economic best 
interests of the Owners, as well as to the Lots, the Common Elements and the Community 
generally. 
 
 6.3 Powers.  In furtherance of the Association’s general purpose, the Association shall 
have and enjoy all powers set forth in the Governing Documents and/or otherwise pursuant to 
CCIOA, the Nonprofit Act, as amended from time-to-time and any other applicable nonprofit 
corporation and/or related laws.  Such powers shall specifically include, without limitation:  (i) the 
power to levy Assessments against every Lot, and (ii) the power to expend, borrow and/or apply 
funds, including pledging Common Elements as security for any Association debt and assess the 
cost of such borrowing against the Lots as Assessments.  The Association (acting through the 
Board) shall be responsible for enforcing, and shall have the power to enforce, all covenants, 
conditions and restrictions contained herein.   
 

6.4 Rules and Regulations.  In addition to the powers set forth in Section 6.3 above, the 
Association (acting through the Board), shall have the power to adopt and/or amend Rules and 
Regulations.  Such Rules and Regulations shall, among other matters deemed appropriate by the 
Board in its sole discretion, include adoption of any policies and procedures necessary to comply 
with the provisions of C.R.S. Section 38-33.3-209.5 of CCIOA regarding responsible governance 
policies, as these provisions may be amended from time-to-time. 
 
 6.5 Exercise of Owner and Lot Voting Rights.  Each Lot shall be entitled to exercise 
votes with respect to Association matters pursuant to the Voting Percentages set forth on Exhibit 
“E”.  The Lot’s vote shall be exercisable only by or on behalf of the Lot’s Owner or Designated 
Lot Member.   
 
 6.6 Books and Records.  The Association shall make available Books and Records for 
inspection during normal business hours, or under other reasonable circumstances.  These Books 
and Records shall be made available to Owners and/or other persons named as mortgagees or 
beneficiaries in any mortgages, deeds of trust or other forms of security instruments upon tendering 
of a reasonable advanced written inspection request to the Board.  The Association may charge 
reasonable fees for copying and/or providing any Books and Records, including for any required 
staff, professional or other costs incurred in connection with such inspection.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, the provisions of this Section 6.6 shall comply with the provisions of C.R.S. 
Section 38-33.3-209.4 of CCIOA, as amended from time-to-time. 
 
 6.7 Enforcement/Attorney’s Fees/Costs.  The Members hereby declare, confirm, 
empower and direct the Association to enforce the provisions of the Governing Documents by any 
and all means available to the Association, at law or in equity.  In doing so, om addition to any 
requirements, mandates and/or rights of CCIOA, the Members hereby further entitle and empower 
the Association to recover and obtain reimbursement of all attorney’s fees and Association 
expenses and other costs, of any kind whatsoever, incurred in connection and with any such 



12 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

enforcement actions.  In addition, the Members confirm, acknowledge and accept that failure by 
the Association to enforce compliance with any provisions of the Governing Documents shall not 
constitute or be deemed a waiver of any rights thereafter to enforce any provision of the Governing 
Documents.  
 
 6.8 Implied Rights and Obligations.  The Association may exercise any right or 
privilege expressly granted to the Association in the Governing Documents, by CCIOA or by the 
Nonprofit Act. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
RESTRICTIONS 

 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, no use or operation shall be permitted within the 
Community that is obnoxious to a first-class mixed-use commercial/residential development.  
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following specifically shall be deemed to be 
obnoxious to a such first-class development:  (i) Any public or private nuisance including, without 
limitation, the public nuisances described in C.R.S. §16-13-301 et seq.; (ii) any obnoxious odor, 
noise, or sound which can be heard or smelled outside of any building in the Community; (iii) any 
unusual fire, explosion, or other damaging or dangerous hazard, including the storage, display or 
sale of explosives or fireworks and any noxious, toxic, caustic, or corrosive fuel or gas; (iv) any 
refining, smelting, or mining operation; (v) any fire sale, bankruptcy sale (unless pursuant to a 
court order), or option house operation; (vi) any mobile home trailer court, travel trailer or 
recreational vehicle park, labor camp, junk yard, or stockyard (except that this provisions shall not 
prohibit the temporary use of construction trailers during periods of construction, reconstruction, 
or maintenance); (vii) any dumping, disposing, incineration, or reduction of garbage (exclusive of 
garbage compactors); (viii) any establishments selling or exhibiting materials which because they 
explicitly deal with or depict human sexuality or are harmful to children or not lawful for sale to 
children under 18 years of age by reason of C.R.S. §18-7-501 et seq. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
ENFORCEMENT 

 
 8.1 Abatement and Suit.  The conditions, covenants, restrictions, and reservations 
herein contained shall run with the land and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Association, and the Owners of every Lot.  These conditions, covenants, reservations, and 
restrictions may be enforced as provided hereinafter by the Association acting on behalf of the 
Owners.  Each Owner, by acquiring an interest in a Lot irrevocably appoints the Board and the 
Association as the Owner’s attorney-in-fact for such purposes; provided, however, that if an Owner 
notifies the Board of a claimed violation of the Governing Documents and the Association fails to 
act in a manner likely to correct such violation within 30 days after receipt of such notification 
then, and in that event only, an Owner separately, at the Owner’s own cost and expense undertake 
steps to enforce the terms of the Governing Documents claimed to be in violation.  Violation of 
any condition, covenant, restriction, or reservation in the Governing Documents shall, after 30-
day prior written notice of such violation given by the Board to the Owner of the Lot where such 
violation exists, gives the Association the right to enter upon the portion of the Lot wherein said 
violation or breach continues to exist and summarily to abate and remove at the expense of the 



13 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

Owner any structure, thing, or condition that may be or exists thereon contrary to the intent and 
meaning of the pertinent Governing Document, or to prosecute a proceeding at law or in equity 
against the person or persons who have violated or are attempting to violate any of these 
conditions, covenants, restrictions, and reservations in the Governing Documents to enjoin or 
prevent them from doing so, to cause said violation to be remedied, or to recover damages 
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees) for said violation. 
 
 8.2 Deemed to Constitute a Nuisance.  Every violation of this Amended/Restated 
Declaration, or any part thereof, hereby is declared to be and to constitute a nuisance, and every 
public or private remedy allowed therefor by law of equity against an Owner or Authorized Party 
shall be applicable against every such violation and may be exercised by the Association (by and 
through the Board). 
 

(a) In addition to all rights under CCIOA, in connection with any legal or equitable 
proceeding for the enforcement or to restrain the violation of this Amended/Restated Declaration 
or any provision hereof, the losing party or parties shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees of the 
prevailing party or parties in the amount as may be fixed by the court in such proceedings.  All 
remedies provided herein or in equity shall be cumulative and not exclusive. 
 
  (b) The failure of the or Association (whether acting by and through the Board, or 
otherwise) to enforce any of the conditions, covenants, restrictions, or reservations contained in 
the Governing Documents shall in no event be deemed to be a waiver of the right to do so for 
subsequent violations or of the right to enforce any other conditions, covenants, restrictions, or 
reservations, and the Association shall not be liable therefor, if it acted or failed to act in good 
faith. 
 
 8.3 Claim a Lien.  Any such claim for Association reimbursement, together with 
interest, shall constitute a secured right and Continuing Lien that attaches and takes effect upon 
recordation of a proper claim of lien in the Official Records.  Any such recorded claim of 
Continuing Lien shall include the following:  (i) The name of the claimant; (ii) a statement 
concerning the basis of the claim of lien; (iii) the last known name and address of the Owner or 
reputed Owner of the Lot against which the lien is claimed; (iv) a description of the Lot against 
which the lien is claimed; (v) a description of the work performed or payment made which has 
given rise to the claim of lien hereunder and a statement itemizing the amount thereof; and (vi) a 
statement that the lien is claimed pursuant to the provisions of this Amended/Restated Declaration 
reciting the date, book, and page of the recordation hereof.  The notice shall be duly verified, 
acknowledged, and contain a certificate that a copy thereof has been served upon the party against 
whom the lien is claimed, and the Continuing Lien so claimed shall attach from the date of 
recordation, and may be enforced in any manner allowed by law, CCIOA and/or the Governing 
Documents. 
 

8.4 Subordination of Continuing Liens.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such 
Continuing Liens shall be subordinate to any mortgage or deed of trust given in good faith and for 
value now or hereafter encumbering the Lot subjected to the lien, and any purchaser at any 
foreclosure or trustee’s sale (as well as any grantee by deed in lieu of foreclosure of trustee’s sale) 
under any such mortgage or deed of trust shall take title in and to a Lot or Lots free and clear from 



14 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

any such then-existing Continuing Lien, but otherwise subject to the provisions of the Governing 
Documents.  The failure of the Owner or Owners to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict 
performance of any of the promises, covenants, conditions, restrictions, or agreements herein shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment for the future breach of the provisions hereof. 
 
 

ARTICLE 9 
TERM, TERMINATION, MODIFICATION AND ASSIGNMENTS 

 
 9.1 Term.  This Amended/Restated Declaration (as amended from time-to-time), every 
provision hereof, and every covenant, condition, restriction, and reservation contained herein shall 
continue in full force and effect for a period of 25 years from the date hereof and shall thereafter 
be renewed automatically from year to year unless and until terminated as provided in Paragraph 
10.2 below. 
 
 9.2 Termination and Modification.  This Amended/Restated Declaration or any 
provision hereof, or any covenant, condition, restriction, or reservation contained herein, may be 
terminated, extended, modified, or amended, as to the whole Community or any portion thereof, 
with the written consent of the Owners of 67% of the Voting Percentages set forth in Exhibit “E”.  
Such termination, extension, modification, or amendment shall be immediately effective upon 
recording a proper instrument in writing in the Official Records, executed and acknowledged by 
all approving Owners. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
INDEMNITY 

 
 10.1 General.  Each Owner shall indemnify, defend, and hold the other Owner(s) 
harmless from and against all claims, expenses, liabilities, loss, damage, and costs, including any 
actions or proceedings in connection therewith (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred in 
connection with, arising from, due to or as a result of the death of or any accident, injury, loss, or 
damage, howsoever caused, to any person or loss of damage to the property of any person as shall 
occur in or about each Owner’s Lot.  The foregoing, however, shall not apply to claims resulting 
from the negligence or willful act or omission of the indemnified Owner or any occupant of any 
such Owner’s Lot, or the agent, servants, or employees of such indemnified Owner, wherever the 
same may occur.  Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Article 11 to the contrary, each 
Owner hereto waives any right of recovery against the other Owner(s) for any loss, damage, or 
injury to the extent the same is covered by insurance. 
 
 10.2 Common Elements.  Each Owner shall indemnify, defend, and hold the other 
Owner(s) harmless from and against any and all claims, expenses, liabilities, loss, damage, and 
costs including any actions or proceedings in connection therewith and including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with, arising from, due to, or as a result of (i) the death of 
or any accident, injury, loss or damage, howsoever caused, to any person; or (ii) loss of or damage 
to the property of any person as shall occur in or about the Common Elements located on each 
Owner’s respective Lot(s).  The foregoing, however, shall not apply to claims resulting from the 
negligence or willful act or omission of the indemnified Owner or any occupant of any such 



15 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

Owner’s Lot, or the agent, servants, or employees of such indemnified Owner, wherever the same 
may occur.  Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Article 11 to the contrary, each Owner 
hereto waives any right of recovery against the other Owner(s) for any loss, damage, or injury to 
the extent the same is covered by insurance. 
 

ARTICLE 11 
NOT A PUBLIC DEDICATION 

 
 Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Common Elements to the general public or for the general public or for any public purposes 
whatsoever, it being the intention of the Owners that this Amended/Restated Declaration shall be 
strictly limited to and for the purposes herein expressed.  The right of the public or any person to 
make any use whatsoever of the Common Elements or the Lots, or any portion thereof (other than 
any use expressly allowed by a written or recorded map, declaration, deed, or dedication) is by 
permission only and subject to the control and permission of the Association and/or Owners.  
Notwithstanding any other provisions herein to the contrary, the Owners and/or the Association 
periodically may restrict ingress to and egress to and/or from either the Common Elements or any 
Lots, in order to prevent a prescriptive easement from arising by reason of continued public use.  
Any restriction on ingress and egress shall be limited to the minimum period necessary to prevent 
the creation of a prescriptive easement and shall occur at such a time as to have a minimum effect 
on the Association, the Community and/or affected Owners. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
INSURANCE 

 
 12.1 General Insurance Provisions.  The Association shall acquire and pay for, out of 
the Assessments, the following insurance policies carried with reputable insurance companies 
authorized to do business in Colorado:   
 

(a) Property Hazard Insurance Coverage.  Commercial Property Insurance 
written on a Special Form or Special Cause of Loss basis (a/k/a “all risk”), on a replacement cost 
basis.  Coverage shall include the agreed amount, condominium assessment, building ordinance, 
inflation guard and other endorsements, as available, in amounts deemed reasonable and as 
determined by the Board to represent not less than the full then-current insurable replacement cost 
of the buildings located on the Lots.  Maximum deductible amounts for such policy shall be the 
lesser of $10,000 or 1% of the policy face amount.  In the event that any building located in 
Community has central heating or cooling or contains a steam boiler, then the responsible Owner 
shall obtain coverage for loss or damage resulting from steam boiler and machinery equipment 
accidents in an amount equal to the lesser of $2,000,000, or the insurable value of the buildings 
housing the boiler and/or related machinery.  Each Owner shall notify the Association in writing 
regarding any additions, alterations or improvements to such Owner’s Lot which increase the 
replacement value of the improvements located on such Owner’s Lot and the Association shall use 
reasonable effort to obtain insurance on any such additions, alterations or improvements, if such 
Owner requests it to do so and if such Owner shall make arrangements satisfactory to the 
Association to reimburse it for any additional premiums attributable thereto.  In the event that (i) 
an Owner fails to so notify the Association; or (ii) additional coverage cannot be obtained by the 



16 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

Association after reasonable effort and request by the Owner to obtain such additional coverage; 
or (iii) satisfactory arrangement is not made for the payment of additional premiums by the Owner, 
then the Owner shall be responsible for any deficiency in any resulting insurance loss recovery 
and the Association shall not be obligated to apply any insurance proceeds to restore the affected 
improvements on the affected Lot to a condition better than the condition existing prior to the 
making of such additions, alterations or improvements.  Any additional premiums attributable to 
a Lot for which the insurance is increased as herein provided may be the subject of a lien for 
nonpayment as provided in Section 4.5 (e) hereof, in the event the Association pays such premium 
for the Lot’s Owner and that Owner fails to reimburse the Association after demand for such 
payment.  Such hazard insurance policy must be written by an insurance carrier with no less than 
an “A” or better general policyholder’s rating and a financial size category of “VIII” or better in 
Best’s Insurance Reports -- International Edition.  
 

(b) General Liability.  Commercial general liability insurance for the 
Community, in such amounts as the Board deems desirable, the insurance carrier or agent shall 
issue provided that such coverage shall include an amount equal to at least $1,000,000 for bodily 
injury (including deaths and property damage arising out of a single occurrence) insuring the 
Association and the Board from liability in connection with the operation, maintenance and/or use 
of all Common Elements and/or any associated improvements.   
 

The insurance policies may be carried in blanket policy form naming the 
Association as the insured.  Each Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the 
Commercial General Liability policy with respect to liability arising out of such Owner's 
membership in the Association, if permissible by the Association’s insurer.  The insurance 
company shall waive its rights of subrogation contained in the insurance policy, with respect to 
any rights created under this Amended and Restated Declaration with respect to any Owner.  No 
act or omission by any Owner, unless acting within the scope of such Owner's authority on behalf 
of the Association, shall void the insurance policy or be a condition to recovery under the insurance 
policy.  If, at the time of a loss under an insurance policy described above, there is other insurance 
in the name of the Owner covering the same risk covered by the Association's policy, the 
Association's policy shall provide primary insurance. 

 
 12.2 Insurance Proceeds.   
 

(a) Any loss covered by the property insurance policy described in Section 12.1 
above must be adjusted with the Association, but the insurance proceeds for that loss shall be 
payable to any insurance trustee designated for that purpose, or otherwise to the Association, and 
not to any holder of a security interest.  The insurance trustee or the Association shall hold any 
insurance proceeds in trust for the Owners, as their interests may appear in the Official Records.  
Subject to the provisions of Section 12.5 below, the proceeds must be disbursed first for the repair 
or restoration of the damaged property.  Neither the Association, nor any Owners shall be entitled 
to receive payment of any portion of the proceeds, unless there is a surplus of proceeds after the 
damaged property has been completely repaired or restored or the regime created by this 
Amended/Restated Declaration is terminated.   
 



17 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

(b) The Association may adopt and establish written nondiscriminatory policies 
and procedures relating to the submittal of claims, responsibility for deductibles, and any other 
claims adjustment matters.  To the extent the Association settles claims for damages to real 
property, it shall have the authority to assess negligent Owners causing such loss or benefiting 
from such repair or restoration all deductibles paid by the Association.  In the event that more than 
one Lot is damaged by a loss, the Association, in its reasonable discretion, may assess each Owner 
a pro-rata share of any deductible paid by or assessed to the Association. 
 
 12.3 Insurer Obligation. An insurer that has issued an insurance policy for the insurance 
described in Sections 12.1 and/or 12.8, or its authorized agent, shall issue certificates or 
memoranda of insurance to the Board and, upon request, to any Owner.  Unless otherwise provided 
by statute, the insurer issuing the policy may not cancel or refuse to renew it until 30 days after 
notice of the proposed cancellation or nonrenewal has been mailed to the Board and to each Owner 
to whom a certificate or memorandum of insurance has been issued at their respective last-known 
addresses, except that an additional ten days’ notice is required for reason of non-payment of 
premium.  
 
 12.4 Repair and Replacement.  Any portion of the Common Elements for which 
insurance is required under this Article that is damaged or destroyed must be repaired or replaced 
promptly by the Association unless: 
 

(a) The common interest community created by this Amended/Restated 
Declaration is terminated;  
 

(b) Repair or replacement would be illegal under any state or local statute or 
ordinance governing health or safety; or 

 
(c) There is a vote not to rebuild by 80% of the Owners entitled to vote. 

 
 12.5 Common Expenses.  Premiums for Association insurance, and other expenses 
connected with acquiring such insurance, shall be deemed common expenses; provided, however, 
that if the Association's fire and extended coverage insurance covers fixtures, equipment or other 
property within some but not all of the Lots, the Board reserves the right to charge, as Special 
Assessments, all Owners of such Lots for which the Association provides additional insurance 
coverage, an amount equal to the premium attributable to such additional insurance coverage. 
 
 12.6 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  The Board shall obtain workers’ compensation 
or similar insurance with respect to any employees, if applicable, in the amounts and forms as may 
now or hereafter be required by law. 
 
 12.7 Other Insurance.  The Association shall maintain flood insurance if any part of the 
Common Elements is located within a Special Flood Hazard Area on a Flood Insurance Rate Map.  
Such coverage shall be no less than the lesser of (i) 100% of the insurable value of the Community; 
or (ii) the maximum coverage available under the appropriate National Flood Insurance Program.  
The Association shall also maintain insurance, to the extent reasonably available, and in such 
amounts as the Board may deem appropriate, on behalf of the Officers and Directors against any 



18 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

liability asserted against any Officers and/or Directors or incurred by any such Officer and Director 
in his or her capacity of or arising out of his or her status as an Officer and Director.  The Board 
may obtain insurance against such other risks of a similar or dissimilar nature, as it shall deem 
appropriate with respect to the Association's responsibilities and duties. 

 
ARTICLE 13 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

13.1 All of the conditions, covenants, restrictions, and reservations contained in this 
Amended/Restated Declaration of shall be construed together but, if it shall at any time be held 
that any one of said conditions, covenants, restrictions, and reservations, or any part thereof, is 
invalid, or for any reason unenforceable, no other conditions, covenants, restrictions, and 
reservations or any part thereof shall be thereby affected or impaired. 
 

13.2 Owner’s Liability Subsequent to Sale.  Upon sale of a Lot, the Owner so selling 
shall not have any further liability for the obligations thereon which accrue against the Lot, 
Building Area, or Building Envelope sold after the date of the conveyance; provided, however, 
that nothing herein shall be construed so as to relieve an Owner of any Lot from any liabilities or 
obligations incurred prior to such sale pursuant to this Amended/Restated Declaration.   
 

13.3 Benefits and Burdens.  The terms and provisions contained in this 
Amended/Restated Declaration shall bind and inure to the benefit, and burden, all of the Owners 
and Lots, as well as their respective heirs, successors, personal representatives, and assigns.  
 
 13.4. Notice.  Any notices required or permitted herein shall be deemed adequate if 
either:  made in writing and mailed, postage prepaid by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested; or (ii) delivered to the recipient by electronic means, with receipt confirmation.  If 
intended for an Owner, then such notice shall be sent to the last known physical/P.O. Box address 
and/or the last identified electronic address or account of the Owner.  If intended for the 
Association, then such notice shall be sent to the registered agent of the Association. 
 
 13.5. Singular and Plural.  Words used herein, regardless of the number and gender 
specifically used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number, singular or plural, 
and any other gender, masculine, feminine, or neuter, as the context requires. 
 

13.6 Remedies.   The remedies herein specified are cumulative and the specification of 
them shall not be taken to preclude any aggrieved party’s resort to any other remedy at law or in 
equity, or under any applicable statute, rule, regulation or other laws.  
 
 13.7 Grantee’s Acceptance.  The grantee of any Lot, by acceptance of the deed 
conveying title thereto accepts such deed and/or contract subject to this Amended and Restated 
Declaration.  By such acceptance, the grantee hereby covenants, consents and agrees to and with 
all of the other Owners and Association that the grantee (by and on the grantee’s own behalf and 
all subsequent grantees, assigns, heirs, successors and personal representatives) has vested and 
holds title in and to the Lot subject to all of the terms, conditions, covenants and restrictions 
contained in this Amended/Restated Declaration. 



19 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
13.8 Partial Invalidity.  In the event that any one or more of the provisions set forth in 

this Amended/Restated Declaration shall be declared null and void by any court, all remaining 
provisions shall continue unimpaired and in full force and effect. 
 
 13.9 Captions.  The captions of the various sections hereof are for convenience only, are 
not a part of this Amended and Restated Declaration and do not in any way limit or amplify the 
terms or provisions hereof. 
 
 13.10 Amendments.  This Amended and Restated Declaration shall be amended only with 
the prior written consent of 67% of the Owners and, when so amended, a written amendment in 
this Amended/Restated Declaration must be filed in the Official Records. 
 
 13.11 Conflicts Between Documents.  In case of conflict between this Amended/Restated 
Declaration and the Articles and/or the Bylaws of the Association, this Amended/Restated 
Declaration shall control.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board has unanimously approved and authorized the 
adoption and execution of this Amended/Restated Declaration, with the vote of no less than ___% 
of the Owners at the duly convened Owners’ Special Meeting held on __________________, 
2022. 
  



20 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
ASSOCIATION: 
 
RIDGWAY U.S.A. ASSOCIATION, INC., 
a Colorado nonprofit corporation  
 
By: __________________________________ 
      _____________, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
COUNTY OF __________  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _______, 2022, 
by ____________________, as President of Ridgway U.S.A. Association, Inc., a Colorado 
nonprofit corporation. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 My commission expires: _____________ 
       _________________________ 
        Notary Public 
  



21 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

 
ATTEST: 
 
  
By: ____________________________ 
 _____________, Secretary 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED, CONFIRMED, APPROVED AND ACCEPTED, AS OF THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY 
 
By: ___________________ 
       Name: _____________ 
        Title: ______________ 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
COUNTY OF __________  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _______, 2022, 
by ____________________, as __________________, Town of Ridgway. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 My commission expires: _____________ 
       _________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Proposed Amended/Restated Declaration 9/13/22 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
The Community 

 
(See Attached) 

 



Proposed Amended/Restated Declaration 9/13/22 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
The Association Personal Property 

 
 

 The following shall constitute the Association Personal Property, without limitation and as 
amended and/or supplemented from time-to-time: 
 

1. Any and all directional and/or other signage located on, or used in connection with, 
the Association Real Property, to the extent those shall be deemed unaffixed personal property. 

 
2. All equipment, supplies and/or other tangible personal property owned by and/or 

used in connection with the Association and/or Community from time-to-time. 
 
3. All equipment, taps, connections, structures, headgates, wells, pumps, pipes, 

measuring devices all other equipment and facilities associated with or used in connection with 
the Association Water Rights. Association Personal Property does not include service lines.  

 
4. Any and all intangible personal property rights including, without limitations, 

trademarks, copyrights, membership lists, reports, documents and/or other intellectual, virtual or 
related rights, if any. 

 
 



24 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

The Association Real Property 
 
 The following shall constitute the Association Real Property, without limitation and as 
amended and/or supplemented from time-to-time: 
 

1. Fee title in and to “Common Area (2.831 Acres)” and “Greenbelt (1.399 Acres),” 
both, as depicted on the Initial Plat. 

 
2. The Association Water Rights including, without limitation, all right, title, interest, 

claim and demand in and to all water, water rights, ditches, ditch rights, reservoir and storage 
rights, wells and well rights, springs and spring rights, headgates, diversion structures, flumes, 
pumps, pump houses, pipes, casings, equipment and fixtures used in connection with and 
appurtenant to, connected with and/or used in connection with the Ridgway U.S.A Development 
as described on Exhibit A to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions recorded 
in the Ouray County real property records at Reception No. 147105, including but not limited to 
0.45 c.f.s., absolute, in Moody No. 1 Ditch, Priority No. 34, which has an appropriation date of 
April 1, 1879, and was adjudicated for 13.5 c.f.s., absolute, on May 15, 1897, for irrigation 
purposes, in Civil Action No. 939, Water Division No. 4.  
 

 
3. The “20’ Landscape and Utility Easement,” and the “20’ Bike path and Utility 

Easements,” both as depicted on the Initial Plat, together with all landscaping, irrigation, pathway 
and other improvements thereon. 

 
4. The four separate “10’ x 10’ Direction Sign Easement” grants depicted on the 

Initial Plat and Eastside Plat together with all directional signage improvements to the extent that 
such improvements constitute fixtures and/or appurtenances to real property. 

 
5. “40’ wide Greenbelt for Relocated Moody Ditch and Utility Easement” over “Out 

Lot D” and Lots within the Community, all depicted on the Initial Plat. 
 
6. The various “20’ Utility Easement” and “10’ Utility Easement” grants depicted on 

the Initial Plat. 
 
7. The “20’ Utility Easement,” “30’ Water and Utility Easement” and “30’ Ditch and 

Utility Easement” grants depicted on the Eastside Replat.  
 
8. Any and all easements in, on, over and/or through Out Lot H and/or Out Lot C, as 

depicted on the Eastside Replat and/or otherwise.   
 
9. That certain easement for water lines, water lift station and related improvements, 

together with all associated improvements, all pursuant to that certain easement agreement by and 
between the Town and Association and recorded in the Official Records on ___________, 2022 
at Reception No. _______________.  [Note:  In talking with Cheryl, we understand that the 



25 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

improvements are located on Association property.  Which is why we need an easement from the 
Association to the Town for the Town’s improvements.  We understand that this drafting is being 
undertaken by Jenny.  Please confirm and/or indicated if this needs to be removed.] 

 



26 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

Lots Ownership and Assessment Percentages 
 

LOT NO. ACRES VOTING 
PERCENTAGES 

ASSESSMENT 
PERCENTAGES 

Remainder of Lot 1 
 

.75 2.0027% 2.0027% 

Remainder of A1 
 

3.529 9.4232% 
 

9.4232% 
 

2A 
 

2.28 
 

6.0881% 
 

6.0881% 
 

2B 
 

4.58 
 

12.2296% 
 

12.2296% 
 

3 
 

8.895 
 

23.7517% 
 

23.7517% 
 

Envelope D portion 
of Lot 3 

 

n/a 
 

n/a n/a 

6 
 

.904 
 

2.4139% 
 

2.4139% 
 

7 
 

.629 
 

1.6796% 
 

1.6796% 
 

8 
 

.79 2.1095% 
 

2.1095% 
 

9 
 

.527 1.4072% 
 

1.4072% 
 

10 
 

.462 1.2336% 
 

1.2336% 
 

11 
 

.38 1.0147% 
 

1.0147% 
 

12 
 

.443 1.1829% 
 

1.1829% 
 

13 
 

.578 1.5434% 1.5434% 

17 
 

.597 1.5941% 
 

1.5941% 
 

18 
 

.277 .7397% 
 

.7397% 
 

19 
 

.319 .8518% 
 

.8518% 
 

20 
 

.29 .7744% 
 

.7744% 
 

 
1 Note that the initial Lot 1 was reduced in the Northridge Replat by .75 acres, which acreage was dedicated to the Town 
as “Mall Road”. 



27 
 

T:\Dropbox (Tueller & Gibbs)\T&G Telluride Client Files\R\Ridgway USA Assoc\Docs\Declaration\Amended and Restated Covenants - Draft 
9.13.22 (copy for mtg).docx  

LOT NO. ACRES VOTING 
PERCENTAGES 

ASSESSMENT 
PERCENTAGES 

21 
 

.319 .8518% 
 

.8518% 
 

22 
 

.327 .8732% 
 

.8732% 
 

23 
 

.314 .8385% 
 

.8385% 
 

24A 
 

.2265 .6048% 
 

.6048% 
 

24B 
 

.2265 .6048% 
 

.6048% 
 

25 
 

.441 1.1776% 
 

1.1776% 
 

26 
 

3.729 9.9573% 
 

9.9573% 
 

27 
 

.943 2.5180% 
 

2.5180% 
 

28 
 

.666 1.7784% 
 

1.7784% 
 

29 
 

.613 1.6368% 
 

1.6368% 
 

30 
 

.466 1.2443% 
 

1.2443% 
 

31 
 

.545 1.4553% 
 

1.4553% 
 

32 
 

.573 1.5300% 
 

1.5300% 
 

33 
 

.541 1.4446% 
 

1.4446% 
 

34 
 

.318 .8491% 
 

.8491% 
 

Out Lot C 
 

.1852 .4940% 
 

.4940%3 
 

Lot H 
 

.787 2.1015% 
 

2.1015%3 
 

 37.450 
 

100% 100% 

 
 

2 Please note that Out Lot C is incorrectly referenced as .162 acres on the Relpat of The East Side Subdivision recorded in 
the official records of the Ouray County Clerk and Recorder Office on October 9, 1990 at Reception No. 147703, but is 
correctly referenced in the Ouray County Assessor’s Office Official Records (“Assessor Records”) under Parcel Number 
430516401008 as including a portion of the adjacent roadways, resulting in the referenced .185 acres. 
3 Despite the separately platted Out Lot C and Lot H, the Assessor Records combine Out Lot C and Lot H jointly and are 
included under Assessor Records Parcel Number 430516401008 reflecting a total .972 acres, for a total of 2.5927 Voting 
and Assessment Percentages. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, 

AND BO JAMES NERLIN,  P.C. 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), made as of the __ day of December 2022, is by 

and between the TOWN OF RIDGWAY, a municipal corporation acting by and through its 

authorized officers (the “Town”), and BO JAMES NERLIN, P.C., a Colorado Professional 

Corporation (“Law Firm”).  

 

 WHEREAS, the Town and Law Firm intend that Law Firm, as hereinafter specified, shall 

serve as General Legal Counsel for the Town.  

 

 WHEREAS, Bo James Nerlin, shall serve as the primary attorney contact for the Town.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I – TERMS 

 

 A. Effective Date: January 1, 2023. 

 

B.  Term:  The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2023 through  

December 31, 2023 unless either party provides a notice to terminate.    

 

 C. Services and Compensation:  

 

1. Law Firm shall provide general legal services to the Town at a current hourly 

rate of $185.00 per hour (the “Town Rate”).  Law Firm’s regular hourly rate is 

$275.00 per hour (the “Law Firm’s Rate”).  

 

2. Law Firm shall charge the Town Rate, with the exception of fees that are 

eligible to be charged back to a third party by the Town (“Charge-Back Fees”), 

out-of-pocket expenses, and fees in connection with litigation matters or 

extraordinary matters, which shall be billed at the Law Firm’s Rate.  Law Firm 

and the Town shall reach an agreement prior to Law Firm billing the Law Firm’s 

Rate for a matter deemed extraordinary or litigation.  For fees to be charged 

back to third parties, the Town shall initially pay Law Firm only the Town Rate.  

Charge-Back Fees shall be charged back to the third party, which shall be 

responsible for paying the entire amount of Charge-Back Fees.  

Notwithstanding that Charge-Back Fees may be paid by a third party, payment 

by any third party of the Charge-Back Fees shall not create an attorney-client 

relationship between Law Firm any third party paying such Charge-Back Fees.  

The Town shall not grant to any third-party owing Charge-Back Fees to Law 

Firm a permit, license or other Town discretionary permission until such third 

party has paid all Charge-Back Fee due and owing to Law Firm.  



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 2 of 6 

 

3. Law Firm shall attend one regular Town Council meeting a month and charge 

a rate of $100.00 per hour for attendance of one Town Council Meeting per 

month, at an amount not to exceed $300.00 per meeting. For attendance at more 

than one Town Council meeting a month, Law Firm shall bill at the Town Rate.   

 

 SECTION II – LAW FIRM’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. All work to be performed by Law Firm shall be authorized verbally or in writing by 

the appropriately authorized Town representative(s).   

  

B. Description of Law Firm’s legal services: (1) Provide drafting and/or review and 

approval of contracts, MOU’s, IGA’s, etc.; (2) Attend Town Council meetings; (3) 

Attend other Town  meetings at the request of the Mayor or the Town Staff; (4) 

Participate in negotiations regarding Town affairs; (5) Provide overall legal oversight 

to department Directors, Town Staff, Mayor and the Board; (6) Provide oversight on 

legal matters related to employment/HR; (7) Assist in negotiations with other entities 

– Ouray County, state and federal agencies, etc.; (8) Keep the Board and Town Staff 

informed on various changes in the law affecting municipalities and provide legal 

planning to proactively minimize the Town’s exposure to various potential liabilities; 

(8) Such other matters as the Town Board and Town Staff may deem necessary and 

appropriate, from time to time.    

 

C. Law Firm shall inform the Town in writing of any additional firms it intends to hire 

to perform work in connection with this Agreement and shall keep the Town 

informed on any changes or additions to this information.  The Town shall approve 

any additional firms prior to commencement of work by such firms as per this 

Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship 

between any additional firm(s) and the Town. 
 

D. Law Firm shall review each project and Law Firm’s records to ensure against any 

conflict of interest that might prevent Law Firm from fully and faithfully advising 

and representing the Town. If any potential conflict or differing interest exists or 

arises, now or in the future, Law Firm shall properly advise the Town Staff and/or 

Town Council. 

 

E. Law Firm shall identify, verbally or in writing, the attorney within its organization 

primarily responsible for implementing and overseeing each project and all other 

attorneys and paralegals/paraprofessionals who will do significant work on each 

project. Staffing may change from time to time; however, Law Firm shall promptly 

advise the Town Staff and specific Town departments of such changes. 

 

F. In performing this Agreement, the hours Law Firm and its staff are to work on any 

given day or project are entirely within Law Firm’s control. The Town shall rely 

upon Law Firm to devote the time, skill and effort reasonably necessary to fulfill 

the purpose of this Agreement.  

 



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 3 of 6 

G. Law Firm shall determine all pertinent filing dates or other deadlines for each 

project. Law Firm shall comply with all applicable filing dates or deadlines or 

obtain sufficient extensions to protect the Town's interests. 

 

H. Full and regular communications are essential to this Agreement. Law Firm and its 

staff, the Town Staff and other representatives and Town Council shall actively 

address all developments that could significantly affect a project. Except in an 

emergency, Law Firm and its staff shall make no significant decision on direction, 

mechanics or strategy for a project without prior communication and discussion 

with the appropriate Town representative(s).   

 

I. Insurance Requirements: Before beginning, and while performing under this 

Agreement, Law Firm shall maintain, without cost to the Town, the following 

insurance: 

 

1. For all attorneys within its organization, professional liability insurance that 

complies with C.R.C.P. 265(a)(3).  

 

2. Law Firm shall not cancel, materially change or fail to renew insurance 

coverage. Law Firm shall notify the Town of any material reduction or 

exhaustion of aggregate limits.  

 

SECTION III – THE TOWN’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. The Town shall provide full information, including detailed scope of work, as to its 

requirements for the services. 

 

B. The Town shall give prompt notice to Law Firm whenever the Town observes or 

otherwise becomes aware of any discrepancies in the services provided. 

 

C. Law Firm is not liable for delays in performance that are caused by the Town, the 

Town’s consultants or events that are outside the control of the parties and could not 

be avoided by the exercise of due care. 

 

SECTION IV – MUTUAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE TOWN AND LAW FIRM 

 

A. This Agreement does not guarantee to Law Firm any work, except as authorized in 

accordance with Section I above, or create an exclusive contract. 

 

B. The services and any and all interests contemplated under this Agreement shall not 

be assigned, sublet or transferred without the written consent of the Town. 

 

C. Law Firm and any and all of its personnel utilized by Law Firm under the terms of 

this Agreement shall remain the agents and employees of Law Firm and are not, nor 

shall they be construed to be, agents or employees of the Town. 

 



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 4 of 6 

D. The Town recognizes that all technical data, evaluations, reports and other work 

products are instruments of Law Firm’s services and not designed for use other than 

what is intended by or reasonably foreseeable to the parties to this Agreement.  The 

Town shall make no other use of Law Firm’s work product without the prior approval 

of Law Firm.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, such data, evaluations, report and other 

work products, along with the files generated by Law Firm pursuant to this 

Agreement are to remain the Property of the Town. 

 

SECTION V – BILLING AND PAYMENT 

 

 At the beginning of each month, for services rendered the prior month, Law Firm shall 

provide to the Town invoices, which reflect all of the fees and out-of-pocket expenses Law Firm 

has incurred on behalf of the Town for the previous calendar month. Prior to the end of each month, 

the Town shall remit payment for all invoices due and payable unless otherwise discussed with 

Law Firm or Law Firm’s representatives, either verbally or through written correspondence.  

 

SECTION VI - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

A. Confidentiality: During and after the term of this Agreement, Law Firm shall not 

disclose to third parties any confidential information or data. Law Firm shall treat 

such information as the private and privileged records of the Town and Law Firm. 

Without Town's express consent, Law Firm shall not release such information to 

any third party by statement, deposition, as a witness or otherwise. 

 

B. Licenses: Law Firm shall maintain all licenses necessary to perform under this 

Agreement, including attorneys’ licenses to practice law in the State of Colorado. 

 

C. Severability: To the extent the parties may perform and accomplish their 

obligations within the intent of this Agreement, its terms are severable. Should any 

term or provision be invalid or become inoperable for any reason, such invalidity 

or failure shall not affect the validity of any other terms or provisions. Waiver of 

any breach of a term shall not indicate a waiver of any other term or the same term 

upon later breach. 
 

SECTION VII – LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

 

 Law Firm, at all times, agrees to observe all applicable federal and state laws, Ordinances of 

the Town of Ridgway, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, that in any manner affect 

or govern the services contemplated under this Agreement. 

 

 

 

SECTION VIII – TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

 

A. Termination of Agreement:  Either party shall be entitled to terminate this 

Agreement upon giving the other party written notice of intent to terminate.  Should 

Law Firm terminate the Agreement, Law Firm agrees to continue representation of 



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 5 of 6 

the Town on all matters pending at the time of termination until satisfactory 

substitution of counsel by the Town.  Should the Town wish to Terminate, it shall 

provide Law Firm with a thirty (30) day notice of intent to terminate.   

 

B. Effect of Termination:  In the event of termination, all finished and unfinished work 

product(s) prepared by Law Firm pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole 

property of the Town, provided Law Firm is compensated in accordance with this 

Agreement for all work performed in accordance with this Agreement up to the 

effective date of termination. Law Firm shall not be liable with respect to the 

Town’s subsequent use of any incomplete work product, provided Law Firm has 

notified the Town in writing of the incomplete status of such work product. 

 

SECTION IX – CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 The Town may from time to time require changes in the scope of the services of Law Firm 

to be performed herein. Compensation to Law Firm payable hereunder shall be adjusted to reflect 

any change in the scope of services. 

 

SECTION X – EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 

A. Law Firm shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, sex (gender), religion, creed 

or physical or mental disability.  Law Firm may adhere to lawful equal opportunity 

guidelines in selecting employees, provided that no person is illegally discriminated 

against on any of the preceding bases. This provision shall govern, but shall not be 

limited to, recruitment, employment, promotion, demotion and transfer and 

advertising therefor; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other compensation; and 

selection for training, including apprenticeship. Law Firm shall post, in all places 

conspicuous to employees and applicants for employment, notices provided by the 

State of Colorado setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 

B. All solicitations and advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of Law 

Firm shall state that Law Firm is an equal opportunity employer.  

 

C. Law Firm shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for 

any work contemplated by this Agreement or deemed necessary by Law Firm, so that 

such provisions are binding upon each sub-consultant. 

 

D. Law Firm shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the racial and 

ethnic origin of employees and of applicants for employment as the United States, 

the State of Colorado, the Town of Ridgway, or their respective agencies may require. 

 

E. Law Firm shall comply with such rules, regulations and guidelines as the United 

States, the State of Colorado, the Town of Ridgway, or their respective agencies may 

issue to implement these requirements. 

 



 

Professional Services Agreement - Page 6 of 6 

SECTION XI – ILLEGAL ALIENS 

 

In compliance with C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102, Law Firm represents, warrants and agrees: 

 

A. That Law Firm shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 

perform work under this Agreement, shall provide the Town with duly executed 

LAWFUL PRESENCES AFFIDAVITS of its employees upon request, and shall 

not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Law Firm that 

the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 

perform work under this Agreement. 

 

B. That Law Firm has confirmed the employment eligibility of current employees and 

shall, within twenty (20) days after hiring any new employee to perform work under 

this Agreement, affirm that Law Firm has examined the legal work status of such 

employee, retained file copies of the documents required by 8 U.S.C. § 1324a, and 

not altered or falsified the identification documents for such employee.  Law Firm 

shall provide a written, notarized copy of the affirmation to the Town upon request. 

 

C. If Law Firm obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 

this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Law Firm 

shall: (i) notify the subcontractor and the Town within three (3) days that Law Firm 

has actual knowledge that a subcontractor is employing or contracting with an 

illegal alien; and (ii) terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three 

(3) days of receiving the notice required pursuant to this Section XI, the 

subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except 

that Law Firm shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such 

three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish that it has not 

knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 

 

________________________________ By:                             

Pam Kraft, Town Clerk                 JOHN CLARK, Mayor 

 

      Date: ________________ 

 

 

      BO JAMES NERLIN, P.C.    

       

      By:  _________________________________ 

                    BO JAMES NERLIN, President 

       

Date:  ________________ 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   December 9, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Consideration of appointment to the Home Trust of Ouray County Board of 

Directors 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Home Trust of Ouray County (Home Trust) has requested Town of Ridgway representation on its Board 
of Directors. The Home Trust is a registered 501(c)(3) non-profit organization created to develop and manage 
permanently affordable housing for Ouray County residents through homeownership and rental 
opportunities. The mission of the Home Trust is to “grow an inclusive, economically diverse community by 
providing permanently affordable housing and housing-related resources to modest income households in 
Ouray County through the stewardship of community assets.” 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to appoint ___________________ to represent the Town of Ridgway on the Home Trust of Ouray 
County Board of Directors.”  

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 


	00 Dec 14 tc agenda
	01 Consent Agenda
	02 Nov 9 tc min
	03 Nov 17 budget workshop tc min
	04 Register of Demands
	05 Water Leak Adjustment Tuohy
	06 Agenda Item 5
	07 Liq Lic transfer Bella Vino srp
	08 Agenda Items 6 & 7
	09 Wilson_FP-RZ_SR_Pkt_2022.1209
	Wilson SolarRanch_Var_FP_Rezone_TC_SR_2022.
	Wilson_FP-RZ_Attachments_2022.1214
	02_2022.08.09 PC Hearing Proof of Pmt
	01_Planning Commission Hearing Request
	03_Certification of Notice to Mineral Right Holder with supporting docs
	04_Sept 15 2022  Letter to Planning Commission
	05_Encl 1 - Proof of Ownership
	Enclosure 1 - List of Contents
	General Warranty Deed to Wilson Living Trust 
	Certification of Trust
	Deed of Trust to Wells Fargo for Wilson Mortgage
	Title Commitment received by Wilsons prior to purchase of property

	Encl 2 - Amended Plat of Lot 110 Solar Ranches Ouray Co Reception # 174776
	Encl 4 - Final Plat Wilson Solar Ranch Subdivision Replat 8-9-22
	Encl 5 - HOA Approval Letter
	Enclosure 3 - Improvement Survey Plat Sept 2022
	Enclosure 6 - Planning Commission Hearing Request


	10 Agenda Item 8
	11 Budget Resolutions
	1 Budget Staff Report
	2 Reso 22-09 Adopting Budget
	3 Reso 22-10 Appropriating Expends
	4 Reso 22-11 Setting Mill Levy

	12 Agenda Item 9
	13 2023 Five-Year and Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plans
	1. Memo
	2. 5 yr cip 1 gen fund
	3. 5 yr cip 2 wtr fund
	4. 5 yr cip 3 swr fund
	5. 10 yr cip 1 gen fund
	6. 10 yr cip 2 wtr fund
	7. 10 yr cip 3 swr fund

	14 Agenda Item 10
	15 2023 Strategic Plan
	1. Memo
	2. 2023 Strategic Plan - presented December 14, 2022

	16 Agenda Item 11
	17 MOU between Town and County
	1. Memo
	2. Attachment 1 - Town - County MOU 2022 - signed
	3. Attachment 2 - draft MOU 2023

	18 Agenda Item 12
	19 Amended and Restated Covenants
	1. Memo
	2. Amended and Restated Covenants

	20 Agenda Item 13
	21 Professional Services Agreement between TOR and BJN
	22 Agenda Item 14
	23 Home Trust of Ouray County Appointment
	24 Agenda Item 15



